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FOREWORD

The introduction of Goods and Services Tax helped the Indian Taxation system to
overcome the limitations of existing indirect tax structure, and creating efficiencies in
tax administration. GST is a broad-based, single, comprehensive National level tax
applicable on goods or services or both which aims to replace the State VAT, Central
Excise, Service Tax and a few other indirect taxes barring few goods and services as
exempted by the Government.

With the advent of GST, Government’s revenue has shown an increasing trend on
account of increase in number of tax payers and compliance by them. This has led to
additional responsibilities on Tax Officials who are required to assess the tax liability
accurately and prevent the revenue leakage by implementing the provisions contained
in Act, Rules, Notifications/circulars issued thereunder. Therefore, it has become
matter of importance for the Training of government officers so as to be abreast them
with topical and intriguing concepts of accounting, auditing and taxation.

Since these changes in the taxation system would be required to be dealt with
ingeniously, the Indirect Taxes Committee of ICAI has brought out a study material
“Background Material on GST for Government Officials”. This study material aims at
providing a guidance material for the officials at the “Training Programme on GST”
organised by Indirect Taxes Committee of ICAl on continuous basis. This covers a
large number of relevant topics which would prove to be a value addition to
Department Officials and enable them to understand the accounting and auditing
aspects involved in the GST which will, in turn, help them in verifying the tax credits,
exemptions, abatement etc. as per the requirements of the law.

| am sure that this publication would be immensely helpful to the readers and serve
the objective of its release.

CA. Naveen ND Gupta
President, ICAI

Date: 08.02.2019

Place: New Delhi






PREFACE

GST Law is now 18months old and has gone through various changes which require
continuous training of the trade, professionals as well as officials. Continuous training
gives confidence to the trainee that they are abreast of the new developments and
have a stronger understanding of the evolving concepts. It is also important for
departmental officials to understand the accounting and auditing concepts along with
the GST law. The concepts of accounting has universal application for recording
transactions and events which would enable the tax officials to perform their duties
efficiently. Knowledge and understanding of the financial statements become more
essential for verifying the tax credits, exemptions, abatements etc. as prescribed
under the law.

To provide a learning opportunity to the departmental officials, the Indirect Taxes
Committee of ICAI has undertaken an initiative of training the department officials
which will certainly help them in effectively implementing the newly implemented tax
legislation. These programmes have been finely designed to deliberate on the
accounting and auditing aspects involved in the indirect taxes. This study material
has been thoroughly revised to aptly match the contents of the training programmes
and elucidates topics like Study of Financial Statements, Goods & Service Tax -
Accounting issues, GST Audit desk Review, Ratio Analysis etc. This material will
pertinently complement the training programme.

We would like to express our sincere gratitude and thanks to CA. Naveen N. D. Gupta,
President, ICAI, as well as other members of the Committee for their suggestions and
support in this initiative. We must also thank CA. Gaurav Gupta, CA Ashish
Chaudhary and CA Sachin Jain for preparing this material and CA. Jatin Christopher
for vetting of the material.

We are confident that this training initiative would be handy and the officials will
certainly be benefited by the deliberations of eminent experts. Also, it will enable us to
make this training course more value additive and useful.

We wish the program a great success.

CA. Madhukar Narayan Hiregange CA. Sushil Kumar Goyal
Chairman Vice-Chairman
Indirect Taxes Committee Indirect Taxes Committee

Date: 11.02.2019
Place: New Delhi
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1

BASIC CONCEPTS

INTRODUCTION

1.1 Every individual performs some kind of economic activity. A
salaried person gets salary and spends to buy provisions and clothing, for
children’s education, construction of house, etc. A sports club formed by a
group of individuals, a business run by an individual or a group of
individuals, a local authority like Kolkata Municipal Corporation, Delhi
Development Authority, Governments, either Central or State, all are
carrying on some kind of economic activities. It is not necessary that all
the economic activities are run for any individual benefit, some economic
activities may benefit a group of people or the public at large. Such
economic activities are performed through ‘%ransactions and events’.
Transaction is used to mean ‘a business, performance of an act, an
agreement’ while Event is used to mean a happening or occurrence, as a
consequence of such transaction(s).

1.2 Businesses wish to keep a record of all transactions and events and
to have adequate information about the economic activity as an aid to
decision making. Accounting discipline has been developed to serve this
purpose. Accounting has universal application for recording transactions
and events and presenting suitable accurate information. We concentrate
only on business activities and their accounting. We hope that it would
provide adequate knowledge to understand accounting as a field of study
for universal application.

Nature of accounting
1.3  Accounting
1) 1s man-made

(1) has evolved over a period of time
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(111)  1s practiced in a social system

(iv)  1is a systematic exercise

v) 1s judgmental in many circumstances
(vi)  1s essentially the language of business

(vil) records only financial information

ACCOUNTING PROCESS-A FLOWCHART

Identification
Input of transaction
Economic Accoun- Output
Events »| ting Cycle >
measured in
money |
Recording Posting Prepara- Prepara-
transactions to tion of trial tion of
in the books Ledger balance final
of original acconnts
entry
Internal Users External Users
= Board of = Investors
Directors = Lenders
= Partners = Suppliers
= Managers = Govt.
= Officers Agencies
= Auditors = Employees
= Customers
= Others
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THE ACCOUNTING EQUATION

Assets
(Fixed+ Current+
Investments)
| |
Shareholders’ Liabilities
Funds
Owners’ Profit +Free Long term Current Provisions
Equity Reserves Liabilities Liabilities

BASIC CONCEPTS IN ACCOUNTING

1.4 A systematic record of the daily events of a business leading to
presentation of a complete financial picture is known as Accounting.
Accounting communicates the state of affairs of a business entity to the
outside world. To ensure that the same meaning is conveyed to all the
users, certain basic concepts are to be followed while preparing the
accounts of an organization. The world over uniformity is sought to be
achieved by way of application of Standards. IFRS and Ind AS are
example of exercises to achieve uniformity in reporting. These accounting
concepts are discussed briefly below:

(i) Business Entity Concept

To bring out the true picture of the affairs of any business entity, the
business is treated as distinct from the persons who own it. This concept
has been further extended to different business units of the same entity so
as to ascertain the results of every unit. This could be relevant to
understand as there could be possibility of earnings by an individual who
1s also engaged in making supplies under GST. There could be possibility
of some of his supplies being covered in the regular business run by him.
Incidentally, he may be earning some income personally also . The concept
of segregation between the owner and the business (of such owner) could
bring important aspects of the taxability or otherwise of the transactions
undertaken in personal capacity as these may not be said to be supply ‘in

Indirect Taxes Committee



4 Background Material on Training Program for Government Officials

the course’ of business. This distinction of owner from the business should
not be confused with the concept of distinct person under GST Law which
is merely separate identification of the taxable person (each with a
different registration in the same or other State) on deemed basis for the
taxation purpose.

(ii)) Money Measurement Concept

Accounting records only those transactions which can be measured in
monetary terms. Events, which do not have monetary measurement, are
not recorded in the books of account even though they are very important
like strike of the workers. It is important for any tax auditor to appreciate
that any transaction which is not accounted for in terms of money shall
not be visible in the books of accounts. Accordingly, transactions which
are not recorded in the books of accounts but are part of business should
be examined from the agreements and other base documents.

(iii) Cost Concept

Cost concept requires the recording the transactions at the amount
actually involved. For example, if the land has been purchased for ¥1.5
crores but its actual worth is ¥ 2.5 crores, it will be recorded at a value of
%1.5 crore and not I 2.5 crores. The reporting based on market value is
being tested as in some cases the assets like land may have appreciated
many times.

(iv) Going Concern Concept

It is assumed that the business is not likely to be closed in the near future
and the transactions are recorded from that point of view. If it is certain
that the entity will exist only for a limited period, then the records may
reflect the realizable value. When this aspect is qualified by the CA, the
stakeholders (whether the tax administrators or suppliers) need to be
careful. An example is the case of a widely known Airlines where from
2009 onwards the going concern concept was qualified by the auditors.
The service tax overdue was reported Rs. 20 lakhs. By 2012-13 the going
concern qualification continued and the ST overdue had reached Rs.703
crores!! This was available in the balance sheet filed with the ROC year
after year. If this aspect of going concern was properly appreciated, the
dues of service tax could have been recovered by taking suitable steps.
Similar could be instances under GST also and the tax administrator need

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India



Basic Concepts 5

to focus on the notes to accounts containing auditor’s observations on
going concern aspect.

(v) Dual Aspect Concept

Each transaction that is recorded in the books of account has two aspects.
For example, if a business has acquired an asset, it must result in one of
the following:

(a) Giving up of some other asset; or
(b) An obligation to pay has arisen; or
(c) Profit has arisen; or

(d) The proprietor has contributed money for acquisition of such asset

At any time, the following equation will hold true:

Assets=Liabilities + Capital

(vi) Realization Concept:

Accounting can be defined as a historical record of the transactions.
Transactions which have already taken place are recorded. Unless money
has been realized or a legal obligation to pay has arisen, no sale is
recorded in the books of account. No accounting is involved where there is
only an anticipation of realizing something but upon its actual realization.

(vii) Accrual Concept

The transactions are recorded not only on cash basis but are also recorded
if the amount has accrued. This is due to the matching of revenue to the
expenses. Waiting until recovery or discharge of dues would delay the
recognition of the income or expenditure and distort the financial picture
for each period.

(viii) Consistency

The accounting practice followed by the assessee should be consistent
from one year to another. If a change becomes necessary, the change and
its effect must be stated clearly. Many times, the changes are made on
account of statutory needs such as compliance of Ind AS or IFRS.

Indirect Taxes Committee
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(ix) Disclosure

All significant information should be properly disclosed irrespective of the
legal requirements. Whether an item is to be disclosed or not would
depend on its materiality. [example - 1 % of the expense sample]

(x) Prudence

In view of the uncertainty attached to future events, profits are not
anticipated but recognized only when realized though not necessarily in
cash. Refunds from statutory authorities are at times not recognized as
they can take a few years. This at times leads to the same being
questioned under unjust enrichment!!

Provision is made for all known liabilities and losses even though the
amount cannot be determined with certainty and represents only a best
estimate in the light of available information

(xi) Substance Over Form

The accounting treatment and presentation in financial statements of
transactions and events should be governed by their substance and not
merely by the legal form. An example could be a works contract
agreement being broken into 2 parts one for supply of goods and one for
labour which are fully co terminus. Under VAT they would be held to be
WCT and consequently under service tax too. Unless there is some
contrary treatment specifically prescribed in a given law.

(xii) Materiality

Financial Statements should disclose all material items i.e. items the
knowledge of which might influence the decision of the user of the
financial statements. Materiality could means depicting a different
picture also. Example if an amount converts a loss into a profit that
amount could be said to be material. Otherwise in the group a 1% + could
be considered material. Material amounts maybe hidden in miscellaneous
expenses or in capital work in progress which may have some liability

under service tax.

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India



Basic Concepts 7

METHODS OF ACCOUNTING — CASH AND MERCANTILE BASIS OF
ACCOUNTING (ACCRUAL)

Cash System

1.5 In this method of accounting, entries are recorded only when the
impact of a transaction results in either a cash receipt or cash payment.

Mercantile System

1.6 Under this basis, the effects of transactions and other events are
recognized on mercantile (accrual) basis i.e. when they occur (and not as
cash or a cash equivalent is received or paid) and they are recorded in the
accounting records and reported in the financial statements of the periods
to which they relate. Financial statements prepared on the accrual basis
inform users not only of past events involving the payment and receipt of
cash, but also of obligations to pay cash in the future and represent cash
to be received in the future.

1.7 To understand accrual assumption, knowledge of revenues and
expenses is required. Revenue is the gross inflow of cash, receivables and
other consideration arising in the course of the ordinary activities of an
enterprise from sale of goods, from rendering services and from the use by
others of enterprise's resources yielding interest, royalties and dividends.

For example, Mr. X started a cloth merchandising business. He invested
350,000, bought merchandise worth ¥50,000. He sold such merchandise for
$60,000. Customers paid him 350,000 cash and assured him to pay
10,000 shortly. His revenue is ¥60,000. It arose in the ordinary course of
cloth business; Mr. X received ¥50,000 in cash and ¥10,000 by way of

receivables.

Take another example, an electricity supply undertaking supplies
electricity expending 3¥16,00,000 for fuel and wages and collects electricity
bill in one month ¥20,00,000 by way of electricity charges. This is also
revenue which arose from rendering services.

Lastly, Mr. A invested ¥1,00,000 in a business. He purchased a machine
paying ¥1,00,000. He hired it out for 320,000 annually to Mr. B. 320,000 is
the revenue of Mr. A, it arose from the use by others of the enterprise's
resources.

Indirect Taxes Committee
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1.8 Expense is a cost relating to the operations of an accounting period
or to the revenue earned during the period or the benefits of which do not
extend beyond that period.

In the first example, Mr. X spent 350,000 to buy the merchandise. It is the
expense of generating revenue of 60,000. In the second instance
16,00,000 are the expenses. Also whenever any asset is used it has a
finite life to generate benefit. Suppose, the machine purchased by Mr. A in
the third example will last for 10 years only. Then ¥10,000 is the expense
he met. For the time being, ignore the idea of accounting period.

1.9  Accrual means recognition of revenue and costs as they are earned
or incurred and not as money is received or paid. The accrual concept-
relates to measurement of income, identifying assets and liabilities.

Example: Mr. JD buys clothing of ¥50,000 paying cash 320,000 and sells at
60,000 of which customers paid only ¥50,000.

His revenue is 360,000, not only ¥50,000 which is cash received. Expense
(i.e. cost incurred for earning the revenue) is ¥50,000 and not ¥20,000
which is cash paid. So the accrual concept based profit is ¥10,000
(Revenue — Expenses).

1.10 As per Accrual Concept:
Revenue — Expenses = Profit

Alternative as per Cash basis

Cash received in ordinary — Cash paid in ordinary — profit-
course of business course of business

Revenue may not be realized in cash. Cash may be received
simultaneously, or

@) before revenue is created (A.1)
(i1) after revenue is created (A.2)

Expenses may not be paid in cash. Cash may be paid simultaneously or (1)
before expense is made (B.1) (ii) after expense is made (B.2)

A.1  creates a liability when cash is received in advance.

A.2  creates an asset called Receivables or Trade Debtors.

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
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B.1 creates an asset called Trade Advance when cash is paid in
advance.

B.2 creates a liability called payables or Trade Creditors or
Outstanding Liabilities. If the expenses remain unpaid in respect
of goods, it is called Trade Creditors, if it remains unpaid for other
expenses, it is called Outstanding Expenses.

1.11  Accrual Concept provides the foundation on which the structure of
present-day accounting has been developed.

1.12 If any fundamental accounting assumption is not followed in the
financial statements, the fact should be disclosed.

DOUBLE ENTRY SYSTEM

1.13 Every transaction has two aspects and according to this system,
both the aspects are recorded. For example, if a business acquires
something then either it must have been given by someone or it must have
been acquired by giving up something. On purchase of furniture either the
cash balance will be reduced or a liability to the supplier will arise. This
has been made clear already. The Double Entry System is so named since
it records both the aspects. We may define the Double Entry System as the
system, which recognizes and records both the aspects of transactions. This
system has proved to be systematic and has been found of great use for
recording the financial affairs for all institutions requiring use of money.

1.14 This system affords the under-mentioned advantages:

(1) By the use of this system the accuracy of the accounting work can
be established, through the device of the Trial Balance.

(1) The profit earned, or loss suffered during a period can be
ascertained together with details.

(111)  The financial position of the firm or the institution concerned can
be ascertained at the end of each period, through preparation of the
Balance Sheet.

(iv)  The system permits accounts to be kept in as much detail as
necessary and, therefore affords significant information for the
purposes of control etc.

Indirect Taxes Committee
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v) Result of one year may be compared with those of previous years
and reasons for the change may be ascertained.

It is because of these advantages that the system has been used
extensively in all countries.

DEBIT AND CREDIT

1.15 Under Double entry book keeping, if there is any change on one
side of the equation, there is bound to be similar change on the other side
of the equation or amongst items covered by it. Hence, there is an
equation, which is the basis of whole accounting under double entry book
keeping.

Assets = Liabilities + Capital or
Assets — Liabilities = Capital

We have seen that by deducting the total of liabilities from the total of
assets the amount of capital is ascertained, as is indicated by the
accounting equation.

1.16 It is a tradition that:

(1) an increase in assets is recorded on the left-hand side and a
decrease in them on the right-hand side; and

(i1) in the case of liabilities and capital, an increase is recorded on the
right-hand side and a decrease on the left-hand side.

1.17 When two sides are put together in T form, the left-hand side is
called the ‘debit side’ the right-hand side is ‘credit side’. When in an account
a record is made on the debit or left-hand side, one says that one has
debited that account. Similarly, to record an amount on the right-hand side
is to credit it.

1.18 From the above, the following rules can be obtained:

(1) When there is an increase in the amount of an asset, its account is
debited; the account will be credited if there is a reduction in the
amount of the asset concerned:

Suppose, a firm purchases furniture for 800, the furniture account
will be debited by I800 since the asset has increased by this
amount. If later, the firm sells furniture to the extent of ¥300, the

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
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(ii)

(iv)

\
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reduction will be recorded by crediting the furniture account by
3300.

If the amount of a liability increases, the increase will be entered on
the credit side of the liability account, i.e., the account will be
credited.

A liability account will be debited if there is a reduction in the
amount of the liability. Suppose a firm borrows I500 from Mohan.
In this case, Mohan’s account will be credited since ¥500 is now
payable to him. If later, the loan is repaid, Mohan’s account will be
debited since the liability no longer exists.

An increase in the owner’s capital is recorded by crediting the
capital account.

Suppose the proprietor introduces additional capitalthe capital
account will be credited. If the owner withdraws some money, i.e.,
makes a drawing, the capital account will be debited.

Profit leads to an increase in capital and a loss to reduction in
capital.

According to the rule mentioned in (ii1) above, profit may be
directly credited to the capital account and losses may be similarly
debited.

However, it is more useful to record all incomes, gains, expenses
and losses separately. By doing so, very useful information will be
available regarding the factors which have contributed to the year’s
profits and losses. Later the net result of all these is ascertained
and adjusted in the capital account.

Expenses are debited, and Incomes are credited

Since incomes and gains increase capital, the rule is to credit all
gains and incomes in the accounts concerned and since expenses
and losses decrease capital, the rule is to debit all expenses and
losses. Of course, if there is a reduction in any income or gain, the
account concerned will be debited: similarly, for any reduction in
an expenses or loss the concerned account will be credited.

The rules given above are summarized below:

@

Increases in assets are debits; decreases are credits;

Indirect Taxes Committee
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(1) Increases in liabilities are credits; decreases are debits;

(111)  Increases in owner’s capital are credits; decreases are debits;

(1v)  Increases in expenses are debits; decreases are credits; and

v) Increases in revenue or incomes are credits; decreases are debits.

The terms debit and credit should not be taken to mean, respectively,
favourable and unfavourable things. They merely describe the two sides of
accounts.

Account

1.19 We have seen how the accounting equation becomes true in all cases.
A person starts his business with say, cash of 310,000, in such case capital
and cash accounts both will be effected by ¥10,000. Transactions entered into
by the firm will alter the cash balance in two ways, one will increase the cash
balance and other will reduce it. Payment for goods purchased, for salaries
and rent, etc., will reduce the cash balance whereas sale of goods for cash
and collection from customers will increase it.

We can change the cash balance with every transaction, but this will be
cumbersome. Instead it would be better if all the transactions that lead to
an increase are recorded in one column and those that reduce the cash
balance in another column, then the net result can be ascertained. If we
add all increases to the opening balance of cash and then deduct the total
of all decreases, we shall know the Closing Balance. In this manner,
significant information will be available relating to cash.

The two columns of which we talked of above are put usually in the form
of an account, called the ‘T” form. This is illustrated below by taking
imaginary figures:

Cash
Increase Decrease
4 4

Opening Balance 10,000 1,000
2,500 300
2,000 200
50 500

1,350

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
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400 | Total 2,000
New or Closing Balance 14,300

16,300 16,300

What we have done i1s to put the increase of cash on the left-hand side and
the decrease on the right hand side. The closing balance has been
ascertained by deducting the total of payments, 2,000 from the total of
the left-hand side. Such a treatment of receipts and payment of cash is
very convenient.

The proper form of an account is as follows:

Account
Dr. Cr.

Date | Particulars | Ref. | Amount | Date | Particulars | Ref Amount | T

3

The columns are self-explanatory except that the column for reference
(Ref.) 1s meant to indicate the sources where information about the entry
is available.

JOURNAL AND LEDGER

1.20 Though accounts can be written up directly, it is common to use
two books for the purpose. These are:

1) Journal: Transactions are first entered in this book to show which
accounts should be debited and which credited. Journal is also
called subsidiary book.

(11) Ledger: On the basis of entries made in the Journal, accounts are
prepared; the book which contains the accounts is called ‘ledger’.
Ledger is also called principal book.

Journalising Process: All transactions are first recorded in the Journal
as and when they occur. The record chronological recorded, otherwise it
would be difficult to maintain in an orderly manner. The form of the
Journal is given below:

Indirect Taxes Committee




14 Background Material on Training Program for Government Officials
Journal
Dr Cr
Date Particulars L.F. | Amount Amount
4 3
(1) 2 (3) (4) (5)

The columns have been numbered only to make clear the following but
otherwise they are not numbered. The following points should be noted:

@

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

In the first column the date of the transaction is entered-the year is
written at the top, then the month and in the narrow part of the
column the particular date is entered.

In the second column, the names of the accounts involved are
written; first the account to be debited, with the word “Dr” written
towards the end of the column. In the next line, after leaving a
little space, the name of the account to be credited is written
preceded by the word “To” (the modern practice shows inclination
towards omitting “Dr.” and “To”). Then in the next line the
explanation for the entry together with necessary details is given-
this is called narration.

In the third column, the page number of the ledger where posting
has been made from the Journal is entered.

In the fourth column, the amounts to be debited to the various
accounts concerned are entered.

In the fifth column, the amount to be credited to various accounts
is entered.

STEPS IN JOURNALISING

1.21

Before one can journalize transactions, one must think, based on

the rules given above, the effect of the transaction on assets, liabilities,
expenses, gains etc. of the firm. In accordance with the effects, the
accounts to be debited or credited will be determined. Then the entry will
be made in the Journal, as indicated above.

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
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It should be noted that the papers or documents supporting

transaction and establishing its veracity are known as vouchers. These
should be filed in proper order, together with necessary references, so that
in times of need these can be referred to.

An entry in the Journal may appear as follows:

May 5 | Cash Account Dr. 450

To Mohan 450

(Being the amount received from Mohan
in payment of the amount due from him)

We will now consider some individual transactions.

@

(i1)

(i11)

Mohan commences business with I5000 cash According to the rules
given above, the increase in an asset has to be debited to it. The
firm also now owes ¥5000 to the proprietor, Mohan as capital. The
rule given above also shows that the increase in capital should be
credited to it. Therefore, the Journal Entry will be:

Cash Account Dr. 5,000
To Capital Account 35,000
(Being capital introduced by Sh. Mohan)

Out of the above, ¥500 1s deposited in the bank. By this transaction
the cash balance is reduced by I500 and another asset, bank
account, comes into existence. Since increase in assets 1s debited
and decrease is credited, the Journal Entry will be:

Bank Account Dr. %500
To Cash Account %500
(Being cash deposited to Bank)

Furniture is purchased for cash ¥200. Applying the same reasoning
as above the entry will be:

Furniture Account Dr. %200
To Cash Account 3200
(Being Furniture purchased vide CM No....)

Indirect Taxes Committee
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(iv)  Purchased goods for cash ¥400. The required entry will be:
Purchase Account Dr. %400
To Cash Account 3400
(Being goods purchased vide CM No....)

(v) Purchased goods for ¥1,000 credit from M/s. Ram Narain Bros.
Purchase of merchandise is an expense item so it is to be debited.
31,000 is now owed to the supplier; his account should therefore be
credited, since the amount of liabilities has increased. The entry
will be:

Purchases Account Dr. 1,000
To M/s Ram Narain Bros. 1,000
(Being goods purchased vide Bill No....)

(vi)  Sold goods to M/s Ram & Co. for cash ¥600.The amount of cash
increases and therefore, the cash amount should be debited. Sale of
merchandise is revenue item so it is to be credited. The entry will
be.

Cash Account Dr. %600
To Sales Account 3600
(Being goods sold vide CM No....)

(vil)  Sold goods to Ramesh on credit for ¥300. The stock of goods has
decreased and therefore, the goods account has to be credited.
Ramesh now owes 3300, that is an asset and therefore. Ramesh
should be debited. The entry is:

Ramesh Dr. %300
To Sales Account 300
(Being goods sold vide Bill No....)
(viii) Received cash from Ramesh ¥300. The amount of cash increased

therefore the cash account has to be debited. Ramesh no longer
owes any amount to the firm, i.e., this particular form of assets has
disappeared, therefore, the account of Ramesh should be credited.
The entry is.
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Cash Account Dr. %300
To Ramesh 300
(Being cash received against Bill No....)

Paid to M/s Ram Narain Bros. ¥1000. The liability to M/s Ram
Narain Bros. has been discharged, therefore this account should be
debited. The cash balance has decreased and, therefore, the cash
account has to be credited. The entry is:

M/s Ram Narian Bros. Dr. 1,000
To Cash Account 1,000
(Being cash paid against Bill No....)

Paid rent ¥100. The cash balance has decreased and therefore, the
cash account should be credited. No asset has come into existence
because of the payment. The payment is for services enjoyed and is
an expense. Expenses are debited. Therefore, the entry should be :
Rent Account. Dr. %100
To Cash Account 100
(Being rent paid for the month of ....... )

Paid %200 to the clerk as salary. Applying the reasons given in (x)
above, the required entry is:

Salary Account Dr. %200

To Cash Account 200
(Being salary paid to Mr..... for the month

Received 20 interest. The cash account should be debited since
there is an increase in the cash balance. There is no increase in any
liability. Since the amount is not returnable to any one, the amount
is an income, incomes are credited. The entry is:

Cash Account Dr. %20
Interest Account 220
(Being interest received from........ for the
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When transactions of similar nature take place on the same date, they
may be combined while they are journalised. For example, entries (x) and
(xi) may be combined as follows:

Rent Account Dr. %100
Salary Account Dr. %200
To Cash Account %300

(Being expenses done as per detail
attached)

When Journal entry for two or more transactions is combined, it is called
composite Journal entry.

Usually, the transactions in a firm are so numerous that to record the
transactions for a month will require many pages in the journal. At the
bottom of one page the totals of the two columns are written together with
the words “Carried forward” in the ‘particulars’ column. The next page is
started with the respective totals in the two columns with the words
“Brought forward” in the ‘particulars’ column.

CLASSIFICATION OF ACCOUNTS

1.23 The accounting equation tells us that in broad categories the
account is as follows:

1) Assets, indicating the resources, which the firm is enjoying. They
may be in the form of cash, stock of goods, amounts owing from
customers, land, buildings etc.

(i1) Liabilities, indicating the amounts, which the firm owes to
outsiders.

(111)  Capital, indicating the amounts, which the proprietor has invested
in the firm, the accretion to it or a reduction in it.

Since capital is affected by expenses and gains, net results from the
operation of the entity i.e, profit and loss is the part of the capital.

1.24 Accounts may be classified in another manner;

1) Personal Accounts: Personal accounts related to persons, debtors or
creditors. Example- the account of Ram & Co., a credit customer or
the account of Jhaveri & Co., a supplier of goods. The capital
account is the account of the proprietor and, therefore, it is also
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personal but adjustment on account of profits and losses are made
in it.
(1) Impersonal Accounts: Accounts, which are not personal such as

machinery account, cash account, rent account etc. These can be
further sub-divided as follows:

(a) Real Accounts: Accounts, which relate to assets of the firm
but not debt. For example, accounts regarding land,
building, investment, fixed deposits etc., are real accounts.
Cash in hand and the bank accounts are also real.

(b) Nominal Accounts: Accounts, which relate to expenses, losses,
gains, revenue, etc. like salary account, interest paid account,
commission received account. The net result of all the nominal
accounts is reflected as profit or loss, which is transferred to
the capital account. Nominal accounts are, therefore,
temporary.

LEDGER POSTING

1.25 The Journal tells us the accounts to be debited and credited and
also the amounts involved. The amount is written on the left-hand side of
the account to be debited. In the ‘particulars’ column, the name of the
account is written, preceded by the word. “To” The amount is written on
the right-hand side of the account to be credited. In the particulars
column the name of the other account concerned is written preceded by
the word “By”. Consider the following entry.

March 6 | Furniture Account Dr. 1,120

To Modern Furniture 1,120

The amount of 31,120 is debited to the Furniture Account and credited to
Modern Furniture. In the Furniture Account in the particulars column we
write: “To Modern Furniture”. In the account of Modern Furniture is
written: “By Furniture Account.” The two accounts appear as under:
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Furniture Account
Dr. Cr.
Date Particulars | JF | Amount | Date | Particulars | JF | Amount
4 4
March 6 | To Modern | 57 1,120
Furniture
Modern Furniture
Dr. Cr.
Date | Particulars JF | Amount | Date Particulars JF | Amount
4 4
March 6 | By Furniture | 57 | 1,120
Account

“57” is the assumed number of the page on which the entry was made in the
Journal. While preparing one account in the ledger, page no. of the
corresponding account is also given along with the page no. of Journal. The
concept of page number (F.) is highly relevant in manual accounting. But in
computerized accounting environment the page number (F.) is not used.

Sometimes in the Journal there may be two or more accounts to be
debited and only one to be credited or vice versa. The entry given below
shows that the debt of I500 due from Satish has been discharged by
receipt of only ¥485 cash and by ¥15 allowed as discount:

4 4
Cash Account Dr. 485
Discount Account Dr. 15
To Satish 500

In the Cash Account we write “To Satish ¥485”; in the Discount Account
we write “To Satish ¥15”; in the account of Satish we write as follows (On
credit side).

Cash Account 3485
Discount Account 15
But we may also write, By Sundries 3500
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The transactions which have been journalized earlier are posted below:
Ledger
Cash Account
Dr. Cr.
Date Particulars Amount | Date Particulars Amount
2015 7| 2015 g
April 1 | To Capital Alc 10,000 | April 2 | By Bank A/c 7,000
4 | To Bank Alc 100 3 | By Purchases A/c 500
24 | To Krishna A/c 145 30 | By Shyam A/c 215
30 | To Sales Alc 800 30 | By Rent A/c 50
By Salary Alc 100
By Balance c/d 3,180
11,045 11,045
May 1 [To Balance b/d 3,180
Capital Account
Date Particulars Amount | Date Particulars Amount
2015 v 2015 ¢
April 1 | By Cash A/c 10,000
Bank Account
Date Particulars Amount | Date Particulars Amount
2015 v 2015 ¢
April 12 | To Cash Alc 7,000 | April 4 | By Cash A/c 100
April 30 | By Balance c/d 6,900
7,000 7,000
May 1 6,900 6,900
Purchase Account
Date Particulars Amount | Date Particulars Amount
2015 v12015 ¢
April 3 | To Cash A/c 500
April 20 | To Shyam 225
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Sales Account
Date Particulars Amount | Date Particulars Amount
2015 72015 4
April 13 | By Krishna 150
April 30 | By Cash A/c 800
Krishna
Date Particulars Amount | Date Particulars Amount
2015 72015 4
April 13 | To Sales A/c 150 | April 20 | By Cash A/c 145
April 30 | By Discount Alc 5
150 150
Shyam
Date Particulars Amount | Date Particulars Amount
2015 v 2015 4
April 13 | To Cash Alc 215 | April 20 By Purchases A/c 2
To Discount A/c 10 | April 30 | By Discount Alc 5
225 150
Discount Account
Date Particulars Amount | Date Particulars Amount
2015 7| 2015 4
April 24 | To Krishna 5 | April 28 | By Shyam 10
Rent Account
Date Particulars Amount | Date Particulars Amount
2015 7| 2015 4
April 30 | To Cash Alc 50
Salaries Account
Date Particulars Amount | Date Particulars Amount
2015 T\ 2015 ¢
April 30 | To Cash Alc 100
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Balancing an account: At the end of each month or year or any particular
day it may be necessary to ascertain the balance in an account. This is not
a too difficult thing to do; suppose a person has bought goods worth ¥1,000
and has paid only ¥850; he owes ¥150 and that is balance in his account.
To ascertain the balance in any account, what is done is to total the sides
and ascertain the difference; the difference is the balance. If the credit
side is bigger than the debit side, it is a credit balance. In the other case it
is a debit balance. The credit balance is written on the debit side as, “To
Balance c¢/d”; ¢/d means “carried down”. By doing this two sides will be
equal. The totals are written on the two sides opposite one another.

Then the credit balance is written on the credit side as “By balance b/d
(i.e., brought down)”. This is the opening balance for the new period. The
debit balance similarly is written on the credit side as “By Balance c¢/d”,
the totals then are written on the two sides as shown above as then the
debit balance written on the debit side as, “To Balance b/d”, as the

opening balance of the new period.

It should be noted that nominal accounts are not balanced; the balance in
the end are transferred to the profit and loss account. Only personal and
real accounts ultimately show balances. In the illustration given above,
one will have noticed that the capital account, the purchases account,
sales account the discount account, the rent account and the salary
account have not been balanced. The capital account will have to be
adjusted for profit or loss and that is why it has not been balanced yet.

BALANCING AN ACCOUNT

1.26 Once the posting in ledger is completed the accounts are to be
balanced. For balancing an account, first the total of two sides 1is
ascertained. If the total of debit side is higher than the total of credit side,
the difference is known as “Debit Balance” and if the total of credit side is
higher than the total of debit side, the difference is known as “Credit
Balance” Such a difference is placed on the shorter side saying “ To/By
balance carried down (c/d)”. After placing the difference on the shorter
side the two sides become equal.

In the beginning of next year the difference that was placed on the shorter
side of the ledger is carried forward and written on its opposite side,
saying “ To/By Balance Brought forward (b/f)”.
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The accounts, which are to be balanced, are those, which relate to some
property like building, vehicle etc. Certain other accounts are not
balanced at the year-end as they are to be transferred to some other
accounts in order to ascertain the profit or loss of the business.

The balancing process has been shown in the illustration showing ledger
posting above.

SUBSIDIARY BOOKS AND THEIR ADVANTAGES

1.27 In a Business most of the transactions generally relate to receipts
and payments of cash, sale of goods and their purchase. It is convenient to
keep a separate register for each such class of transactions one for
receipts and payments of cash, one for purchase of goods and one for sale
of goods. A register of this type is called a Book of Original Entry or of
Prime Entry. For transactions recorded in such books there will be no
Journal Entry. The system by which transactions of a class are first
recorded in the book, specially meant for it and on the basis of which
ledger accounts are then prepared is known as the Practical System of
Book keeping or even the English System. It should be noted that in this
system, there is no departure from the rules of the double entry system.

These books of original or prime entry are also called Subsidiary Books
since ledger accounts are prepared on their basis and, without the further
process of ledger posting, a trial balance cannot be taken out. Normally,
the following subsidiary books are used in a business:

1) Cash Book to record receipts and payments of cash, including
receipts into and payments out of the bank.

(1) Purchases Book to record credit purchases of goods dealt in or of
the materials and stores required in the factory.

(111)  Purchases Returns Books to record the returns of goods and
materials previously purchased.

(iv)  Sales Book to record the credit sales of the goods dealt in by the

firm.
) Sales Returns Book to record the returns made by the customers.

(vi)  Bills receivable books to record the receipts of promissory notes or
hundies from various parties.
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(vil)  Bills Payable Book to record the issue of the promissory notes or
hundies to other parties.

(vin) Journal (proper) to record the transactions, which cannot be
recorded in any of the seven books, mentioned above.

It may be noted that in all the above cases the word “Journal” may be
used for the word “book”.

In today’s world most of the medium and large companies are working on
ERPs wherein only the basic entry is made with due care. Postings to all
the subsidiary ledgers is automatic. Common ERPS today are Tally ERP,
JD Edwards, Oracle, SAP, BAAN, etc.

Advantages of Subsidiary Books

1.28 The wuse of subsidiary books affords the under mentioned
advantages:

(1) Division of work: Since in the place of one Journal there will be so
many subsidiary books, the accounting work may be divided
amongst a number of clerks.

(i1) Specialization and efficiency: When the same work is allotted to a
particular person over a period of time, he acquires full knowledge
of it and becomes efficient in handling it. Thus the accounting work
will be done efficiently.

(111)  Saving of the time: Various accounting processes can be undertaken
simultaneously because of the use of a number of books. This will
lead to the work being completed quickly.

(iv)  Availability of information: Since a separate register or book is
kept for each class of transactions, the information relating to each
transaction will be available at one place.

v) Facility in checking: When the trial balance does not agree, the
location of the error or errors is facilitated by the existence of
separate books. Even the commission of errors and frauds will be
checked by the use of various subsidiary books.
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Ledger
. Simple Cash Book
Principal
Books
) ) Cash Book with
Financial Discount Column
Books Cash Book
Cash Book with Bank
and Discount Column
Petty Cash Book
Subsidiary
Books
Purchase Book

Sales Book

Sales Return Book

Bills Receivable Book

Bills Payable Book

Journal Proper

Purchases Book

1.29 To record the credit purchases of goods dealt in or materials and
stores used in the factory, a separate register called the Purchases Book
or the Purchases Journal, is usually maintained by firms. The ruling is
given below:

Date Particulars L.F. Details Amount

' '
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It should be remembered that:

(1) Cash purchases are not entered in this book since these will be
entered in the cash book; and

(i1)) Credit purchases of things other than goods or materials, such as
office furniture or typewriters are journalized, they also are not
entered in the Purchases Book.

The particulars column is meant to record the name of the supplier and
name of the articles purchased and the respective quantities. The amount
in respect of each article is entered in the ‘details’ column. After totaling
the various amounts included in a single purchase, the amount for
packing, or other charges is added and the amount for trade discount is
deducted. The net amount is entered in the extreme right-hand column.
The total in this column shows the total purchase made in a period.

Posting the Purchase Book

1.30 The Purchases Book shows the names of the parties from whom
goods have been purchased on credit. These parties are now creditors.
Their accounts have to be credited for the respective amounts shown in
the purchase book. The total of the ‘amounts’ column shows the total
purchases made in a period. The amount is debited to the Purchase
Account to indicate receipt of goods. In illustration 11, the Purchases
Account is debited by I502.12, M/s Brown & Co. is credited by ¥304.12, the
Paper Company by ¥180 and M/s Verma Bros. by ¥18. The total of the
amounts put on the credit side equals the debit. Thus the double entry is
completed.

Sales Book

1.31 The Sales Book is a register specially kept to record credit sales of
goods dealt in by the firm, cash sales are entered in the Cash Book and
not in the Sales Book. Credit sales of things of other than the goods dealt
in by the firm are not entered in the Sales Book, they are journalized. The
ruling is the same as for the Purchases Book.

Entries in the sales book are also made in the same manner as in the
Purchase Book. The particulars column will record the name of the
customers concerned together with particulars and quantities of the goods
sold. For each item, the amount is entered in the ‘details’ column; after
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totaling the amounts for one sale, charges for packing etc, are added and
the trade discount, if any is deducted. The net amount is put in the outer
column. The total of this column will show the total credit sales for a
period.

Posting the Sales Book

1.32 The names appearing in the Sales Book are of those parties, which
have received the goods. The accounts of the parties have to be debited
with the respective amounts. The total of the Sales Book shows the credit
sales made during the period concerned, the amount is credited to the
Sales Account. In the illustration 12, 1,921 is credited to the Sales
Account; %396 is debited to M/s Gupta and Verma 3400 to M/s Jain and
Sons and 1,125 to M/s Mathur & Jain. The amount put on the credit side
is equal to the total of the amount put on the debit side. Thus, the double
entry principle is followed correctly.

Sales Book with GST column

1.33 GST is levied on supply of goods and / or services. It is collected by
the supplier from the recipient on supply of goods or services and
deposited with the government. It is charged at a fixed percentage on the
net price of the goods. It is calculated after giving trade discount, if any.
Generally, a separate column is provided in the Sales Book for GST so
that a proper record is maintained regarding GST collected. Rates of GST
vary from item to item. A separate column in sales book for each rate of
GST helps the assessee in calculating GST liability accurately.

At the end of a certain period, generally quarterly or monthly, the total of
GST column is credited to the GST liability Account. When GST is
deposited with the government, the GST Account is debited, and
Cash/Bank Account is credited. When there is any credit balance in GST
liability Account, it shows the amount payable as GST and hence be
shown in the Balance Sheet as a liability.

Sales Returns Book or Returns Inward Book

1.34 If customers frequently return the goods sold to them, it would be
convenient to record the returns in a separate book, which is named as
the Sales Returns Book or the Returns Inward Book. The ruling of the
book is similar to the Purchases or the Sales Book and entries are also
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made in the same manner. The following, assumed figures, will illustrate

this:
Returns Inward Book
Date Particulars Details | L.F. | Amount
2015 X
June 7 | Sunil Bank & Co.
6 Copies—Double Entry
Book keeping by T.S. Grewal @ I7 42.00
Less: Trade Discount 10% 4.20 37.80
(returns as per debit note no....... )
Kailash & Co.
1 Copy—Business Methods
by R.K. Gupta 3.50
(returns as per debit note no....... ) Total 41.30

Purchase Returns or Returns Outward Book

1.35 Such a book conveniently records return of purchased goods or
materials back to the suppliers. If however, the returns are infrequent, it

may be sufficient to record the transaction in the Journal. The ruling of
the Purchase Returns or Returns Outward Book is similar to that of the
Purchase Book; entries are also similarly made, as the illustration given
below shows:

Returns Outward Book

Date Particulars Amount
2015 ¢ ¢
June 2 | Premier Electric Co.

One 36" Usha Ceiling Fan 175.00
June 28 | Mohan Electric Co.

Ten Iron Heaters 150.00

Less : Discount 15.00 135.00

Total 310.00

Indirect Taxes Committee




30 Background Material on Training Program for Government Officials

Posting of the Return Books

1.36 The Sales Return Book will show the total of the returns made by
customers. Really, the total of the returns is in reduction of the sales.
Therefore, the amount may be debited to the Sales Account. But usually, a
separate account called Returns Inward Account is opened and the total of
the sales returns is debited to this account. The customers who have
returned the goods are credited with the respective amounts.

1.37 It should be noted that on goods being received and accepted back
from the customers, a credit note is issued to the customers concerned.
This shows the amount to be credited to the customer's account.

1.38 Similarly, when goods are returned to supplier they will issue the
necessary credit note; also the firm returning the goods will issue a debit
note to the supplier, indicating the amount for which the supplier is liable
on account of the return.

1.39 The total of Returns Outwards Book shows the total returns made.
The amount can be credited to the purchase Account, but in practice, is
credited to a separate account called Purchase Returns or Returns
Outward Account.

Bills Receivable Books and Bills Payable Books

1.40 If the firm usually receives a number of promissory notes or
hundies, it would be convenient to record the transaction in a separate
book called the Bills Receivable Book. Similarly, if promissory notes or
hundies are frequently issued, the Bills Payable Book will be convenient.

BANK RECONCILIATION STATEMENT

1.41 Strictly speaking, there should be no difference between the
balance shown by the passbook and the cash-book. This is so, if all the
entries are recorded in both. However, on a particular date it is possible
that balances of both the books do not tally i.e., some entries may or may
not have been recorded in the cash-book or the pass-book. Efforts are
made for their reconciliation. This reconciliation 1is prepared and
presented in the form of a statement commonly known as Bank
Reconciliation Statement.
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Procedure for reconciling the cash-book balance with the Pass-
book balance

1.42 Before proceeding further, one must understand the meaning of the
term “Dr. Balance as per cash book”. This means deposits in the bank or
cash at bank or Cr. balance as per pass book. Similarly, ‘Cr-balance as per
cash book’ means excess amount over deposits, withdrawn by the account
holder or overdraft balance or Dr. Balance as per pass-book.

Bank reconciliation can be started from any of the following four balances:

1. Dr. Balance as per cash book
2. Cr. Balance as per cash book
3. Dr. balance as per pass book
4. Cr. balance as per pass book

When causes of differences are known, one can start the reconciliation by
taking any of the balances stated above and proceed further with the
causes. If the balance of the other book is more on account of the said
causes then add the amount. If the balance of the other book is less on
account of the said causes then subtract the amount.

The main causes of differences are:

1. Cheques received and accounted not deposited
11. Cheques deposited not credited

11i. Cheques issued not handed over

1v. Cheques issued not banked by creditors

V. Cash In Transit

vi. Bank charges debited not accounted

vii. ,,, few more.

But if the causes of differences are not known then one has to compare the
debit entries of cash book with the credit entries of the pass-book and vice-
versa. The entries, which do not tally in the course, are the causes of
difference in the balances of both the books. Once the causes are located,
their effects on both the books are analyzed and then the reconciliation
statement is prepared to arrive at the actual bank balance.

CAPITAL AND REVENUE RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURE

1.43 Accounting aims at ascertaining and presenting the results of the
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business for an accounting period. For ascertaining the periodical
business results, the nature of transactions should be analyzed whether
they are of capital or revenue nature. Revenue Expenses relate to the
operations of the business of an accounting period or the items of
expenditure, benefits of which do not extend beyond that period. Revenue
Receipts relates to the revenue earned during the period. Capital
Expenditure, on the other hand, generates enduring benefits and helps in
revenue generation over more than one accounting period. Revenue
Expenses must be associated with the operations of the entity. Therefore,
whereas production and sales generate revenue in the earning process,
use of goods and services in support of those functions causes expenses to
occur. Expenses are recognized in the Profit & Loss Account through
matching principal which tells us when and how much of the expenses is
to be charged against revenue. A part of the expenditure can be
capitalized only when these can be traced directly to definable streams of
future benefits.

1.44 The distinction of transaction into revenue and capital is done for
the purpose of placing them in Profit and Loss Account or in the Balance
Sheet. For example, revenue expenditures are shown in the profit and loss
account as their benefits are for one accounting period i.e., in which they
are incurred while capital expenditures are placed on the asset side of the
balance sheet as they will generate benefits for more than one accounting
period and will be transferred to profit and loss account of the year on the
basis of utilization of that benefit in particular accounting year. Hence,
both capital and revenue expenditures are ultimately transferred to profit
and loss account. The distinction has relevance in GST as any goods which
are captalized in the books of account are considered as ‘capital goods’
whereas all other inward supply of goods is considered as ‘inputs’. There
1s no determination or disclosure criterion under GST Law as to the
concept of capitalization, the taxpayers have to rely on the accounting
concept of capitalization. Further, the concept of capitalization could have
relevance in some of the blocked credit cases also.

1.45 Revenue expenditures are transferred to profit and loss account in
the year of spending while capital expenditures are transferred to profit
and loss account over the period during which their benefits are utilized.
Therefore, we can conclude that it is the time factor, which is the main
determinant for transferring the expenditure to profit and loss account.
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Also expenses are recognized in profit and loss account through matching
concept which tells us when and how much of the expenses to be charged
against revenue. However, distinction between capital and revenue
creates a considerable difficulty. In many cases borderline between the
two is very thin. Expertise and experience will help in forming a
professional judgement about this difference.

Considerations in determining Capital and Revenue Expenditure

1.46 Following are the basic considerations for determining whether an
expenditure is capital or revenue in nature:

If an expenditure meets the definition of Asset given in the Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, the same should be capitalized. Otherwise, it
should be treated as revenue expense and should be charged to Profit and Loss
Account.

Asset: An asset is a resource controlled by the enterprise as a result of past
events from which future economic benefits are expected to flow to the
enterprise.

If an expenditure does not meet above definition, the same should be charged to
profit and loss account as expense.

Capital Receipts and Revenue Receipts

1.47 Just as a clear distinction between Capital and Revenue
expenditure is necessary, in the same manner capital receipts must be
distinguished from revenue receipts.

Receipts which are obtained in course of normal business activities are
revenue receipts (e.g. receipts from sale of goods or services, interest
income etc.). On the other hand, receipts which are not revenue in nature
are capital receipts (e.g. receipts from sale of fixed assets or investments,
secured or unsecured loans, owner contributions etc.). Revenue and
capital receipts are recognised on accrual basis as soon as the right of
receipt is established. Revenue receipts should not be equated with the
actual cash receipts. Revenue receipts are credited to the Profit and Loss
Account.

On the other hand, Capital receipts are not directly credited to Profit and
Loss Account. For example, when a fixed asset is sold for 392,000 (cost
%90,000), the capital receipts 92,000 is not credited to Profit and Loss
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Account. Profit/Loss on sale of fixed assets is calculated and credited to
Profit and Loss Account as follows:

Sale Proceeds 92,000
Cost (%90,000)
Profit 32,000

For more clarity on Capital and Revenue Receipts and Expenditures,
relevant Accounting Standards may be referred.

CASE STUDY
1.48 Journalise the following transactions in the books of a trader
Debit Balance on January 1,2015

Cash in Hand 38,000, Cash at Bank 25,000, Stock of Goods %20,000,
Furniture 32,000, Building ¥10,000.Sundry Debtors: Vijay ¥2,000, Anil
1,000 and Madhu %2,000.

Credit Balances on January 1, 2015:
Sundry Creditors: Anand ¥5,000, Loan from Bablu %10,000.

Following were further transactions in the month of January, 2015:

Jan. 1 Purchased goods worth ¥5,000 for cash less 20% trade discount
and 5% cash discount.

Jan. 4 Received ¥1,980 from Vijay and allowed him %20 as discount.

Jan. 6 Purchased goods from Bharat ¥5,000.

Jan. 8 Purchased plant from Mukesh for ¥5,000 and paid %100 as
cartage for bringing the plant to the factory and another 3200
as installation charges.

Jan. 12 | Sold goods to Rahim on credit ¥600.

Jan. 15 | Rahim became insolvent and could pay only 50 paise in a rupee.

Jan. 18 | Sold goods to Ram for cash ¥1,000.

Jan. 20 | Paid salary to Ratan 32,000.

Jan. 21 | Paid Anand 4,800 in full settlement.

Jan. 26 | Interest received from Madhu 3200.

Jan. 28 | Paid to Bablu interest on loan %500.

Jan. 31 | Sold goods for cash ¥500.

Jan. 31 | Withdrew goods from business for personal use 3200.
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Solution:
Cash Account
Dr. Cr.
Date Particulars LF. % | Date Particulars L.F. g
2015 2015
Jan. 1 To Balance b/d 8,000 |[Jan. 1 By Purchases 3,800
Alc
Jan. 4 To Vijay 1,980 |Jan. 8 By Plant A/c 300
Jan. 15 | To Rahim 300 |Jan. 20 | By Salary Alc 2,000
Jan. 18 | To Sales Alc 1,000 |[Jan. 21 | By Anand 4,800
Jan. 26 | To Interest Alc 200 |Jan. 28 | By Interest  of 500
Loan Alc
Jan. 31 | To Sales Alc 500 [Jan. 31 | By Balance c/d 580
11,980 11,980
Feb. 1 To Balance b/d 580
Interest Account
Dr. Cr.
Date Particulars % | Date Particulars 4
Jan. 31 | To Balance 200 | Jan. 26 | By Cash A/c 200
b/d
200 200
Feb. 1 By Balance b/d 200
Bank Account
Dr. Cr.
Date Particulars R. | Date | Particulars 3
Jan.1 | To | Balance 25,000 | Jan. 31 By | Balance c/d 25,000
b/d
25,000 25,000
Feb.1 | To | Balance 25,000

b/d
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Stock Account
Dr. Cr.
Date Particulars Date Particulars 54
Jan.1 | To | Balance b/d 20,000|Jan. 31 | By | Balance c/d 20,000
20,000 20,000
Feb. 1 To | Balance b/d 20,000
Furniture Account
Dr. Cr.
Date | Particulars % | Date | Particulars 4
Jan. 1| To Balance b/d | 2,000 | Jan. 31 By Balance c¢/d 2,000
2,000 2,000
Feb. 1| To Balance b/d 2,000
Building Account
Dr. Cr.
Date | Particulars % | Date | Particulars g
Jan. 1| To Balance b/d | 10,000| Jan. 31 By Balance c¢/d 10,000
10,000 10,000
Feb. 1| To Balance b/d [10,000
Vijay
Dr. Cr.
Date | Particulars X | Date | Particulars £4
Jan. To Balance 2,000 | Jan. By Cash Alc 1,980
1 b/d 4
- By Discount Alc 20
2,000 2,000
Anil
Dr. Cr.
Date Particulars X | Date | Particulars £4
Jan.1 | To Balance 1.000 | Jan. 31 By Balance c/d 1,000
b/d
1,000 1,000
Feb.1 | To Balance b/d| 1,000
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Madhu
Dr. Cr
Date | Particulars X | Date | Particulars £4
Jan. 1| To Balance b/d 2,000 | Jan. 31 By Balance c/d 2,000
2,000 2,000
Feb. 1| To Balance b/d 2,000
Anand
Dr. Cr
Date | Particulars % | Date Particulars £4
Jan. 21| To Cash Ale 4,800 | Jan. 1 | By Balance b/d 5,000
Jan. 21| To Discount 200
Ale
5,000 5,000
Capital Account
Dr. Cr.
Date | Particulars X | Date | Particulars £4
Jan. 31| To Balance c¢/d | 55,000 Jan. By Balance b/d 55,000
1
55,000 55,000
Feb. 1| By Balance b/d 55,000
Babu’s Loan Account
Dr. Cr
Date Particulars % | Date | Particulars 4
Jan. 31 | To Balance 10,000| Jan. By Balance b/d 10,000
c/d 1
10,000 10,000
Feb. 1| By Balance b/d 10,000

Indirect Taxes Committee



38 Background Material on Training Program for Government Officials

Purchases Account

Dr. Cr.
Date | Particulars % | Date | Particulars g
Jan. 1| To Cash 3,800 | Jan. 31 By Drawings A/c 200
Jan. 1| To Discount 200 | Jan. 31 By Balance c¢/d 8,800
Jan. 6| To Bharat 5,000 -
9,000 9,000
Feb. 1| To Balance b/d 8,800
Discount Account
Dr. Cr.
Date | Particulars % | Date | Particulars g
Jan. 4 | To Vijay 20 | Jan. By Purchases Alc 200
1
Jan. 31| To Balance c¢/d 380 | Jan. 21 By Anand 200
400 400
Feb. 1| By Balance b/d 380
Bharat
Dr. Cr.
Date | Particulars % | Date Particulars 3
Jan. 31| To | Balance c¢/d 5,000 | Jan. 6 | By | Purchases A/c 5,000
5,000 5.000
Feb.1 | By | Balance b/d 5,000
Plant Account
Dr. Cr.
Date | Particulars R | Date | Particulars 3
Jan. 8| To Mukesh 5,000 |Jan. 31| By Balance c¢/d 5,300
Jan. 8| To Cash Alc 300 -
5,300 5,300
Feb. 1| To Balance b/d 5,300
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Interest on Loan Account

Dr. Cr.
Date | Particulars T | Date Particulars g
Jan. 28| To | Cash Alc 500 | Jan. 31| By Balance c¢/d 500
500 500
Feb. 1| To | Balance b/d 500
Mukesh
Dr. Cr.
Date | Particulars T | Date Particulars 4
Jan. 31| To Balance c¢/d 5,000 | Jan. 8 | By Plant A/c 5,000
5,000 5,000
Feb.1 | By Balance b/d 5,000
Sales Account
Dr. Cr.
Date | Particulars T | Date Particulars 4
Jan. 31| To Balancec/d | 2,100 | Jan. 21 | By Rahim 600
Jan. 18 | By Cash Alc 1,000
Jan. 31 | By Cash Alc 500
2,100 | Feb. 1 By Balance b/d 2,100
Rahim
Dr. Cr.
Date | Particulars T | Date Particulars 4
Jan. 12| To Sales Alc 600 | Jan. 15| By Cash Alc 300
___ | Jan. 15| By Bad Debts A/c 300
600 600
Bad Debts Account
Dr. Cr.
Date | Particulars % | Date Particulars £4
Jan. 15| To | Rahim 300 | Jan. 31| By Balance c/d 300
300 300
Feb.1 To | Balance b/d 300

Indirect Taxes Committee




40 Background Material on Training Program for Government Officials

Salary Account

Dr. Cr.
Date | Particulars % | Date Particulars g
Jan. 20| To Cash Alc 2,000 |Jan. 31 | By Balance b/d 2,000
2.000 2.000

Feb. 1| To Balance b/d 2,000

Drawings Account

Dr. Cr.
Date | Particulars X | Date Particulars 3
Jan. 31| To Purchases A/c | 200 | Jan. 31| By Balance c/d 200
200 200

Feb. 1| To Balance b/d 200
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UNDERSTANDING THE TRIAL BALANCE

2.1 After posting the accounts in the ledger, a statement is prepared
to show separately the debit and credit balances. Such a statement is
known as the Trial Balance. It may also be prepared by listing each and
every account and entering in separate columns the totals of the debit
and credit sides. Whichever way i1s prepared, the totals of the two
columns should agree. An agreement indicates reasonable accuracy of
the accounting work. If the two sides do not agree, then this is simply an
arithmetic error(s).

This follows from the fact that under the Double Entry System, the
amount written on the debit sides of various accounts is always equal to
the amounts entered on the credit sides of other accounts and vice versa.
Hence, the totals of the Debit Balance (debit sides) must be equal to the
totals of the Credit Balance (credit sides). Once this agreement is
established, there is reasonable confidence that the accounting work is
free from clerical errors, though is not proof of cent percent accuracy,
because some errors of principle and compensating errors may still
remain.

OBJECTIVES OF PREPARING THE TRIAL BALANCE
2.2 The preparation of trial balance has the following objectives:

(1) This trial balance enables one to establish whether the posting
and other accounting processes have been carried out without
committing arithmetical errors. In other words, the trial balance
helps to establish arithmetical accuracy of the books.

(1) Financial statements are normally prepared on the basis of
agreed trial balance, otherwise the work may be cumbersome.
Preparation of financial statements, therefore, is the second
objective.
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(1i1) The trial balance serves as a summary of what is contained in the
ledger. The ledger may have to be seen only when details are
required in respect of an account.

EXTRACTING BALANCES AND PREPARATION

2.3 Once the Journal entries are posted to the respective accounts
there would be debit or credit balances in each account. Arriving at such
debit or credit balances is called the process of extracting balances.
These balances will constitute the trial balance. There are threemethods
of preparation of trial balance. These are explained below:

(i) Total Amount method

Under this method, every ledger account is totaled and that total
amount (both of debit side and credit side) is transferred to trial balance.
In this method, trial balance can be prepared as soon as ledger account
is totaled. Time taken to balance the ledger accounts is saved under this
method as balance can be found out in the trial balance itself. The
difference of totals of each ledger account is the balance of that
particular account. This method is not commonly used as it cannot
help in the preparation of the financial statements

(ii) Balance method

Under this method, every ledger account is balanced, and those balances
only are carry forward to the trial balance. This method is used
commonly by the accountants and helps in the preparation of the
financial statements. Financial statements are prepared on the basis of
the balances of the ledger accounts.

(iii) Total Amount and Balance method

Under this method, the above two explained methods are combined.
Under this method statement of trial balance contains seven columns
instead of five columns. This has been explained with the help of the
following example:
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Trial Balance of X as at 31.3.2016

Sl. | Heads of Account | L.F. Debit Credit Debit Credit
No. Balance | Balance Total Total
R®) ®) ®)
1. Cash Account 7,500 35,500 28,000
2. Furniture 3,000 3,000
Account
3. Salaries Account 2,500 2,500
4. Shyam’s Account 3,500 21,500 25,000
5. Purchases 26,000 26,000
Account
6. Purchase Returns 500 500
Account
7. Ram’s Account 4,900 30,000 25,100
8. Sales Account 30,500 30,500
9. Sale Returns Account 100 100
10. | Capital Account 9,500 500 10,000
Total 44,000 44,000 | 1,19,100 | 1,19,100

OPENING TRIAL BALANCE AND CLOSING TRIAL BALANCE

2.4 Opening trial balance is nothing but the closing trial balance of
the previous financial year. After entering the transactions that have
taken place during the year, into the respective accounts in the ledger,
the balances are extracted. After these entries are passed in the Journal
for rectifying errors,
providing accrued income etc., and these entries are posted in the
respective ledger accounts. Then the final balances are extracted which
will form the base for the preparation of the closing trial balance.

for providing for outstanding liabilities, for

COMPARISON OF OPENING LEDGER BALANCES WITH THE
CLOSING TRIAL BALANCE OF THE PREVIOUS YEAR

2.5 One of the important responsibilities of an auditor is to compare
the opening balances in the ledger with the closing trial balance of the
previous year. This will ensure that the outstanding expenses, accrued
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income and other provisions relating to the last year are correctly
reflected in the current year’s ledger.

GROSS TRIAL BALANCE AND NET TRIAL BALANCE

2.6 Please refer to para no. 2.3 where reference has been made to
total and net balances method for preparing the trial balance. Even
though this method is more detailed, it will provide a better insight into
the nature and extend of operations in an account.

QUARTERLY TRIAL BALANCE BY LISTED COMPANIES

2.7 Nowadays listed companies are required to publish quarterly
results in respect of their operations. A detailed comparison is also made
between the current quarterly figures and the corresponding quarterly
figure of the previous financial year. This information would be quite
useful to the auditor.

CASE STUDY- 1-BALANCE METHOD

2.8 Given below is a ledger extract relating to the business of X and
Co. as on March, 31, 2016. You are required to prepare the Trial
Balance by the Balance Amount Method.

Cash Account Ledger

Dr Cr.
Particulars < | Particulars ¢
To Capital Alc 10,000 | By Furniture A/c 3,000
To Ram’s Alc 25,000 | By Salaries Alc) 2,500
To Cash Sales 500 | By Shyam’s A/c 21,000
By Cash Purchases 1,000

By Capital Alc 500

___ | By Balancec/d 7,500

35,500 35,500
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Furniture Account

Dr Cr.
Particulars < | Particulars 7
To Cash Alc 3,000 | By Balance c/d 3,000
3.000 3.000
Salaries Account
Dr Cr.
Particulars < | Particulars 7
To Cash Alc 2,500 | By Balance c/d 2,500
2,600 2,600
Shyam’s Account
Dr Cr.
Particulars < | Particulars 7
To | Cash Alc 21,000 | By | Purchases A/c (Credit 25,000
Purchases)
To | Purchase 500
Returns A/c
To | Balance c/d
3.500
25,000 25,000
Purchases Account
Dr Cr.
Particulars < | Particulars 4
To | Cash A/e (Cash | 1,000 | By Balance c/d 26,000
Purchases)
To | Sundries as per
Purchases Book | 25,000 e
(Credit Purchases)
26,000 26,000

Indirect Taxes Committee



46 Background Material on Training Program for Government Officials

Purchases Returns Account

Dr Cr.
Particulars v | Particulars 4
To Balance c/d 500 | By Sundries as per
- Purchases Return Book 500
500 500

Ram’s Account

Dr. Cr.
Particulars < | Particulars ¢
To Sales A/c (Credit Sales) | 30,000 | By Sales Returns A/c 100
By Cash Alc 25,000

_____ | By Balancec/d 4,900

30,000 30,000

Sales Account

Dr. Cr.

Particulars < | Particulars T

To Balance c/d 30,500 | By Cash A/c (Cash Sales) 500
By Sundries as per Sales Book

o (Credit sales) 30,000

30,500 30,500

Sales Returns Account

Dr. Cr.
Particulars < | Particulars T
To Sundries as per Sales By Balance c/d 100
Returns Book 100 _

100 100
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Capital Account
Dr. Cr.
Particulars < | Particulars <
To Cash Alc 500 | By Cash Alc 10,000
To Balance c/d -
9.500
10,000 10,000
Solution:
Trial Balance of X and Co. as at 31.03.2016
Sl. | Name of Account Debit Credit
No. Balance | Balance
4 <
1. Cash A/c 7,500
2. Furniture A/c 3,000
3. Salaries Alc 2,500
4. Shyam’s Alc 3,500
5. Purchases Alc 26,000
6. Purchases Returns Alc 500
7. Ram’s A/c 4,900
8. Sales Alc 30,500
9. Sales Returns A/c 100
10. | Capital Alc 9.500
44,000 44,000

CASE STUDY 2

2.9 One of your clients Mr. Singhania has asked you to finalise his
accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2016. Till date, he himself has
recorded the transactions in books of accounts. As a basis for audit, Mr.
Singhania furnished you with following statement.

Dr. Balance | Cr. Balance
Singhania’s capital 1,556
Singhania’s Drawings 564
Leasehold premises 750
Sales 2,750
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Dr. Balance | Cr. Balance

Due from customers 530
Purchases 1,259
Purchases return 264

Loan from bank 256
Creditors 528
Trade expenses 700
Cash at bank 226
Bills payable 100
Salaries and wages 600

Stock (1.4.2015) 264
Rent and rates 463

Sales return 98

5,454 5,454

TRIAL BALANCE

The closing stock on 31t March, 2016 was valued at ¥ 574. Mr.
Singhania claims that he has recorded every transaction correctly as the
trial balance is tallied. Check the accuracy of the above trial balance.

Solution:
Corrected Trial Balance of Mr. Singhania
As on 315t March, 2016

Particulars Dr. Amount ¥| Cr. Amount ¥
Singhania Capital 1,556
Singhania’s Drawing 564

Lease of Premises 750

Sales 2,750
Due from customers 530

Purchases 1,259

Purchases returns 264
Loan from Bank 256
Creditors 528
Trade expenses 700

Cash at Bank 226
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Particulars Dr. Amount ¥| Cr. Amount <
Bills payable 100
Salaries and wages 600
Stock (1.4.2015) 264
Rent and rates 463
Sales return 98

5,454 5,454
Reasons:
1. Due from customers is an asset, so it will be a debit balance.
2. Purchases return account always shows a credit balance because

stock (assets) go out of the business.

3. Creditor is a liability, so it will be a credit balance.
4, Bills payable is a liability, so it will be a credit balance
5. Stock (opening) represents assets, so it will have a debit balance.
6. Sales return account always shows a debit balance because stock

(assets) come in to the business.

IMPORTANT LEDGERS IN TRIAL BALANCE UNDER GST

2.10 Though every account of Trial Balance is a summarized reflection

of transactions undertaken during a period, and requires a review in

entirety, yet certain accounts require special mention in GST, which are

as follows:

a.

Sales / Services / Income Account: The total of this account
reflects the total supply made by a person during a period. This
figure should generally be equal to the supply shown in the GST
returns by the person. However, in special cases, the balance of
this account may differ from the returns when the income does
not coincide with supply. This usually happens in case of
continuous supply of goods/ services. This account will be net of
Credit notes / debit notes issued for such heads during the tax
period.
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GST Payable Account: This account reflects the GST liability as
payable at the end of a period and should match with the amount
of tax paid by Cash Ledger of that period.

GST receivable account: This account reflects the excess balance
of Input Tax Credit as being carried forward as the same could
not be utilized during a particular period. GST receivable account
should generally match the Credit Ledger as it reflect on the GST
portal of the Assessee.

Branch transfer/ Supplies: This account is netted in the
consolidated financial statement of an entity and is available only
in Trial Balance. This account reflects the inter state / GSTIN
supplies of an Assessee and thus, is exigible to GST.

Advance from Customers: This account 1is reflective of the
amounts received as advance for future supplies and should be
added to the taxable supplies to derive total GST liability.
However, any opening balance of such account should be
subtracted from closing balance as the same would have been
exigible to GST in last tax period.

Income accrued but not due: This account represents the income
which i1s accrued in the profit and loss account but for which
completion is yet to happen as only part of the supply has been
effected, however, income has been accrued on the basis of accrual
concept of income. The closing balance of this account to the
income of profit and loss account to derive taxable supply.
Opening balance of such account should be added to income as
reflecting in profit and loss account as the same was not levied to
tax in earlier tax period.

Income due but not accrued: This account reflects the amounts for
which invoices has been raised based on the agreement with the
recipient, however, supplies to this extent are yet to be effected.
The account stems from the fact that the accrual of income
(supply made) and right to recover amount from recipient can fall
in different point of time.

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India



Understanding the Trial Balance 51

RELEVANCE OF TRIAL BALANCE UNDER GST

2.10 The GST Law has deemed person (called ‘distinct person’) concept
where a person carrying on business in multiple States is required to
obtain the registration in each of the States from where he has been
making supply. Further, the taxpayers have ‘option’ to take separate
registration within a single State for different place(s) of business. Each
such registration will constitute a ‘distinct person’ separate and distinct
from each other although all have the same PAN.

2.11 All the compliances under GST are required to be carried out with
respect to each of the GSTIN separately. There could always be
possibility of multi state operating organization to have multiple
registrations and doing separate compliance with respect to each of the
registrations separately. However, the books of account and trial balance
may have been maintained at consolidated level wherein State level
separate ledgers may have been maintained for the tax liability and
input tax credits.

2.12 There could be need for the business to identify the transactions
pertaining to a single GSTIN out of the consolidated trial balance having
entity level transactions. This could be done either maintaining separate
GSTIN wise trial balance or maintaining separate identifications for the
transactions pertaining to a particular GSTIN. It is always suggested to
have (or be able to extract) separate GSTIN wise trial balance as it
would be useful not only for the taxpayers to discharge its obligations
but also easier for the department to undertake the audit and
verification process.
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JOURNAL AND FINAL ACCOUNTS

IMPORTANCE OF JOURNAL

3.1
(1)
(i)
(iii)
(iv)
v)

We are now familiar with the Journal. We also know that:
Cash transactions are recorded in the cash book;

Credit purchases of goods or materials are recorded in the
purchases book;

Credit sales of goods are recorded in the sales book;
Returns from customers are recorded in the sales returns book; and

Returns to suppliers are entered in the purchase returns book.

Bill transactions are entered in the Bills Receivable Books or the Bills
Payable Books, if these are maintained. Apart from the transactions
mentioned above, there are some entries also which have to be recorded.
For them the proper place is the Journal. In fact, if there is no special
book meant to record a transaction, it is recorded in thedJournal(proper).
The role of thedJournalis thus restricted to the following types of entries:

@

(i)

(iif)

@iv)

Opening entries: When books are started for the newyear, the
opening balances of assets and liabilities are journalised.

Closing entries: At the end of the year the profit and loss account
has to be prepared. For this purpose, the nominal accounts are
transferred to this account. This is done throughjournalentries
called Closing Entries.

Rectification entries: If an error has been committed, it is
rectified through a Journal Entry.

Transfer entries: If some amount is to be transferred from one
account to another, the transfer will be made through
ajournalentry.
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v) Adjusting entries: At the end of the year the amount of expenses
or income may have to be adjusted for amounts received in advance
or for amounts not yet settled in cash. Such an adjustment is also
made throughjournalentries. Usually, the entries pertain to the

following:
(a) Outstanding expenses, i.e., expenses incurred but not yet
paid;

(b) Prepared expenses, i.e., expenses paid in advance for some
period in the future;

(c) Interest on capital, i.e., the interest which the proprietor
thinks proper to allow on his investment; and

(d) Depreciation, i.e., fall in the value of the assets used on
account of wear and tear.

For all these, journal entries are necessary.

PREPARATION OF FINAL ACCOUNTS

3.2 In case of certain entities, the statute governing the entity prescribes
the formats for preparation of financial statements, such as, for companies,
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, lays down the presentation
formats. Similarly for Banks, Banking Regulations Act, 1949, prescribes the
formats for banks. In such cases, the relevant formats shall be followed for
preparation of final accounts (financial statements). Accordingly, the
discussion in this chapter regarding preparation of final accounts is relevant
for entities for which no formats have been prescribed under any statute,
such as, Proprietorship Concerns, Partnership firms, etc.

3.3 The principal function of final statements of account (Profit and
Loss Account and the Balance Sheet) is to exhibit truly and fairly the
profitability and the financial position of the business to which they
relate. In order to ensure that these are properly drawn up, it is essential
that a proper record of transactions entered into by the business during
the period of account should be maintained. The basic principles in regard
to accumulation of accounting data are:

(1) a distinction should be made between capital and revenue, both
income and expenditure;
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(i)

also income and expenses relating to a period of account should be
separated from those of another period. What is more, different
items of income and expenditure should be accumulated under
significant heads so as to disclose the sources from which capital
has been procured and the nature of liabilities which are
outstanding for payment.

Having regard to these basic principles, the various matters to which
attention should be paid for determining the different aspects of
transactions, a record of which should be kept, and the different heads of
account under which various items of income and expenditure should be

accumulated, are stated below:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Since the final statements of account are intended to show the
profitability of the business and not that of its proprietors, it is
essential that all personal income and expenditure should be
separated from business income and expenditure.

A distinction should be made between capital and revenue, both
receipts and expenditure. Different types of income and
expenditure should be classified under separate heads. Assets
should be included in the Balance Sheet at a valuation arrived at,
on the same basis on which these assets are valued in the
preceding year. Likewise, a provision for income and expenses
which areaccrued but not paid should be made by estimation or
otherwise on the same basis as in the previous year.

Every information considered material for judging the profitability
of the business or its financial position should be disclosed. For
example, when the labour charges have increased on account of
bonus having been paid to workmen, the amount of bonus paid
should be disclosed. Similarly, if some of the items of stock are not
readily saleable, these should be valued at their approximate sale
price and the basis of valuation and value of such stocks shown
separately.

Though the record of the transactions should be maintained
continuously, at the end of each accounting period (accounting
year), the transactions of the period which has closed should be cut
off from those of the succeeding period.
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(e) It should be seen that only the effect of transactions which were
concluded before the close of period of account has been adjusted in
the accounts of the year unless they qualify to be adjusting event in
accordance with AS 4, Contingencies and Events OccurringAfter the
Balance Sheet. For example, when a sale of goods is to take place
only after the goods have been inspected by the purchaser and the
inspection had not been made before the close of the year, it would
be incorrect to treat the goods as a sale in the accounts of the year.

INTER-RELATIONSHIP OF THE TWO STATEMENTS

3.4 One of the points to be remembered is that of total expenditure
incurred, some appears in the Profit and Loss Account and some in the
Balance Sheet. Consider a few examples: of the total amount spent on
manufacturing goods, that part which is attributable to finished goods in
stock is shown in the Balance Sheet as closing stock and the amount
debited to the Trading (or the Profit and Loss) Account is thereby reduced.
When a machine is purchased, that part of it which is attributable to the
year concerned, as depreciation, is debited to the Profit and Loss Account
and the balance is shown in the Balance Sheet as an asset. Next year
again, part of the cost will be debited to the Profit and Loss Account and
the remaining cost will be shown as an asset in the Balance Sheet. These
illustrations show that the two statements, the Profit and Loss Account
and the Balance Sheet, are thoroughly inter-related. The assets shown in
the Balance Sheet are mostly only the remainder of the expenditure
incurred after a suitable amount has been charged to the Profit and Loss
or the Trading Account. For preparing the two statements properly, it is
of the greatest importance that the amounts to be charged to the Profit
and Loss Account should be properly determined; otherwise both
statements will show an incorrect position. The principle that governs this
is called the Matching Principle.

Matching Principle

3.5. This principle demands that the expenses incurred to earn the
revenue should be properly matched. This means the following:

(a) If a certain revenue and income is entered in the Profit and Loss
Account all the expenses relating to it, whether or not payment has
been actually made, should be debited to the Profit and Loss
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Account. This is why, at the end of the year an entry is passed, to
bring into account, the outstanding expenses. That is also the
reason why the opening stock of goods is debited to the Trading
Account (or the Profit and Loss Account) since the relevant sale is
credited in the same account.

(b) If some expense has been incurred but against it sale will take
place in the next year or income will be received next year, the
expense should not be debited to the current year’s Profit and Loss
Account, but should be carried forward as an asset and shown in
the Balance Sheet and debited to the Profit and Loss Account when
the relevant income will be also be credited. It is because of this
principle that:

(1) at the end of the year inventory of all the stocks in hand is
prepared and is valued at cost. The credit to the Trading
Account (or the Profit and Loss Account) has the effect of
reducing the debit in the Trading Account to the extent
goods remain unsold or unutilized. These will be sold or used
up next year and the cost will therefore, be properly debited
to the next year’s Trading Account. If thenet realizable
value, 1.e., estimated selling price adjusted by the costs to
complete the sale, is lower than the cost, stock will be valued
at this valueand not at cost. This has the effect of raising the
net debit in the Trading Account higher than the cost of
goods sold or utilised in the year, but that is proper. Thenet
realisable value below cost means that the loss has occurred
in the year and therefore, it is appropriate to debit same
incurrent year’s Trading and Profit and Loss Account;

(1) at the end of the year prepaid expenses are brought into the
books by debiting prepaidexpenses account and crediting the
expenses concerned. The effect of this is also to transfer the
debit in respect of prepaid expenses to the next year when
the benefit from such expenses will accrue; and

(i11) at the end of the year, appropriate depreciation of fixed
assets 1s charged to the profit and loss account (and credited
to the assets concerned). In this manner, that part of the
cost of the assets which has been used up for earning
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current year’s revenue 1is debited to the Profit and Loss
Account.

(c) If an income or revenue is received in the current year but the work
against it has to be done and the cost in respect of it have to be
incurred next year, the income or the revenue belongs to next years
even though the money may have been received in current year. It
should be shown in the Balance Sheet on the liabilities side as
“income received in advance” and should be credited to the Profit
and Loss Account of the next year. Firms, except those which follow
the cash system (and such firms are usually of specialised personal
service nature), do not credit to the Profit and Loss Account that
income or revenue against which service is to be rendered in
future. Newspapers or magazines usually receive subscriptions in
advance for a year. The part of subscription that covers copies to be
supplied in the next year is treated as income received in advance.

An exception: There appears to be one exception to the rule that only such
costs as have yielded or is expected to yield revenue should only be
debited to Profit and Loss Account. For example, if a fire has occurred and
has damaged the firm’s property the loss must be debited to the Profit and
Loss Account to the extent it is not covered by insurance. A loss, resulting
from the fall of selling price below the cost or from some debts turning
bad, must similarly be debited to the Profit and Loss Account. If this is
not done the profit will be over-stated.

In this regard, the definition of ‘expense’ given in the Framework for
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India as reproduced below may be
noted.

“Expense: are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period
in the form of outflows or depletions of assets or incurrences of liabilities
that result in decreases in equity!, other than those relating to
distributions to equity participants2.”

! Capital
2 Owners of the entity
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TRADING ACCOUNT

3.6 At the end of the year, as has been seen above, it is necessary to
ascertain the net profit or the net loss. For this purpose, it is first
necessary to know the gross profit or gross loss. Gross Profit is the
difference between the selling price and the cost of the goods sold. For a
trading firm, the cost of goods sold can be ascertained by adjusting the
cost of goods stillin hand at the end of the year against the purchases.
Suppose, in the first year, the net purchases (that is after deducting
returns) total ¥1,00,000 and that ¥15,000 worth of goods (at cost) were not
sold at the end of the year. The cost of the goods sold will then be
85,000. If in the next year purchases are ¥ 1,50,000 and the cost of goods
in hand at the end of the year is 320,000 the cost of goods sold will be
$1,45,000. Thus:

%

Cost of the stock of goods in the beginning of the year 15,000
Purchases 1,50,000
1,65,000

Less: Cost of the stock of goods at the end of the year 20,000
Cost of goods sold 1,45,000

If net sales, i.e., after adjustment for sales returns, total ¥2,00,000 the
gross profit will be ¥ 55,000, i.e., ¥2,00,000 — 1,45,000. The Profit is called
gross profit since from its expenses are still to be deducted for knowing
the net profit.

Gross profit is usually ascertained by preparing a Trading Account and
will appear as:

Trading Account for the year ending

Dr. Cr.
4 4
To Opening Stock 15,000 | By Sales Account 2, 00,000
To Purchase Account 1,50,000 | By Stock in hand 20,000
To Gross Profit carried to P 55,000
& L Alc
2,20,000 2, 20,000
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The opening stock and purchases are written on the debit side. Sales and
the closing stocks are entered on the credit side. If the credit side is
bigger, the difference is written on the debit side as gross profit. This
amount will also be written in the Profit and Loss Account on the credit
side. In case of gross loss, i.e., when the debit side of the Trading Account
exceeds the credit side, the amount will be written on the credit side of
the Trading Account and the debit side of the Profit and Loss Account.

Trading Account Items

(a) In a trading firm like a wholesaler, the main business consists of
buying and selling the same goods. In addition to the amount of the
opening stock, the trading account will also be debited with all
expenses incurred in bringing the goods to the godown of the firm
and in making them ready for sale. For example, freight paid on
purchases, cartage, octroi, customs duty etc. will all be debited to
the Trading Account. The rule is that this account will be debited
with all expenses incurred in bringing the goods to their present
location and condition.

(b) In a manufacturing concern purchases consist of raw materials. All
expenses incurred in bringing them to the godown of the
manufacturer-customs duty, freight, cartage etc. will be debited to
the Trading Account. In addition, all expenses incurred in the
factory for purposes of production such as wages, power and fuel,
rent of factory premises, will be debited to the Trading Account.

In a manufacturing business, there are usually three types of stock. Stock
of raw materials, stock of finished goods and work in progress, that is the
cost incurred on units still incomplete. The cost of all these at the end of
the year will be credited to the Trading Account as closing stocks.

3.7 We shall now consider individual items:

(1) Opening Stock: Since this was closing stock of the last year, it
must have been entered in the opening stock account, through the
opening entry. Therefore, it will be found in the trial balance. This
item is usually put as the first item on the debit side of the Trading
Account. Of course, in the first year of a business there will be no
opening stock.
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(11) Purchases and Purchase Returns: The purchase account will
have debit balance, showing the gross amount of purchases made of
the materials. The purchase returns account willhave credit
balance showing the return of materials to the suppliers. On the
debit side of the trading account the net amount is shown as
indicated (with assumed figures):

Ed

To Purchases 3, 00,000
Less: Purchase Returns 10,000
2, 90,000

It happens sometimes that goods are received but the relevant
invoice is not received from the supplier. On the date of the closing
of the account, an entry must be passed to debit the purchases
account and credit the supplier with the cost of goods. One may
also exclude such goods from the closing stock and not pass any
entry, but this course is not recommended.

(1i1) Carriage or Freight Inwards: This item should also be debited to
the Trading Account, as it is incurred to bring the materials to the
firm’s godown and make them available for use. However, if any
freight or cartage it paid on any asset, like machinery, it should be
added to the cost of the asset and not debited to the Trading
Account.

(iv) Manufacturing Wages: Wages paid to workers in the factory,
including stores, should be debited to the Trading Account. If any
amount is outstanding, it must be brought into books so that full
wages for the period concerned are charged to the Trading Account.
However, if wages are paid for installation of an asset, it should be
added to the cost of the asset.

v) Power and Fuel: Fuel used for the boiler or electricity consumed
to run the machines will be included under this item. The full
amount for the period concerned should be debited to the Trading
Account. In other words, the outstanding amount should be
brought into books.

(vi)  Factory Lighting: Electricity consumed for providing light in the
factory or to run fans should also be debited to the Trading
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Account. If there is a common meter for the office and the factory,
the total bill should be suitably apportioned between the two-only
the portion relating to the factory will be debited to the Trading
Account. The other portion will be debited to the Profit and Loss
Account.

Factory Rent and Rates: The rent paid for the factory premises,
as also the municipal taxes (which are called rates) or charges for
water etc. should be debited to the Trading Account. If the office
and the factory are in the same premises, total rent and rates have
to be suitably apportioned.

The items given above may be grouped as: (i) cost of materials
consumed: (i1) manufacturing wages; and (ii1) other manufacturing
expenses.

Sales and Sales Returns: The sales account will have credit
balance indicating the total sales made during the year. The sales
return account will havedebit balance, showing the total of the
amount of goods returned by customers. The net of the two
amounts is entered on the credit side of the Trading Account.

Sometimes, invoice for sold goods might have been prepared but
not dispatched. If the sale is complete, that is if the customer is
liable to pay the amount, such goods should be kept aside and
shouldnot be included in the closing stock. If, however, the sale is
not yet complete say, when sent to customers on approval basis,
that is when the customer has the right to return the goods within
the stipulated period, the cost of the goods should be included in
the closing stock.

Closing Stock and its valuation: Usually there is no account to
show the value of goods lying in the godown at the end of the year.
However, to correctly ascertain the gross profit, the closing stock
must be properly taken and valued.

The entry is
Stock Account Dr.

To Trading Account
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x)

It is possible to pass the following entry:
Stock Account Dr.
To Purchase Account

The effect of this entry is to reduce the debit in the Purchases
Account. The Stock Account is then not entered in the Trading
Account. It will then appear in the trial balance.

To ascertain value of the closing stock, it is necessary to make a
complete inventory or list of all the items in the godown together
with quantities. Of course, damaged or obsolete items are
separately listed. Also, the list should be separate for finished
goods, semi-finished goods (work-in-progress), raw materials and
stores. To the list of finished goods, one should also add the goods
lying with agents sent to them on consignment basis and also the
goods sent on approval to customers.

The valuation principle is cost or net realisable value whichever is
lower. In the case of finished goods, the cost will mean the cost of
materials, manufacturing wages and manufacturing expenses. This
also applies to work-in-progress.

In the Trading Account, the three types of closing stocks are shown
separately. Taking stock is quite a lengthy process. Strictly
speaking, immediately at the end of the year, stock-taking should
be completed. Sometimes however, this is done either a few weeks
before or a few weeks after the closing. In such a case the value of
the stock thus taken must be adjusted to relate it to the closing
date. The adjustment will be necessary because, in the meantime,
purchases and sales must have been made. The main point to
remember 1s that in respect of sales, their cost has been
established. Cost will be Sales less Gross Profit.

Duty drawback and subsidies: Duty drawback is refund of
duties paid on purchases. This is available to the exporters as an
incentive. Subsidies in the form of cash assistance are sometimes
received from Government on purchases. AS-2 “Valuation of
Inventories” recommends that such duty drawback and subsidies
should be deducted from the cost of purchases in the year in which
these are accounted for.

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India



(x1)

(xii)

(x111)

Journal and Final Accounts 63

Excise Duty: Excise duty should be included in the cost of
purchases for the purpose on valuation of inventories. However, for
a manufacturing concern, if it is entitled to get the benefit of excise
paid on purchases under CENVAT Credit Rules it has to show the
entries for excise duty in a different manner. In simple terms, the
concept of CENVAT is that the credit of duty of Central Excise and
additional duty of excise paid on the goods used in or in relation to
the manufacture of final product can be utilized towards payment
of duty of excise on the final product. Thus, when manufacturing
concern purchases raw materials, the cost of raw materials may
include some excise duties. The manufacturer uses the material to
produce finished product too. Excise duty is leviable on such
finished product too. But the manufacturer can deduct the excise
duty already paid on purchases of raw materials from the excise
duty payable on finished goods and only the difference is to be paid
to the Excise authority. In practice, what happens i1s that a
manufacturer deposits with the excise authority from time to time
some amounts depending on his requirement and at the end of
financial year reconciles the excise duties payable or recoverable.
Thus, when he purchases the raw materials to produce finished
goods, he should deduct the CENVAT credit utilised from the cost
of purchases. The relevance of excise duty ledgers may not be in the
GST regime excluding for those industries (i.e. petrol etc.) where
excise duty would still continue to be levied. For normal tax payers,
the excise duty account could be only for the period upto 30t June
2017 1.e. immediately before introduction of GST but not after that.

Sales Tax/VAT : Sales Tax/VAT is an indirect tax in the sense
that it is collected by the seller from the customers and deposited
in Government’s Account as per requirements of the Sales Tax/VAT
Act. Sales tax is generally deducted from gross sales figures and
sales tax liability (net of payments) is shown as current liability in
the balance sheet. Similar to discussion above under excise duty,
there could be very limited relevance of Sales Tax/VAT account
after introduction of GST.

GST: GST is leviable on the supply of goods or services made by
the registered persons and collected from the recipient unless the
transactions are covered under reverse charge mechanism. The tax
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collected does not become revenue of the business and hence it is
deducted from the gross income and net amount is only shown as
the turnover/outward supply. The treatment of GST on outward
supply for disclosure purpose could be same as was followed for
VAT purpose in erstwhile regime.

3.8 The Trading Account is very useful. With its help, the firm can see
the relationship between the costs incurred and the revenues earned and
the level of efficiency with which operations have been conducted. The
ratio of gross profit to sales is very significant. It is arrived as

Gross Profit y

Gross Profit Ratio =
Sales

100

In the illustration given under Para 3.6, the rate of gross profit is 27.5%.
If the rate of gross profit changes substantially in a year compared to that
in a previous year, the reasons leading to the change should be enquired
into. If the rate of gross profit has declined, the reasons may have been
the following:

(11) There has been excessive wastage during the process of
manufacture or there has been pilferage.

(111) Labour efficiency has declined or wage rates have increased
without a corresponding increase in productivity.

(iv) A part of the sale proceeds has been misappropriated or the
finished goods have been stolen.

v) The closing stock has not been taken properly and some items have
been omitted.

(vi)  The closing stock has been undervalued.

(vil) The closing stock of the last year (that is the opening stock of this
year) was overvalued.

(vii1)) Some purchases made last year were not entered in the books at
that time and have been brought into books only now.

(ix)  Some sales of the current year have not been entered in the books.

(x) Some of the expenses pertaining to different GSTIN have been
recorded in the trading account of current GSTIN (if GSTIN wise
trading account is prepared)
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If the rate of the gross profit has increased, the reasons will be the reverse
of those given above except those relating to theft or misappropriation. If
accounting is correct, increase in the rate of the gross profit will show
better performance, higher prices for finished goods or lower prices for
materials etc.

Closing entries in respect of Trading Account:

3.9
(@)

(i)

(i11)

(111)

(iv)

)

(vi)

The following entries will be required:
For opening stock: Debit Trading Account and Credit Stock
Account.

For purchases returns: Debit Returns Outward Account and Credit
Purchases Account.

For returns inward: Debit Sales Account and Credit Returns
Inwards Account. (In the trading account, information is usually
given both in respect of gross salesand purchases and the
respective returns).

For purchases account: Debit Trading Account and Credit
Purchases Account, the amount being the net amount after return.

For expenses to be debited to the Trading Account, for example
wages, customs duty etc; Debit Trading Account and credit the
concerned expenses accounts individually.

For sales: Debit Sales Account with the net amount after returns,
and Credit Trading Account.

We should see that all the accounts mentioned above will be closed
with the exception of the Trading Account.

For closing stock: Debit Stock Account and Credit Trading Account.
The Stock Account will be carried forward to the next year.

After making the entries mentioned in (ii) above, the other entries
are usually summarized as follows:

(1) Trading Account Dr.
To Stock (opening) Account
To Purchases Account
To Wages Account

To Fuel and Power Account
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To Factory Rent and Rates Account
To Freight on Purchases Account, etc.
(2) Sales Account Dr.
Stock (closing) Account Dr.
To Trading Account

At this stage Trading Account will reveal the gross profit, if the credit side
1s bigger or gross loss if the credit side is short. The gross profit will be
transferred to the Profit and Loss Account by the entry:

Trading Account Dr.
To profit and Loss Account

The entry for gross loss, if there be any is:

Profit and Loss Account Dr.

To Trading Account

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

3.10 The Profit and Loss Account starts with gross profit on the credit
side. If there is gross loss, it will be written on the debit side. After that
all those expenses and losses which have not been entered in the Trading
Account will be written on the debit side. Incomes and gains, other than
sales, will be written on the credit side.

If we understand word expenses properly, there should be no difficulty in
distinguishing between items that will be debited to the Profit and Loss
Account and those that will not be Assets and personal expenses are not
written in this account, revenue expenses and losses, but only those
relating to the current year, are debited.

It is desirable, that the Profit and Loss Account should be prepared in
such a manner as will enable the reader to form a correct idea about the
profit earned or loss suffered by the firm during the period together with
the significant factors. Too many details will prevent a person from
knowing properly the factors leading to the profit earned. Therefore,
itemscan be according to the various functions, such as administrations,
selling and financing:

(1) The selling and distribution expenses will comprise the following;
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(a) Salesmen’s salaries and commission

(b) Commission to agents.

(¢) Advertising.

(d) Warehousing expenses.

(e) Packing expenses.

(f) Freight and carriage on sales.

(g) Export duties (for specified industries)

(h) GST to the extent it cannot be recovered from the customers.

(1) Maintenance of vehicles for distribution of goods and their
running expenses.

(G) Insurance of finished goods stock and goods in transit.
(k) Bad debts.

It wouldbe a good idea to either show these expenses in a separate
schedule or to indicate the total of these, prominently in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. This rule should be followed
wherever the number of items is rather large.

Administrative expenses include the following;

(a) Salaries paid to the people working in the general office,
salaries of executive officers should be shown separately.

(b) Rent and rates for the office premises.

(¢) Lighting in the office.

(d) Printing and stationery.

(e) Postage, telegrams and telephone charges.
(f) Legal expenses.

(g) Audit fees, etc.

Financing expenses normally include interest paid on loan,
discount on bills discounted and the discount allowed to customers.
It is possible to show only the net amount of interest if it has been
both received and paid. It is however, better to show the two
figures separately.
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3.11 On the income side of the Profit and Loss Account, besides the
gross profit, there may be interest received, discount received, rents from
subletting of premises, miscellaneous incomes such as from sale of junk
material etc, It would be desirable to show the totals only under each of
the main categories of income. However, interest on fixed deposits,
interests or income from investments and other interest should be shown
separately, similarly, items which have to be debited/credited to the
proprietor should be segregated from other items. Examples would be
interest charged on drawings, interest allowed on capital and charges for
services rendered by the firm to the proprietor personally.

3.12 We shall now consider a few items individually:

1) Drawings: Drawings are not expense for the firm and should
therefore not be debited to the Profit and Loss Account. If the
proprietor has enjoyed some benefit personally, like use of the
firm’s car, a suitable amount should be treated as drawing and to
that extent, the charge to the Profit and Loss Account will be
reduced. Drawings is debited to the proprietor’s capital account.

(1) Income Tax: In case of companies, the income tax payable is
treated like other expenses. But in the case of sole proprietorship,
income tax i1s treated as a personal expense. It is debited to the
Capital Account and not to the Profit and Loss Account. This is
because the amount of the tax will depend on the total income of
the partners or proprietor besides the profit of the firm. In case of
partnership business, firm’s tax liability is to be debited to profit
and loss account of the firm, but partners’ tax liabilities are not to
be borne by the firm. Therefore, if the firm pays income tax on
behalf of partners, such payment of personal income tax should be
treated as drawings.

(i11) Discount Received and Allowed: We have already seen that
discount is of two types: Trade discount and Cash Discount. Trade
discount is allowed when the order for goods is not below a certain
figure. It 1s deducted from the invoice. Only the net amount of
invoice is entered in books. There is no further treatment of the
trade discount. Cash discount is allowed to a customer if he makes
the payment before a certain date. It is allowance made to him for
prompt payment. Discount received is really in the nature of

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India



(iv)

)

Journal and Final Accounts 69

interest received and similarly, discount allowed really means
interest paid. Discount received is a gain and is credited to the
Profit and Loss Account. Discount allowed is debited to this

account.

There is another term — Rebate. It is the allowance given to a
customer when his purchases during a period, say one year, total
up to a certain figure. Suppose a firm allows a rebate of 4% to those
customers whose purchases during the year are at least ¥5,000.
One Customer’s purchases are 34,500, he will not get any rebate.
Another customer’s purchases total 5,100, he will get a rebate of
3204. The entry for rebate is made only at the end of the year. The
Rebate is adjusted from sales. Various customers who have earned
the rebate are credited.

Bad Debts: When a customer does not pay the amount due from
him and all hopes of recovering the amount are lost, it is said to be
a bad debt. It is a loss to the firm. Therefore, the bad debts account
1s debited, which is later on written in the Profit and Loss Account
on the debit side. Since it is no use showing the amount due still as
an asset, the account of the customer concerned is closed by being
credited. The entry:

Bad Debts Account Dr.
To Debtor’s (by name) Account

If later on, the amount is recovered, it should be treated as a gain.
It should not be credited to the party paying it. It should be
credited to Bad Debts Recovered Account. It will be entered in the
Profit and Loss Account on the credit side.

Closing entries: The entries that have to be made in theJournalfor
preparing the Trading and the Profit and Loss Account, that is for
transferring the various accounts to these two accounts, are known
as closing entries. We have already seen the entries required for
preparing the Trading Account and for transferring the Gross
Profit to the Profit and Loss Account. Now to complete the Profit
and Loss Account, the undermentioned three entries will be
necessary.
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(a) For items to be debited to the Profit and Loss Account this
account will be debited and the various accounts concerned
will be credited. For example, salaries account, rent account
and interest account will be credited to the debit of Profit
and Loss Account.

(b) Items of income or gain such as interest received or
miscellaneous income, will be debited to the credit of the
Profit and Loss Account.

(c) At this stage, the Profit and Loss Account will show net
profit or net loss. Both have to be transferred to the Capital
Account. In case of net profit, i.e., when the credit side is
bigger than the debit side, the entry is:

Profit and Loss Account Dr.
To Capital Account

In the other case of net loss, the entry will be
Capital Account Dr.

To Profit and Loss Account

(vi)  Adjustments: The fundamental principle of accounting is that the
period to which various items of income and expenditure pertain
should be co-extensive with the period of account. As such, before
Final Accounts are drawn up, itmust be ensured that the accounts
which require adjustment on this consideration have been
adjusted, both by providing for expenses accrued and including
income outstanding and excluding expenses the benefit of which
extends beyond the year of account as well as the income received
in advance. The entries that will have to be passed for adjusting
various accounts of income and expenditure are shown below:

(a) Expenses accrued and accruing, e.g., Rent, Interest, Local
Taxes, Wages etc.

‘Appropriate’ Expense Account Dr.

To Expenses Accrued Account
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Income accrued and accruing, e.g., Interest on Government
Loans, Discounts on Bill, Professional fees, Rents and
Premiums on leases, etc.

Interest/Fees etc. Accruing Account Dr.
To ‘Appropriate’ Income Account

Notes: (1) The term “accrued” signifies that an amount has
been incurred as expense or earned as income, the due date
of payment of which falls in the next trading period. If the
due date of payment occurs in the accounting period, the
term used should be “Outstanding” or “Accrued and Due”.

The expression ‘accrued and accruing’ signifies items which
though not due for payment butpertain to the period of
account, a provision for which has been made. Converse is
the positionso far as items of income are concerned.

Carrying forward income received in advance e.g.,
Subscription in the case of a club or fees in case of
professional person.

‘Appropriate’ Income Account Dr.
To Income Received in Advance Account

Carrying forward of payments made in advance e.g.,
Telephone, Rent, Insurance etc., amounts where of stand
debited to an expense account.

Expenses Prepaid Account Dr.
To ‘Appropriate’ Expenses Account

Adjustment of stock of materials in hand, e.g., Stationery,
Advertisement, Material. Manufacturing Stores, etc., the
cost whereof already has been debited to expense account.

Stock of Materials Dr.
To Appropriate Expenses Account

Note: Next year in the beginning entries No. (1) to (5)
should be reversed.
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(2) Provision for bad and doubtful debts: When it is feared that
some of the amount due from customers will not be collected
it is prudent to recognize the expected loss by reducing the
current year’s profit and placing the amount to the credit of
a special account called "Provision for Bad and Doubtful
Debts Account". The entry is:

Profit and Loss Account Dr.
To Provision for Bad and doubtful Debts Account

Note: The accounts of the customers concerned are not
affected until the amount is actually written off for which
the entry is,

Bad Debts Account Dr.
To Customer’s Alc

Bad Debts when written off are debited to the provision in
this respect where such a provision exists or directly to the
Profit and Loss Account the corresponding credit being given
(ultimately) to the debtor’s account. If, on the other hand, a
provision is required to be created, the amount of provision
is also debited to the Profit and Loss Account. Where an
examination problem requires that certain bad debts should
be written off and a provision for doubtful debts made, the
amount of bad debts to be written off should be first debited
against the existing balance of the provision and the
resulting balance in the account afterwards should be raised
to the required figure.

3.13 Some service organizations, in place of Profit & Loss Account,
prefer to prepare Income and Expenditure Account. The income and
expenditure account is equivalent to the Profit and Loss Account and is
prepared by following accrual principle. Only items of revenue nature
pertaining to the period of account are included therein. The preparation of
the account, therefore, requires adjustment in relevant accounts of
outstanding items of income and expenditure as also exclusion of amounts
paid in advance before these are included in Income and Expenditure
Account. In so far as this, it resembles a Profit & Loss Account and serves
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the same function in respect of a service organization as the later account
does for a firm, carrying on business or trade.

FEATURES OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNTS ARE:

° It is a revenue account prepared at the end of the financial period for
finding out the surplus or deficit of that period.

. It is prepared by matching expenses against the revenue of that
period concerned.

. Both cash and non-cash items, such as depreciation, are taken into
consideration.

. All capital expenditures and incomes are excluded.

o Only current years’ income and expenses are considered.

BALANCE SHEET

3.14 In the illustration worked out above it will be seen that the under
mentioned accounts have not been closed even after preparation of the
Profit and Loss Account and the transfer of the net profit to the capital

account.
3

Cash in Hand 400 | Debit balance
Cash at Bank 1,000 | Debit balance
Capital Accounts 16,300 | Credit balance
Machinery Account 6,000 | Debit balance
Furniture and Fittings Account 1,360 | Debit balance
Sundry Debtors 8,500 | Debit balance
Sundry Creditors 3,700 | Credit balance
Stock Account 2,700 | Debit balance

Looking at these accounts, one would know that various assets: Cash in
hand, cash at bank, machinery, furniture etc. that the firm possesses and
the amounts that are owing as liability to Sundry Creditors and to the
proprietor as capital. The capital, of course, will be the difference between
the total of assets and of liabilities. The assets and liabilities and capital
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are usually presented in a statement called the Balance Sheet. This is
given below for the accounts mentioned above.

C. WANCHOO
Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2015

Liabilities < | Assets <
Sundry Creditors 3,700 | Cash in Hand 440
Capital 16,300 | Cash at Bank 1,000
Sundry Debtors 8,500

Stock 2,700

Machinery 6,000

Furniture and Fittings 1,360

20,000 20,000

The assets are shown on the right-hand side and liabilities and capital on
the left-hand side.

3.15 The balance sheet may be defined as “a statement which sets out
the assets and liabilities of a firm or an institution as at a certain date.”
Since even a single transaction will make a difference to some of the
assets or liabilities, the balance sheet is true only at a particular point of
time. That is the significance of the word “as at.”

3.16 The balance sheet has certain characteristics, which should be
noted. These are the following:

(1) It is prepared at a particular date, rather the close of a day and not
for a period. It is true only on that date and not later. Suppose, in
the example given above, a part of the goods were sold on 1st
January, 2015. This will mean that the value of the stock will be
reduced, the cash in hand will increase and the capital account will
be reduced.

(11) The balance sheet is prepared only after the preparation of the
Profit and Loss Account. This is the reason why the Profit and Loss
Account (including the Trading Account) and the Balance Sheet are
together called Final Accounts (Of course, the Balance Sheet is not
an account, the two sides are not the debit and the credit sides.)
Without being accompanied by the Profit and Loss Account, the
Balance Sheet will not be able to throw adequate light on the
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financial position of the firm. For that purpose, an appreciation of
the profits of the firm is necessary.

(i11)  Since capital always equals the difference between assets and
liabilities and since the capital account will independently arrive at
this figure, the two sides of the Balance Sheet must have the same
totals. If it is not so, there is certainly an error somewhere.

Arrangements of Assets and Liabilities

(1) Assets: Assets may be grouped in one of the following two ways:

(1) Liquidity: Under this approach the asset, which can be
converted into cash first, is presented first. Those assets
which are most difficult in this respect are presented at the

bottom.

(1) Permanence: Assets which are to be used for long term in the
business and are not meant to be sold are presented first.
Assets which are most liquid, such as cash in hand, are

presented at the bottom.

The various assets in order will be as follows:

In the order of Liquidity
Cash in Hand

Cash at Bank
Investments

Sundry Debtors

Stock of Finished Goods
Stock of Raw Materials
Partly Finished goods
Machinery

Furniture

Patents

Goodwill

In the order of Permanence
Goodwill

Patents

Furniture

Machinery

Stock of Partly Finished goods
Stock of Raw Materials

Stock of Finished goods
Sundry Debtors

Investments

Cash at Bank

Cash in Hand
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Some of the assets may be capable of being sold easily like investment in
government securities or shares of some companies. They should be
treated as liquid or permanent according to the intention of the firm. One
should also note that the order in which the assets of a company are to be
shown is asprescribed by the Companies Act.

(2) Liabilities: Liabilities may also be shown according to the urgency
with which payment has to be made. One way is to first show the capital,
then long-term liabilities and last of all short-term liabilities like amounts
due to suppliers of goods or bills payable. The other way is to start with
short term liabilities and then show long term liabilities and last of all
capital.

(3) Classification of Assets and Liabilities: Assets are basically of
two types. Those that are meant to be used by the firm over a long period
and not sold and those that are meant to be converted into cash as quickly
as possible. Examples of the latter are book debts, stocks of finished goods
and materials, etc. The latter type of assets iscalled current assets. These
include cash also. The former type of assets is called non-current assets. It
is desirable that in the balance sheet the two types of assets should be
shown separately and prominently. This would give meaningful and
logical information.

The liabilities to outsider will be of two types. Those that must be settled
within one year and those that will be paid after one year. The former
type of liability is called current or short-term liability. The latter type is
non-current liability. Of course, it will include undistributed profits also.

PROVISIONS AND RESERVES

3.17 Provision means “any amount written off or retained by way of
providing for depreciation, renewal or diminution in the value of assets or
retained by way of providing for any known liability of which the amount
cannot be determined with substantial accuracy”.

Thus, provision may be either in respect of loss in the value of an asset
provided or written off on the basis of an estimate or the one in respect of
a liability for expenses incurred in respect of a claim which is disputed
1.e., when it is a contingent liability. On the occurrence of a diminution in
asset values due to some of them having become irrecoverable or stock
items are lost as a result of some natural calamity, amounts contributed
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or transferred from profit to make goods the diminution also are described
as provision.

The following are instances of amount retained in the business out of
earning for different purposes that are described as provisions.

(1) Amount provided for meeting claims which are admissible in
principle, but the amount whereof has not been ascertained.

(2) An appropriation made for payment of taxes still to be assessed.
(3) Amount set aside for writing off bad debts or payment of discounts.

3.18 Reserve is defined as the portion of earnings, receipts or other
surplus of an enterprise (whether capital or revenue) appropriated by the
management for a general or a specific purpose other than a provision for
depreciation or diminution in the value of assets or for a known liability.

Also, provisions in excess of the amount considered necessary for the
purposes these were originally made, are to be considered as reserves. It
is thus evident that provisions are a charge against profits, while reserve
1s an appropriation of profits. Also, provisions that ultimately prove be in
excess of amounts required or have been made too liberally are reserves.
Such a distinction is essential for truly disclosing in the Balance Sheet,
the amount by which the equity of shareholders has increased with the
accumulation of undistributed profits.

3.19 Reserve Fund: It signifies the amount standing to the credit of the
reserve that is invested outside the business in securities which are
readily realisable e.g., when the amounts set apart for replacement of an
asset are invested periodically, in government securities or shares. The
account to which these amounts are annually credited is described as the
Reserve Fund.

LIMITATIONS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.20 Financial statements suffer from a number of limitations. These
must, therefore, be studied with care, in order that correct inferences may
be drawn. The limitations are less serious if the objective is only to
appraise the performance of a single company over a period of years.
Where, however, a comparison of the working of different companies for
the same period is to be made. It can be misleading unless the companies
concerned have followed the same system and basis of accounting. On the
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account, a comparison of the profitability of different industries on the
basis of financial statements should be undertaken only if it is not
practicable to make such a comparison on any other basis.

The principal limitations affecting financial statements are the following:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Historical Cost: Accounting records and, on that account, the
financial statements are prepared only on the basis of the money
value prevailing at the time the transactions were entered into.
Thus, the effect of subsequent changes in the value of money is not
taken into account. At times this has the effect of making the
statements of account quite misleading. Take the obvious example
of a house built in 1945, say at the cost of 15,000, in 2000 the
benefit receivable from its occupation will be as much as that of a
house created in 2000, say at a cost of ¥4,50,000. If the house is
included in the financial statements at its original cost, as
normally it would not convey a true picture except to a
knowledgeable person.

The limitations can be serious in the case of other fixed assets that
have been working over a long period over which prices have
changed radically. It is, however, not easy to get over this
difficulty, since revaluation of fixed assets, apart from being costly
1s not practicable when the value of money is continuously falling.
On this account, historical cost continues to be the accepted basis
for the preparation of financial statements.

Intangible Strengths and Weaknesses: A company may have
number of strengths and weaknesses which cannot be shown in the
balance sheet e.g., the quality and caliber of its staff. These must
be kept in mind while judging the financial position of the
company.

Different Accounting Policies: It is permissible for a company
within certain limits to adopt different policies for the preparation
of accounts-valuation of various assets and distribution of
expenditure over different periods of account. For example, a
company may decide to depreciate an asset on straight line basis or
written down value basis
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Whatever basis of accounting is decided upon the same must be
followed consistently, from year to year. Whenever it is departed
from, the effect of it would have the effect of obscuring the profit of
the year in which the change in the basis of accounting is made.

However, through issuance of Accounting Standards on various
subjects, efforts are being made to harmonise the accounting
policies being followed.

(d) Management Policies: There is general impression that each
undertaking endeavors to earn as much profit as it can. This is not
wholly correct. The management often attempts not to allow its
profit to rise above a level that it considers appropriate, in the
circumstances it is functioning, due to a variety of reasons. This
may be:

(1) Disinclination to undertake new risks and responsibilities
on account of high rates of taxation;

(i1) Fear of the odium of profiteering a bad reputation that
prices charged by the concern for its goods are not
reasonable:

(i11))  Fear that larger profits may give rise to demand for higher
wages which may throw the costs and prices relationship out
of gear or impression may gain ground that there has been
an increased workload on the workers which may lead to
discontentment amongst them:

(iv)  Fear that the concern may be considered to have developed
monopolistic tendencies;

) Consideration to maintain efficiency; and

(vi)  Unwillingness to expand, unduly on account of uncertainty
of the future.

3.21 To conclude, on these considerations. Financial statements need to
be studied with great care. The information disclosed by them has to be
judged in the light of the economic change, such as inflationary condition
over the short period, as well as, over the long period (like one witnessed
in India after 1971) and the nature of management and its basic motives.
Despite the limitations, the financial statements, verified by independent
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auditors, often are the only tangible evidence available as regards the
profitability and the financial position of the company. Their importance,
therefore, cannot be under-estimated. If properly analyzed, they are

capable of yielding a flood of information.

CASE STUDY

3.22 From the following trial balance of a manufacturing concern
prepare the Manufacturing Account, Profit & Loss Account and Balance

Sheet:
Arvind Textiles
Trial Balance as at 315t March 2016

Particulars Dr. Cr.

Liabilities:
1. Capital 10,00,000
2. Capital Reserve Account 6,50,000
3. Profit and Loss Account 12,60,000
4. Term Loan from SBI 25,00,000
5. Cash Credit from SBI 2,50,000
6 Secured Loan from PNB 15,00,000
7. Sundry Creditors 1,50,000
8. Deposits from customers 15,00,000
9 Fixed Assets:
10 | Goodwill 3,87000
11. | Land 94,00,000
12. | Plant and Machinery 8,00,000

Investments:
13. | Shares in X Ltd. 70,500

Current Assets:
14. | Sundry Debtors 1,22,000
15. | Current a/c with SBI 48,000
16. | Stock in trade (opening stock) 2,50,000
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Particulars Dr. Cr.
17. | Advances to suppliers 1,25,000
18. | Cash in hand 7,55,000
Expenses:
19. | Purchases 51,85,000
20. | Purchases returns 22,000
21. | Wages 15,000
22. | Electricity expenses 2,12,000
23. | Packaging expenses 1,53,000
24. | Advertising and Publicity 15,50,000
25 | Warranty charges 19,600
26. | Marketing expenses 1,86,000
27. | Sales promotion expenses 82,000
28. | Servicing expenses 25,200
29 | Commission 1,21,000
30. | Freight 35,000
31. | Discounts 22,000
32. | Installation and Commissioning expenses 58,000
33. | Telephone expenses 31,000
34. | Central excise 22,000
35. | GST 32,000
36. | Octroi 15000
37. | Interest on loans 5,20,000
38. | Charity expenses 1500
39. | Salaries 1,85,000
40 | Refreshments 25,200
41 | Training expenses 12,000
42. | Rent for the godown 35,000
43. | Interest on deposits 25,000
44. | Insurance 35,000
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Particulars Dr. Cr.
45. | Outward handling 23,000
46. | Rent for returnable containers 1,35,000
47. | Processing charges 22000
48. | Travelling expenses 72,000
Income:
49. | Sales 112,67,000
50. | Sales returns 2,50,000
51. | Commaission received 7,50,000
52. | Rent from property 1,20,000
53. | Discount received 53,000
54. | Miscellaneous Income 18,000
55. | Interest on advances 22,000
TOTAL 210,62,000 | 210,62,000
Closing Stock as on 31.03.2016 was 325,48,500
Provide for the following:
Outstanding salaries 55,000
Provision for bad debts 12,000
Solution:
Arvind Textiles
Manufacturing Account for the year ending 31.03.16
Particulars Amount | Particulars Amount
4 4
To opening 2,50,000 | By sales 112,67,000
Stock
To purchases 51,85,000 Less: Returns 2,560,000 | 110,17,000
Less: Returns 22.000 | 51,63,000 | By Closing 25,48,500
Stock
To wages 15,000
To electricity 2,12,000
To Gross Profit 79,25,500
c/d
135,65,500 135,65,500
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Particulars Amount | Particulars Amount
4 4

To Salaries 1,85,000 By Gross 79,25,500

profit b/d

Add:

Outstanding 55,000 2,40,000

To Outward By

handling 23,000 Commaission 7,50,000

received

To Telephone By Rent from

expenses 31,000| property 1,20,000

To Interest on By discount

loans 5,20,000| received 53,000

To Charity By misc. 18,000

expenses 1,500| income

To Packing By interest

expenses 1,53,000| on advances 22,000

To advertising

and publicity 15,50,000

To warranty

charges 19,600

To Marketing

expenses 1,86,000

To Sales

Promotion 82,000

To Servicing

expenses 25,200

To Commission 1,21,000

To Freight 35,000

To Discounts 22,000

To Installation

and

commissioning 58,000

To Central

excise 22,000

To GST 32,000

To Octroi 15,000
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Particulars Amount | Particulars Amount
. .
To refreshments 25,200
To Training
expenses 12,000
To Rent for
godown 35,000
To Interest on
deposits 25,000
To insurance 35,000
To rent for
returnable 1,35,000
containers
To processing
charges 22,000
To travelling
expenses 72,000
To provision
for bad debts 12,000
To net profit 53,79,000
Total 88,88,500 88,88,500
Arvind Textiles
Balance Sheet as on 31.3.16
Particulars Amount | Particulars Amount
4 4
Capital 10,00,000 | Goodwill 3,87,000
Land 94,00,000
Plant and 8,00,000
machinery
Profit and Shares in X 70,500
loss account 12,60,000 Ltd.
Add: profit Sundry
for the year 53,79,000 | 66,39,000 | debtors 1,22,000
Capital Less:
Reserve provision for
account 6,50000 | bad debts 12,000 1,10,000
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Particulars Amount | Particulars Amount
4 4

Term Loan 25,00,000

from SBI

Cash credit Current a/c

from SBI 2,50,000 | with SBI 48,000

Secured loan 15,00,000 | Stock in 25,48,500

from PNB trade

Sundry Cash in hand

creditors 1,50,000 7,55,000

Deposits from Advances to

customers 15,00,000 | suppliers 1,25,000

Outstanding

salaries 55,000

Total 142,44,000 142,44,000

CASE STUDY 2

3.23 From the following trial balance of a service concern prepare the
Income and Expenditure and Balance Sheet:

ABC Courier Company
Trial Balance as at 315t March 2016

Particulars Dr. Cr.
Liabilities:

Capital 1,285,000
Secured Loan from PNB 404,750
Sundry Creditors 226,445
Fixed Assets:

Land 1,021,575

Office Equipments 413,500

Current Assets:

Sundry Debtors 347,155

Current A/c with SBI 99,175

Cash in hand 82,015

National Saving Certificate 165,000
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Particulars Dr. Cr.
Expenses:

Salary 786,167

Electricity expenses 544,269

Handling and Clearing Charges 181,423

Contribution to provident and 102,986

other funds

Printing, Stationary and 51,900

Consumables

Staff Welfare Expenses 72,720

Office Expenses 133,044

Communication Expenses 99,294

Repair and maintenance- others 71,143

Insurance 78,480

Domestic Network operating cost 151,186

Interest on Secured Loan 44,523

Bad Debt 6,075

Income:

Service Charges 2,418,975
Interest Income 9,900
Rent from property 78,560
Miscellaneous Income 28,000
TOTAL 4,451,630 4,451,630
Provide for the following:

Outstanding salaries 67,000
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ABC Courier Company
Income and Expenditure Account for the year ending 31.03.16

Particulars Amount | Particulars Amount
4 4
To Salary 786,167 By Service 2,418,975
Charges
By Interest 9,900
Add Outstanding Salary 67,000 853,167 | Income
By Rent from 78,560
Property
To Contribution to provident By Misc. 28,000
and other funds 102,986 | Income
To Staff Welfare Expenses
72,720
To Electricity expenses
544,269
To Handling and Clearing
Charges 181,423
To Printing, Stationary and
Consumables 51,900
To Office Expenses 133,044
To Bad Debt 6,075
To Communication Expenses 99,294
To Repair and maintenance-
others 71,143
Insurance 78,480
To Domestic Network
operating cost 151,186
To Interest on Secured Loan 44,523
To Depreciation on Office
Equipments 62,025
To Surplus 83,200
Total 2,535,435 2,535,435
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ABC Courier Company
Balance Sheet as on 31.3.2016

Particulars Amount | Particulars Amount
¢ 4
Capital 1,285,000 Land 1,021,575
Add Surplus 83,200 1,368,200 | Office
Equipments 413,500
Less 351,475
Depreciation 62,025
Sundry 347,155
Debtors
Secured Loan 404,750 | Current Alc 99,175
from PNB with SBI
Sundry 226,445 | Cash in hand 82,015
Creditors
Outstanding 67,000 | National 165,000
Salary Saving
Certificate
Total 2,066,395 2,066,395
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ANALYSIS OF SCHEDULE III
(EARLIER REVISED SCHEDULE VI)

4.1 With the emergence of multinational corporations and rapid
increase in cross border transactions, it is essential that our financial
statements speak the global language for attracting foreign funds into
India. Internationally, the observance of universally accepted reporting
norms 1s perceived as an important measure of good corporate governance,
ensuring financial transparency to the stakeholders of the company. The
transparency in financial statements of a company has a significant
bearing on the decision of a stakeholder to invest, as well as the quantum
of his investment.

With India moving towards Convergence to International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), there was an urgent call to revise the old
Schedule VI, as it was not compatible to meet either the disclosure
requirements or the provisions of the upcoming accounting standards.
Though the revised Schedule VI has been framed as per the existing non-
converged Indian Accounting Standards notified under the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and has nothing to do with the
converged Indian Accounting Standards, it has taken into consideration
the classification accepted internationally.

The Companies Act, 1956 was replaced by Companies Act, 2013 in totality
with effect from 1st April,2014. As a result, Schedule VI was
renumbered as Schedule III as per Companies Act, 2013. The
contents of revised schedule VI and the new Schedule III are the
same.

In this chapter, an attempt has been made to throw some light on the
need to understand salient features of the Schedule IIT (2013) and the
issues which may initially arise while preparing financial statements as
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per Schedule IIT (2013). The aim of this chapter is just to give an outline
on the topic in order to make you aware of the Companies Act along with
the limited applicability of GST in light of revised schedule.

SALIENT FEATURES

4.2

Following are the salient features of Schedule III.

Applicability

This Schedule III is applicable to all companies to which existing
non-converged notified Accounting Standards are applicable.

Flexibility

As and when there will be any change in the requirements of the
Act including notified Accounting Standards in the treatment or
disclosure including addition, amendment, substitution or deletion
in the head, sub-head or any changes inter se in the financial
statements, the Schedule IIT (2013) will be modified accordingly
leaving no scope for any divergence or disagreement with the
Accounting Standards.

The disclosure requirements of Schedule III are in addition to the
disclosure requirements specified in the notified Accounting
Standards. Additional disclosures (other than specified in the
Schedule III (2013)) required by the notified accounting standards
may be made either in the notes to account or through additional
statement or on the face of the financial statements. In no way, the
disclosure requirements of Schedule III will substitute the
disclosure requirements specified in the Accounting Standards.

Schedule III (2013) sets out the minimum requirements for
disclosure on the face of the Financial Statements and Notes to
Accounts. Any addition of line or sub-line items or sub-totals shall
be presented as addition/substitution to it only when it is required
under specific disclosure requirements of industry/sector or for
compliance with the amendments to the Companies Act, 2013 or
Accounting standards.
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Notes to Accounts

° Notes to accounts, wherever necessary, should include narrative
descriptions or dis-aggregations of items recognized on the face of
the financial statements and information about items that do not
qualify for recognition in the financial statements.

. Cross-reference of each item of the Balance Sheet and Statement of
Profit and Loss shall be made to related information in the Notes to
Accounts.

Unit of Measurement

. For companies having a turnover of less than one hundred crore
rupees, the figures appearing in the Financial Statements may be
rounded off to the nearest hundreds, thousands, lakhs or millions,
or decimals thereof.

. For companies having a turnover of more than one hundred crore
rupees, the figures appearing in the Financial Statements may be
rounded off to the nearest lakhs, millions, or crores or decimals
thereof.

. Once a unit of measurement is used, it should be used uniformly in
the Financial Statements.

. Corresponding amounts (comparatives) for the immediately
preceding reporting period for all items shown in the Financial
Statements including notes shall be given.

PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4.3 Every company is required to prepare financial statements as per
the Schedule III of the Companies Act 2013. The Companies are required
to prepare financial statements as per the format prescribed under
Schedule III along with the additional disclosure requirements of the
Accounting Standards.

Further, The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, in 2015, had notified the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS)) Rules 2015, which
stipulated the adoption and applicability of IND AS in a phased manner
beginning from the Accounting period 2016-17. The MCA has since issued
three Amendment Rules, one each in year 2016, 2017, and 2018 to amend
the 2015 Rules.
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The IND AS are basically standards that have been made in line with the
IFRS to make reporting by Indian companies globally accessible and
comparable. Since Indian companies have a far wider global reach now as
compared to earlier, the need to converge reporting standards with
international standards was felt, which has led to the introduction of IND

AS.
A COMPARATIVE STUDY - SCHEDULE III oF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 ALONG WITH THE GOODS & SERVICES TAX STUDY.

4.4 A comparative chart between the old and new format has been
prepared. The chart is divided in two parts:

Part I: Balance Sheet
Part II: Statement of Profit and Loss

Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013

ASSETS
(1) | Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(¢) Investment Property
(d) Goodwill
(e) Other Intangible assets
(f) Intangible assets under development
(g) Biological Assets other than bearer plants
(h) Financial Assets
(1) Investments
(11) Trade receivables
(111) Loans
(iv) Others (to be specified)
(1) Deferred tax assets (net)
(G) Other non-current assets
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@)

Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets
(1) Investments
(1) Trade receivables
(111) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Loans
(v) Others (to be specified)
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net)

(d) Other current assets

Total Assets

(1)

@)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital
(b) Other Equity
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(1) Borrowings

(11) Trade payables

(111) Other financial liabilities (other than those specified in (b)

below, to be specified)

(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(d) Other non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(iv) Borrowings

(v) Trade payables

(vi) Other financial liabilities (other than those specified in (c)
below)
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(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Total Equity and Liabilities

II. ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

(1) (a) Fixed Assets

(1) Tangible Assets-Classification

Land

Building

Plant & Machinery
Furniture & Fitting
Vehicles

Office Equipment’s
Others (Specify Nature)

Note: Assets under lease shall be separately specified for each class of
Assets.

(11) Intangible Assets-Classification

Goodwill

Brands/Trademarks

Computer Software

Mastheads & Publishing Titles
Mining Rights

Copyrights & Patents

Recipes, Formulae

Licenses & Franchise

Others (Specify Nature)

(i11) Capital Work-in-Progress

(iv) Intangible Assets under development
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EXPLANATIONS

Where sums have been written off on a reduction of capital or revaluation
of assets or where sums have been added on revaluation of assets, every
balance sheet subsequent to date of such write-off, or addition shall show
the reduced or increased figures as applicable and shall by way of a note
also show the amount of the reduction or increase as applicable together
with the date thereof for the first five years subsequent to the date of such
reduction or increase.

Gross:

Opening Balance
Additions
Acquisitions through
Business combination
Other Adjustments
Sub-total

Less: Disposals

Gross block at year end

Less: Depreciation/Amortization
Opening depreciation/amortization
Depreciation/Amortization of the year
Impairment loss/Reversal of

Impairment Loss

Total depreciation at year end

Net Carrying Value

(b) Non-Current Investments

Non-current Investments to be classified as:

1. Trade Investments

2.  Other Investments — and further classified as:-
(a) Investment Property
(b) Investment in Equity Instruments
(¢) Investment in Preference Shares

(d) Investment in Government or trust securities.
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(e) Investments in debentures or bonds.

(f) Investments in Mutual Funds

(g) Investment in Partnership firms.

(h) Other Non-current Investments (Specify Nature)

(a)

Under each classification, details shall be given of names of
the bodies corporate (indicating separately whether such
bodies are (i) subsidiaries, (ii) associates, (iil) joint ventures,
or (iv) controlled special purpose entities) in whom
investments have been made and the nature and extent of
the investment so made in each such body corporate (showing
separately investments which are partly-paid). In regard to
investments in the capital of partnership firms, the names of
the firms (with the names of all their partners, total capital
and the shares of each partner) shall be given.

(b)

Investments carried at other than COST should be
separately stated specifying the basis for valuing them.

(c)
@

The following shall also be disclosed:

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value
thereof;

(11) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments;

(111) Aggregate provision for diminution in value of investments

(d) Where in respect of an issue of securities made for a

specific purpose, the whole or part of the amount has not
been used for the specific purpose at the balance sheet date,
there shall be indicated by way of note how such unutilized
amounts have been used or invested.

(c¢) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) Under the head Non-Current Assets.

(d) Long Term Loans & Advances

(a) Capital Advances

(b) Security Deposits

(c) Loans and Advances to Related Parties (giving details
thereof)

(d) Other Loans & Advances (Specify Nature)
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To be separately sub-classified as:

(a) Secured, considered good

(b) Unsecured, considered good

(¢) Doubtful

Allowances for bad and doubtful loans & Advances shall be disclosed

under relevant heads separately.

Loans and advances due by directors or other officers of the company
or any of them either severally or jointly with any other persons or
amounts due by firms or private companies respectively in which any
director is a partner or a director or a member should be separately
stated.

(e) Other Non-Current Assets
(1) Long term Trade Receivable (Including trade receivable on defined

credit terms)

(i1) Others (Specify Nature)

CLASSIFICATION

To be separately sub-classified as
(a) Secured, considered good

(b) Unsecured, considered good
(¢) Doubtful

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts shall be disclosed under relevant

heads separately

(2) Current Assets (See Note Below)

(a) Current Investments
Current Investments to be classified as:
(a) Investment in Equity Instrument
(b) Investment in Preference Shares
(c) Investment in Government or trust securities
(d) Investments in debentures or bonds.

(e) Investments in Mutual Funds
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(f) Investment in Partnership firms.
(g) Other Investments (Specify Nature)

Under each classification, details shall be given of names of the
bodies corporate (indicating separately whether such bodies are
(i) subsidiaries, (ii) associates, (iii) joint ventures, or (iv)
controlled special purpose entities) in whom investments have
been made and the nature and extent of the investment so made
in each such body corporate (showing separately investments
which are partly-paid). In regard to investments in the capital
of partnership firms, the names of the firms (with the names of
all their partners, total capital and the shares of each partner)
shall be given.

The following shall also be disclosed:
(a) The basis of valuation of individual investments

(b) Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value
thereof

(c) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Aggregate provision made for the diminution in value of investments.

NOTE:

An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the
following criteria:

(a) It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or
consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle;

(b) It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the
reporting date; or

(d) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date.

All other assets shall be classified as non-current.

(b) Inventories

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India




Journal and Final Accounts 99

CLASSIFICATION

(a) Raw-Materials

(b) Work-in-Progress

(¢) Finished Goods

(d) Stock-in-Trade (in respect of goods acquired for trading)
(e) Stores and Spares

(f) Loose tools

(g) Others (Specify Nature)

NOTES:

(1) Goods in transit shall be disclosed under the relevant sub-head
of inventories.

(11) Mode of valuation shall be stated.

(c) Trade Receivables

(1) Aggregate amount of Trade Receivable outstanding for a period
exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment should
be separately shown.

(i1) Trade-Receivable shall be sub-classified as
(a) Secured-Considered good
(b) Unsecured-Considered good
(¢) Doubtful

(i11) Allowances for bad and doubtful debts shall be disclosed under the
relevant heads separately.

(iv) Debts due by directors or other officers of the company or any of them
either severally or jointly with any other person or debts due by firms
or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or
a director or a member should be separately stated.

A receivable shall be classified as a “Trade Receivable” if it is in respect of
the amount due on account of goods sold or services rendered in the
normal course of business.
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(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Classified as:
(a) Balances with Bank
e Unpaid Dividend
e Margin Money
e Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity
(b) Cheque, Drafts on hand.
(¢c) Cash-on-Hand
(d) Others (Specify)

(e) Short-Term Loans & Advances

(a) Loans and advances to related parties (giving details thereof)
(b) Others (specify name)
Sub-classification:
(1) The above loans & advances shall be sub-classified as
(a) Secured-Considered good
(b) Unsecured-Considered good
(¢) Doubtful

(11) Allowances for bad and doubtful loans & advances shall be disclosed
under the relevant heads separately.

(111) Loans & Advances due by directors or other officers of the company or
any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts
due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director
is a partner or a director or a member should be separately stated.

(f) Other Current Assets

e Incorporates current assets that do not fit into any other asset
category. (Specify Nature)

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

(i) Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities classified as:
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(a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt.

(b) Guarantees.

(¢) Other money for which the company is contingently liable.
(ii) Commitments to be classified separately as:

(a) Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on
Capital Account and not provided for.

(b) Uncalled liability on shares and other investments which are
partly paid.

(¢) Other commitments (Specify Nature)

The amount of dividend proposed to be distributed to equity and
preference shareholders for the period and the related amount per
share shall be disclosed separately. Arrears of fixed cumulative
dividends on preference shares shall also be disclosed separately.

If, in the opinion of the Board, any of the assets other than fixed
assets and non-current investments do not have a value on
realization in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the
amount at which they are stated, the fact that the Board is of that
opinion, shall be stated.

Critical points to be considered while going through the assets
side of the financial statements with regard to Goods & Services
Tax:

1) Business use - As per the provisions of section 16 of CGST Act, Input
Tax credit (ITC) is available to the registered person, if capital goods
are used in course or furtherance of business. There could be need to
understand whether non-current assets which are used by the
registered person are used in business or not. Normally, when the
assets are capitalized in the Balance Sheet, these must be accepted to
be in the course of business unless contrary is established.

2) Capital Goods - If any capital asset is used for effecting taxable and
non-taxable supply, then ITC to be availed taking Rule 43 of the Act.
3) Blocked Credit - Any goods or services which are capitalized under

the category of building having civil structure, no ITC is available as
per the provisions of Section 17(5).
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4)

5)

6)

7

8)

9)

Investments - In case of transactions in securities (Investments) as
appearing in Financial Assets, registered person is required to treat
transaction in securities as exempt supply and ITC to be reversed in
such cases as per the provisions of section 17(3).

Inventories —

(a) ITC in respect of Inventories (Inputs) is available to the registered
person, Inputs must be used for business purpose.

(b) Not to claim ITC in respect of Goods which are in Transit, as ITC
is available only when the goods are received by the registered
person.

Common use - Further, if Inputs are used for Taxable and Non-
Taxable purpose, ITC to be availed as per the provisions of Rule 42 of
the Act.

Loans - If a registered person is a Banking Company or an NBFC, ITC
is available to the registered person as per Rule 42/Rule 43 or 50% of
the eligible ITC on inputs, capital goods and input services on monthly
basis.

Trade Receivables — As per the provisions of IGST Act, a particular
service is categorized as export of service, if the payment for such
service has been received by the supplier of service in convertible
foreign exchange. In case of debtors on account of export services, if the
same is not realized in foreign currency, taxes to be paid on such
services.

Other current / Non-Current Assets —

(a) ITC Balance: Input Tax Credit of the registered person as
appearing in the financial statements to be reconciled with the
ITC appearing on the GST Portal. In case of deviation in both the
figures, reconciliations to be taken.

(b) Advances given to suppliers: In case of advances given to
suppliers of services on which Reverse Charge Liability to be
discharged, needs to be taken care off. As in case of services GST
to be discharged on advances and further, RCM liability to be
discharged on such advances paid to the vendors.

(¢) Deposits — As per the provisions of CGST Act, deposits which are
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adjustable against any supply would be considered as
consideration for that supply. GST to be discharged on such
deposits at the time of adjustment of deposits against the
consideration for the supply.

I. EQUITY & LIABILITIES

» Permits only VERTICAL form of presentation.

» Uses “Equity & Liabilities” and “Assets” as Headings.

(1) Shareholders’ funds are classified as —
a. Share Capital
b. Reserves & Surplus

c. Money received against Share Warrant.

(a) Share Capital

For each class of share capital (different classes of preference
shares to be treated separately):

a) the number and amount of shares authorised;

b) the number of shares issued, subscribed and fully paid, and
subscribed but not fully paid;

¢) par value per share;

d) a reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the
beginning and at the end of the reporting period;

e) the rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class
of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends
and the repayment of capital,

f) shares in respect of each class in the company held by its
holding company or its ultimate holding company including
shares held by or by subsidiaries or associates of the holding
company or the ultimate holding company in aggregate;

g) shares in the company held by each shareholder holding more
than 5 per cent. shares specifying the number of shares held;

h) shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/
commitments for the sale of shares/disinvestment, including
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the terms and amounts;
1) for the period of five years immediately preceding the date as
at which the Balance Sheet is prepared:

(A) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid-
up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received
in cash.

(B) Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid-
up by way of bonus shares.

(C) Aggregate number and class of shares bought back.

j) terms of any securities convertible into equity/preference
shares issued along with the earliest date of conversion in
descending order starting from the farthest such date;

k) calls unpaid (showing aggregate value of calls unpaid by
directors and officers);

) forfeited shares (amount originally paid-up).

(b) Reserves and Surplus

(1) Reserves and Surplus shall be classified as:

(@)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
0]
)

(h)

Capital Reserves;

Capital Redemption Reserve;
Securities Premium Reserve;
Debenture Redemption Reserve;
Revaluation Reserve;

Share Options Outstanding Account;

Other Reserves— (specify the nature and purpose of each
reserve and the amount in respect thereof);

Surplus i.e., balance in Statement of Profit and Loss
disclosing allocations and appropriations such as dividend,
bonus shares and transfer to/ from reserves, etc.;

(Additions and deductions since last balance sheet to be shown
under each of the specified heads);

(i1) A reserve specifically represented by earmarked investments
shall be termed as a “fund”.

(i17) Debit balance of statement of profit and loss shall be shown as
a negative figure under the head “Surplus”. Similarly, the

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India




Journal and Final Accounts 105

balance of “Reserves and Surplus”, after adjusting negative
balance of surplus, if any, shall be shown under the head
“Reserves and Surplus” even if the resulting figure is in the

negative.

(2) Share application money pending allotment

» Non - Current Liabilities (NCL)
» Current Liabilities (CL) (See note below)

(3) Non — Current Liabilities

(4) Current Liabilities

(a) Long term borrowings
(sub-classify as
Secured Loans/

Unsecured loans)

(a) Short term borrowings

(a) Bonds/Debentures

(b) Term Loans
> From Banks
> From Others

Loans Repayable on Demand
> From Banks
> From Others

(¢) Deferred Payment
Liabilities

(d) Deposits

Deposits

(e) Loans and Advances

Loans and Advances from Related

from Related Parties Parties
(f) Long term maturities of
Finance lease
obligations
(g) Other Loans & Advances | Other Loans & Advances (Specify Nature)
(Specify Nature)
NOTE:

A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the

following criteria:

(a) It is expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating

cycle;
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(b) 1Itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting
date; or

(d) The company does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of
the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities shall be classified as non-current.

EXPLANATIONS

(a) Borrowings to be sub classified as Secured and Unsecured. Nature of
security shall be specified separately in each case.

(b) Loans guaranteed by the directors and others — aggregate amount of
such loans under each head shall be disclosed.

(c) Bonds/debentures (along with the rate of interest and particulars
of redemption or conversion, as the case may be) shall be stated
in descending order of maturity or conversion, starting from
farthest redemption or conversion date, as the case may be. Where
bonds/debentures are redeemable by installments, the date of
maturity for this purpose must be reckoned as the date on which
the first installment becomes due.

(d) Particulars of any redeemed bonds/ debentures which the company has
power to reissue shall be disclosed.

(e) Terms of repayment of term loans and other loans shall be stated.

(f) Period and amount of continuing default as on the balance sheet
date in repayment of loans and interest shall be specified
separately in each case.

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Under the head Non-Current Liabilities.

(c) Other Long- Term | (¢) Other Current Liabilities
Liabilities

(a) Trade Payable - A | (a) Current maturities of long-term debt
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payable shall be | (b) Current maturities of finance lease
classified as a obligations

trade payable if it | () Interest Accrued but not due on borrowing
is in respect of the @
amount due on
account of goods

Income accrued and due on borrowings.

(e) Income received in advance

purchased or | ) Unpaid dividend
services rendered | (g) Application money received for allotment &
in the normal securities and due for refund &interest
course of business. accrued thereon.

(b) Others (h) Unpaid matured deposits and interest

accrued thereon.

(i) Unpaid matured debentures &interest
accrued thereon.

(G) Other Payables (specify Nature)

(d) Long term Provisions | (d) Short term Provisions

(@) Provision for | (a) Provision for employees’ benefits.
employees’ benefits.

(b) Others (Specify | (b) Others (Specify Nature)
Nature)

Critical points to be considered while going through the liabilities
side of the financial statements with regard to Goods & Services
Tax:

1.

Trade Payable — As per the provisions of section 16 of CGST Act, a
registered person being the recipient, is required to pay to the supplier
of goods or services the amount towards the value of supply along with
the tax payable thereon within a period of 180 days, ITC to be reversed
if payment is not made in the prescribed time. Further, after payment is
made to the supplier, ITC can be reclaimed by the registered person.
Outstanding creditors to be examined for applicability of this provision.

Advance received from customers — GST not to be discharged in
cases of supply of goods notified vide notification no 66 / 2017 —
Central Tax dated 15t November 2017. However, in case of Services,
if the registered person has received any advance in relation to supply
of services, GST to be paid on such receipt of advance.
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Contingent Liability -

Guarantees given to related parties — In case, the registered
person has provided the guarantees to the related person and nothing
is charged from the related person, the same is appearing under the
head Contingent liabilities. As per the provisions of schedule I of the
CGST Act, GST to be discharged in cases where supply is provided to
the related person even without consideration.

Other current Liabilities -

Output Tax liability — The liability on account of GST appearing in
the financial statements to be reconciled with the Electronic Liability

Register on the GST Portal. Differences in both to be reconciled.

PART II

Schedule II1

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND
LOSS

POINTS TO BE CONSIDERED
IN RELATION TO GOODS &
SERVICES TAX

Form of Statement of Profit &
Loss

(I) Revenue from Operations

(i) Revenue from operations in
respect of non-finance
company:
(a) Sale of Products
(b) Sale of Services

(¢c) Other

Revenues

Operating

Less: Excise Duties

(ii) Revenue from operations in
respect to Finance company:

(a) Interest
(b) Other

Services

Financial

Revenue under each of the above
heads shall be disclosed separately

1. A Reconciliation of Revenue

appearing in the Financial
Statements with the GSTR
Returns of the Registered

Person.

2. Classification under GST of each
Goods or Services to be checked
along with the applicable GST
Rate at the time of supply of
particular goods or services.

3. Revenue unbilled
revenue in statement of Profit

includes

and Loss. No GST to be
discharged on such revenue
reported in the financial

statement.

4. There may be the cases where
adjustments in the value of
revenue on case of companies

preparing financial statements
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by way of notes to Accounts to the
extent applicable.

In case of company rendering or
supplying services, gross income
derived from services rendered or
supplied under broad-head.

In case of other companies, gross
income derived from broad heads

as per IND AS. The amount of
Revenue as per Financial
statements and the GST
Returns may deviate in such
cases like schemes provided to
customers to be deducted from
Revenue in the Statement of
Profit and Loss as per IND AS
115.

Nature of Revenue to be
1dentified, 1i.e. the supply 1is
Taxable or Exempt or Non-GST
Supply.

In case of Exports, whether the
same 1s under LUT or made
with payment of IGST to be
checked.

I1. Other Income

(a) Interest income (other than a
finance company)

(b) (1) Dividend from subsidiary
companies

(i) Dividend Income

(¢) Net Gain/Loss on sale of
investment.

(d) Other non-operating income
(net of expenses directly

attributable to such income)

(e) Adjustments to the carrying
value of investments (Write-
back)

(f) Net gain/loss on foreign
currency translation and
transaction (other than
considered as finance cost)

Supply test as per the provisions
of Section 7 to be considered to
check whether any Income is
taxable as per the GST or not.

Income in nature of sale of
Investments — It refers to the
situation where the transactions
in securities (Investments) has
been made by the registered
person, ITC to be reversed in
such cases as per the provisions
of section 17(3) since the same is
exempt supply under GST.
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III. Expenses

(1) Cost of Materials
(Manufacturing Companies) —
Raw Materials broad
heads. In this if a
company falls under more than

category, it shall be

sufficient compliance with the
requirements, if
sales and consumption of raw

consumed

under
case,

one
purchases,

material and gross income from

services rendered 1s shown
under broad-heads.

(i1) Goods  purchased (Trading
Companies) — goods traded in
by the company under the
broad-head.

(i11) In case, if a company falls
under more than one category,
it shall be sufficient compliance
with  the

purchases,

requirements, if

sales and
consumption of raw materials
and gross income from services
rendered is shown under broad

heads.

(iv) In case of Work-in Progress,
Work-in-Progress under broad
heads.

Employee benefits expense shall
regarding
aggregate expenditure on:-

disclose information

(a) Salaries and Wages

(b) Contribution to Provident &
Other Funds

(c) Expense on employee stock

1. Input Tax Credit availed by the
registered person need to be
evaluated from the fact that the
same 1s used in course or

furtherance of business. If any

expenses on which GST 1is
charged by supplier or RCM is
discharged, the same should be
related to the business of the

registered person.

2. Section 17(5) of the CGST Act

has specifically mention certain
cases where a registered person
is not eligible to take credit even
the same is used in course or
furtherance of business such as:

(a) motor vehicles (seating less
than 13 persons), vessels,
aircraft with some exceptions
including
maintenance and security of
such conveyances;

cost of

(b) food and beverages, outdoor
catering, beauty treatment,
health services, cosmetic and
plastic surgery, rent/ lease of
above conveyances and life/

health insurance;

(¢) membership of a club, health
and fitness center;

(d) travel benefits extended to
employees on vacation such
as leave or home travel

concession;

(e) works contract services when
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option scheme (ESOP) and
Employee Stock Purchase
Plan (ESPP)

Staff Welfare Expenses.

Finance Cost

(a) Interest Expense

(b) Other borrowing costs

Applicable net gain/loss on

foreign currency translations &
transactions.

Expenses on each of the following
items, separately for each item:

(a) Consumption of Stores &

Spares.
(b) Power & Fuel
(¢) Rent
(d) Repairs to Building
(e) Repairs to Machinery
(f) Insurance

(g) Rates & Taxes
Income Tax)

(excluding

(h) Miscellaneous Expenditure

Note: Any item under which
income or expenses exceed 1 per
cent of revenue from operations
or ¥1,00,000 whichever is higher,
shall be shown separately and
distinct item against an
appropriate account head in P&L
account and shall not be

combined with any other item.

(1) Net loss on foreign currency
transaction and translation
(other than

finance cost)

considered as

supplied for construction of
an immovable property

(/) goods or services or both
received by a taxable person
for construction of an
immovable property (other
than plant or machinery)

(g) goods or services or both on
which tax has been paid
under section 10;

(h) goods or services or both
received by a non-resident
taxable person except on
goods imported by him;

(i) goods or services or both
used for personal

consumption;

(j) goods lost, stolen, destroyed,
written off or disposed of by
way of gift or free samples.

Generally, the expenses are
debited to the statement of
profit and loss statement,
however there may be cases
where a particular expense
ledger is credited like recovery
of expenses incurred where
some may show it as separately
under Other Income head and
others may credited the same to
the corresponding expense head.
These type of credit entries in
the profit and loss to be checked.

Prior Period items -

(a) If prior period expenses are
debited to profit and loss,
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W)

(k)

)

(m) Net

(n)

(o)
@

(i1)

Payment to Auditors

o As Auditor

o For Taxation Matters

. For Company Law Matters
. For Management Services

. For Other Services

) For reimbursement of
expenses.
Provision for losses of

Subsidiary companies.

Adjustment to the carrying
amount investments.

loss on sale of

investments.

Details of exceptional and
extraordinary items.

Prior period items

The aggregate, if material, of
any
proposed to be set aside, to
but not including
provisions made to meet any
specific liability, contingency or
commitment known to exist at
the date as to which the
balance-sheet is made up

amounts set aside or

reserve,

The aggregate, if material, of

any amounts withdrawn from

such reserves.

(1) The aggregate, if material,
of the amounts set aside to
provisions made for meeting

specific liabilities,
contingencies or
commitments.

then in those cases the time
limit to claim ITC to be kept
in mind, i.e., return for the
month of September
following the end of the
related financial year or
filing return
whichever is earlier.

Annual

Ilustration: In the Financial
statement of year ended 31st
March 2020, prior period
expenses are debited to P&L.
It is pertinent to note that
ITC in
expenses can be claimed only
up to the monthly GST
return for September 2019 or
filing date of Annual return
for March 2019.

(b) If any taxable Income is
credited to the P&L as Prior
period income, the Interest
Liability on the same to be
paid if taxes are also not
paid on due dates.

relation to such

disclosure
in the financial

There 1s a
requirement
statement relating to
expenditure in foreign currency.
The same disclosure would help
in identifying the cases of

import of services, if any.
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(11)) The aggregate, if material,
of the amounts withdrawn
from such provisions, as no
longer required.

BY WAY OF A NOTE the following information shall be disclosed.

a)

b)

d)

e)

Value of imports calculated on C.I.F basis by the company during the
financial year in respect of —

I. Raw materials;

II. Components and spare parts;

ITI. Capital goods;

Expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year on account

of royalty, know-how, professional and consultation fees, interest, and
other matters;

Total wvalue of all imported raw materials, spare parts and
components consumed during the financial year and the total value of
all indigenous raw materials, spare parts and components similarly
consumed and the percentage of each to the total consumption;

The amount remitted during the year in foreign currencies on account
of dividends, with a specific mention of the total number of non-
resident shareholders, the total number of shares held by them on
which the dividends were due and the year to which the dividends
related;

Earnings in foreign exchange classified under the following heads,
namely:-

I. Export of goods calculated on F.O.B. basis;
II. Royalty, know-how, professional and consultation fees;
III. Interest and dividend;

IV. Other income, indicating the nature thereof
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Annexure
PART I -BALANCE SHEET

Name of the Company........cccccevuvennnn.

Balance Sheet as @t ......cccccvvvviiiinninn.

(Rupees in............ )
Particulars Note Figures as Figures
No. at the end as at the
of current | end of the
reporting previous
period reporting
period
1 2 3
ASSETS
(1) | Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and
Equipment

(b) Capital work-in-progress
(¢) Investment Property

(d) Goodwill

(e) Other Intangible assets

() Intangible assets under
development

(g) Biological Assets other than
bearer plants

(h) Financial Assets

(v) Investments

(vi) Trade receivables

(vi1)) Loans

(vii1) Others (to be specified)
(1) Deferred tax assets (net)

(G) Other non-current assets
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@)

Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets
(1) Investments
(11) Trade receivables
(i11) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Loans
(v) Others (to be specified)
(¢) Current Tax Assets (Net)

(d) Other current assets

Total Assets

(1)

@)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital
(b) Other Equity
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(vil) Borrowings
(vii1) Trade payables
(ix) Other financial
liabilities (other than
those specified in (b)
below, to be specified)

(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(d) Other non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities

(1) Borrowings

(11) Trade payables

(ii1) Other financial liabilities
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(other than those specified
in (c) below)

(b) Other current liabilities
(¢) Provisions
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Total Equity and Liabilities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Name of the Company

Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended ............cccoeen.n..

(Rupees in............

a. Equity Share Capital

Balance at
beginning of
reporting period

the
the

Changes in equity share
capital during the year

Balance at the end of
the reporting period
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b. Other Equity

Share
application
money
pending

allotment

Equity
component
of
compound
financial
instrument

)

Reserves and Surplus

Items of Other Comprehensive Income

Money
received
against
share

warrants

Total

Capital

Reserve

Securitie
s
Premium

Reserve

Other
Reserves
(specify

nature)

Retained

Earnings

Debt
instrumen
ts through

Other
Comprehe

nsive

Income

Equity
Instrume
nts
through
Other
Comprehe
nsive

Income

Effective
portion of
Cash
Flow
Hedges

Revaluati
on

Surplus

Exchange
difference
s on
translatin
g the
financial
statement
sofa
foreign

operation

Other
items of
Other
Comprehe
nsive
Income
(specify

nature)

Balance at the
beginning of
the reporting

period

Changes in
accounting
policy/prior

period errors

Restated

balance at the
beginning of
the reporting

period




Journal and Final Accounts 119

Total
Comprehensive
Income for the

year

Dividends

Transfer to
retained

earnings

Any other
change (to be
specified)

Balance at the
end of the
reporting

period

Note:  Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans, fair value changes relating to own credit risk and share of Other Comprehensive Income in
Associates and Joint Ventures shall be recognized as a part of retained earnings with separate disclosure of such items along with the relevant
amounts in the Notes.
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PART II - STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

Name of the Company........c.c.ceeevuennn...

Profit and loss statement for the year ended

.......

....................

(Rupees in............ )
Particulars Note | Figures as Figur;als
as at the
No. | at the end of end of the
current previous
reporting reporting
period period
1 2 3 4
| Revenue from operations XXX XXX
11 Other income XXX XXX
IIT [ Total Revenue (I + II) XXX XXX
v Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed Xxx Xxx
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Changes in inventories of
finished goods work-in-progress
and Stock-in-Trade Xxx Xxx
Employee  benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization XXX Xxx
expense
Other expenses
Total expenses
\Y Profit before exceptional and XXX XXX
extraordinary items and tax (III -
V)
VI Exceptional items XXX XXX
VII | Profit before extraordinary items XXX XXX

and tax (V - VI)
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VIII | Extraordinary items XXX XXX
IX [ Profit before tax (VII- VIII) XXX XXX
X Tax expense:
(1) Current tax Xxx Xxx
(2) Deferred tax Xxx Xxx
XI Profit (Loss) for the period from XXX XXX
continuing operations (VII-VIII)
XII | Profit/(loss) from discontinuing XXX XXX
operations
XIIT | Tax expense of discontinuing XXX XXX
operations
XIV | Profit/(loss) from Discontinuing XXX XXX
operations (after tax) (XII-XIII)
XV | Profit (Loss) for the period (XI + XXX XXX
XIV)
XVI | Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic Xxx Xxx
(2) Diluted XXX XXX

Comparison of Relevant Accounting Standard and some GST
Provisions

Arrival of GST is not limited to the changes in the Indirect tax, but it has
affected the business in every aspect like finances, accounting and
reporting functions. There are some impacts of the GST on the Accounting
standards which are described below:

Accounting Basics of Accounting Impact of GST
Standard Standard

AS 1/ Ind AS| AS 1 deals with the | Currently, accounting

1: Disclosure | disclosure of significant | treatment of various indirect

of Accounting | accounting policies | taxes varies based on their
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Policies

the
preparation and
presentation of financial
statements.
Fundamental accounting
assumptions in  any
Financial statements are
that the
statements prepared are
based on Going Concern,
Consistency and Accrual
system concepts

followed in

financial

nature and point of levy.
Under IND AS, excise duty is
required to be included in
since 1t 1s a
(manufacture) production-
based GST s
included in revenue, since it

revenue,

tax. not
is levied at the time of sales.
GST 1is a destination-based
tax, which i1s levied at the
point of supply. Hence, it is
likely that revenue will not
be presented including GST.
For the first three months of
2017-18 revenue would be
presented at Gross for Excise
Less Excise Duty paid, and
for the subsequent period it
would be shown only Net,
hence this would bring some
distortion in reading of the
numbers for the users and

also comparative for the
previous years would be
different.
AS 2/IND AS2 | As per AS-2 the costs of | The CGST Act and the
Valuation  of | purchase of inventories | corresponding SGST /
Inventory comprise the purchase | UTGST Act provides for

price, import duties and
other taxes (other than
those subsequently
recoverable by the entity
from the taxing
authorities), and
transport, handling and
other  costs directly
attributable to the

availment of input tax credit
or refund of input tax credit
in specified situations. Thus,
to the extent credit is availed
or refund is claimed, it will
not form part of cost of
inventory. Input tax credit is
not available
situations) when:

(some
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of finished

and
Trade
rebates and
other similar items are
deducted in determining
the costs of purchase.

acquisition
goods, materials
services.

discounts,

(a) Input / input services /
capital goods are used for
personal purposes;

(b) Tax paid under section 10

(inward supplies

composition registrations;
Restricted credits
17(5) of the CGST Act;
Depreciation claimed on
tax portion / element;

from

u/s

(c)
(d)
(e) Input/input services/

capital goods used for
exempted supply

Thus, a systematic
evaluation and process 1is
required to determine “what”
credit is claimed and “what
1s” part of cost of inventory
as per applicable accounting

standard.
AS 9/Ind AS | Revenue recognition | The difference between
115: Revenue | according to Ind AS may | revenue/ turnover as per
Reconciliations | not coincide with | books of account and GST Act

turnover for the purpose
of GST. For example, in
case of multiple element

contracts, total
consideration will be
allocated to each

component based on fair
value of each element.

is very likely in most of the

assessee. A detailed
discussion has been made on
the same in the

Reconciliation chapter.

AS 10/ Ind AS
16: Accounting

for Fixed
Assets /
Property,

The cost of fixed Asset
comprises of its purchase
price including import
duties and other
nonrefundable taxes or

As per Section 18(3) where
the
claimed depreciation on the
tax component of the cost of
capital goods and plant and

registered person has
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Plant and

Equipment

levies and any directly
attributable cost  of
bringing the asset to its
working condition for its

intended use.
Administration and other
general overhead
expenses are usually

excluded from the cost of
fixed assets because they
do not relate to a specific
fixed asset. However, in
circumstances,
such expenses as are
specifically attributable
to construction of a
project or to the
acquisition of a fixed
asset or bringing it to its
working condition, may
be included as part of the
cost of the construction
project or as a part of the
cost of the fixed asset.

some

machinery under the

provisions of the Income-tax

Act, 1961, the input tax
credit on the said tax
component shall not be
allowed.

In nutshell, input tax credit
shall not be allowed on the
tax component of the cost of
capital goods and plant and
machinery if depreciation on
such tax component has been
claimed under the provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 1961

AS 12/Ind AS
20: Accounting
for
Government
Grants

Government grants are
assistance provided by
the Government in cash
or kind to an entity for
past or future compliance
with certain conditions.
Accounting treatment of
Government Grants 1in
Income based approach,

provides for
appropriate amount in
respect of such earned

benefits, estimated on a

an

Under the GST Laws, as per
Sec 15(2)(e) of the CGST Act
“the value of supply shall
include directly
linked to the price excluding

subsidies

subsidies provided by the
Central Government and
State Governments”.

Going by the above
discussion it may be inferred
that Government Grants

would not be treated supply
for the purpose of GST.
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prudent Dbasis, to Dbe
credited to income for the
year even though the
actual amount of such
benefits may be finally
settled and received after
the end of the relevant
accounting period.

Accounting
standard — 18 :
Related Party
disclosures

This Standard should be

applied in  reporting
related party
relationships and
transactions with related
parties. The
requirements of this

Standard apply to the
financial statements of
each reporting enterprise
as also to consolidate
financial statements
presented by a holding

company.

Name of the related
party and nature of the
related party
relationship where

control exists should be
disclosed irrespective of

whether or not there
have been transactions
between the related
parties.

It would be relevant to note
that Related Party as per
Accounting standard 18 and
defined
under valuation provision
under GST may not be the
same, but GST auditor can
refer notes to accounts where

related party as

related party disclosures
have been made to identify
possible related party

transaction from valuation
perspective. Since, in case of
related party transaction,
section 15 of the GST Act
read with valuation rule 28
apply, Auditor may
check whether auditee has
carried out transactions with
related party
valuation rule 28 or not.

will

as per

Some specific

Company

points to be considered while understanding the
financial statements of an Indian Accounting Standard Complied

Every Company to which Ind AS apply is required to prepare its financial
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statements in accordance with Schedule III. Modifications are permitted in
certain circumstances where modification is required to comply with Ind AS.
Some basic points to be considered for Ind AS complied companies are:

> A complete set of financial statements comprises:
(a) a balance sheet as at the end of the period ;
(b) a statement of profit and loss for the period;
(c) Statement of changes in equity for the period;
(d) a statement of cash flows for the period;

(e) notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information; and

> An entity shall present a single statement of profit and loss,
with profit or loss and other comprehensive income presented
in two sections. The sections shall be presented together, with
the profit or loss section presented first followed directly by
the other comprehensive income section.

> The components of other comprehensive income include:

o] changes in revaluation surplus (see Ind AS 16, Property, Plant
and Equipment and Ind AS 38, Intangible Assets)

o] remeasurements of defined benefit plans (see Ind AS 19,
Employee Benefits);

o] gains and losses arising from translating the financial
statements of a foreign operation (see Ind AS 21, The Effects of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates);

o] gains and losses from investments in equity instruments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income in
accordance with paragraph 5.7.5 of Ind AS 109, Financial
Instruments;

o] gains and losses on financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income in accordance with
paragraph 4.1.2A of Ind AS 109.

o] the effective portion of gains and losses on hedging instruments
in a cash flow hedge and the gains and losses on hedging
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instruments that hedge investments in equity instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income in
accordance with paragraph 5.7.5 of Ind AS 109 (see Chapter 6 of
Ind AS 109);

o] for particular liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, the amount of the change in fair value that is
attributable to changes in the liability’s credit risk (see
paragraph 5.7.7 of Ind AS 109)

o] changes in the value of the time value of options when
separating the intrinsic value and time value of an option
contract and designating as the hedging instrument only the
changes in the intrinsic value (see Chapter 6 of Ind AS 109);

o] changes in the value of the forward elements of forward
contracts when separating the forward element and spot
element of a forward contract and designating as the hedging
instrument only the changes in the spot element, and changes in
the value of the foreign currency basis spread of a financial
instrument when excluding it from the designation of that
financial instrument as the hedging instrument (see Chapter 6
of Ind AS 109).

Owners are holders of instruments classified as equity

Profit or loss is the total of income less expenses, excluding
the components of other comprehensive income.

Reclassification adjustments are amounts reclassified to
profit or loss in the current period that were recognised in
other comprehensive income in the current or previous
periods.

Total comprehensive income is the change in equity during a
period resulting from transactions and other events, other
than those changes resulting from transactions with owners
in their capacity as owners.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a
financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.
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o A financial asset is any asset that is:

cash;

an equity instrument of another entity;

a contractual right:

to receive cash or another financial asset from another
entity; or

to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with
another entity under conditions that are potentially
favourable to the entity; or

a contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own
equity instruments and is:

a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be
obliged to receive a variable number of the entity’s own
equity instruments; or

a derivative that will or may be settled other than by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own
equity instruments. For this purpose the entity’s own
equity instruments do not include puttable financial
instruments classified as equity instruments in
accordance with paragraphs 16A and 16B, instruments
that impose on the entity an obligation to deliver to
another party a pro rata share of the net assets of the
entity only on liquidation and are classified as equity
instruments in accordance with paragraphs 16C and
16D, or instruments that are contracts for the future
receipt or delivery of the entity’'s own equity
instruments

0 A financial liability is any liability that is:

a contractual obligation :

to deliver cash or another financial asset to another
entity; or

to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with
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another entity under conditions that are potentially
unfavourable to the entity; or

= a contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own
equity instruments and is:

a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be
obliged to deliver a variable number of the entity’s own
equity instruments; or

a derivative that will or may be settled other than by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own
equity instruments. For this purpose, rights, options or
warrants to acquire a fixed number of the entity’s own
equity instruments for a fixed amount of any currency
are equity instruments if the entity offers the rights,
options or warrants pro rata to all of its existing owners
of the same class of its own non-derivative equity
instruments. Apart from the aforesaid, the equity
conversion option embedded in a convertible bond
denominated in foreign currency to acquire a fixed
number of the entity’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument if the exercise price is fixed in any
currency. Also for these purposes the entity’s own
equity instruments do not include puttable financial
instruments that are classified as equity instruments in
accordance with paragraphs 16A and 16B, instruments
that impose on the entity an obligation to deliver to
another party a pro rata share of the net assets of the
entity only on liquidation and are classified as equity
instruments in accordance with paragraphs 16C and
16D, or instruments that are contracts for the future
receipt or delivery of the entity's own equity
instruments.
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How TO SCRUTINIZE — JOUNRAL AND
LEDGER

SCRUTINY OF JOURNAL VOUCHERS

5.1 The transactions which cannot be accounted through sales, purchase,
payment, receipt vouchers etc. namely “Rectification Entries", “Adjustment
Entries", "Closing or Opening Entries" and making or providing for estimates
are passed through Journal Voucher (JV). Even though primary purpose
of journal vouchers is to account miscellaneous transactions, journal voucher
may use different series of ledger according to type of transaction on double
entry system of accounting; hence, probability of compensating error is much
higher in comparison of other transaction, which may impact the GST
liability.

IMPORTANCE OF STUDY OF JOURNAL VOUCHERS (JVS)

5.2 Study of JVs reflects the entire working of a assessee. It may also
help in identifying the various accounting systems and procedures
adopted for various transactions. For example, if a company is following
a system of cost centers for all the main divisions of a unit, in that case,
purchases, expenses, sale, and other incomes relating to each such cost
center would be accounted for separately. A study of JVs in such system
may help a tax auditor in finding out use of various inward supply of
goods or services in cost centers not engaged in making outward supply or
engaged in making supplies exempt under GST. In case of a
manufacturing company, if construction department, repairs and
maintenance department and training center are separate cost centers, in
that case, use of inward supplies in these departments would be
accounted for separately and study of JVs may show such ineligible items
if input tax credit has been taken. Similarly, taxes paid on inward
supplies used in R&D department may be eligible for input tax credit, but
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company may not be availing credit on such items, and study of JV may
help an auditor in advising the company to avail the credit.

Numbers of adjustment entries are also passed through JVs. Most of
adjustment and rectification entries are also passed through JVs at the
year-end or on a monthly basis. Therefore, these year-end and one or two
month-end JVs must be studied by a tax auditor.

Following case studies may explain the importance of study of a JV.

CASE STUDY -1

5.3 A company is manufacturing machineries, where steel is one of the
inputs and steel waste is generated during the production of final product.
Following two JVs were found at the year-end.

JV-1
Machinery A Alc ... Dr.
Building A/c ... Dr.
Machinery B A/c ... Dr.
Sales Promotion Alc ... Dr.

To Steel control Alc

(Being accounting of steel consumption during the year to various revenue
and capital jobs as per annexure)

JV-2
Factory building construction Alc ...Dr.
To Steel scrap Alc

(Being accounting to steel scrap generated by E.1 Plant used for
construction of chimney and flooring of factory building - E.10).

Explanation: Following facts were noticed on study of above mentioned
two JVs and annexures.

(a) JV-1

(1) Steel items have been used for manufacturing machinery A,
manufacturing machinery B, building construction (angles and
frames), and sales promotion (steel sheet used for making
signboards).
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(i)

(111)

(iv)

()

Steel control A/c was debited on purchase of steel items meant for
production activities. On the basis of monthly issues made by store
department to various manufacturing divisions in the factory, a
monthly JV for following entry was passed to account for raw
material consumption.

E.1 R.M. consumption A/c ...Dr.

E2 -- Ale ...Dr.
E3 -- Alc ...Dr.
E4 -- Ale ...Dr.

To Steel Control A/c

(Monthly consumption of four production centers booked as per
statement received from stores department)

Steel items issued to other divisions like building construction were
not booked on monthly basis because most of the material required
by these sections were generally purchased separately but
whenever materials like steel were available in the plant, same
was used and its accounting was done at the year end.

On all steel items purchased for production centers, input tax
credit was availed. But, input tax credit was not reversed on the
steel used for building construction (assuming capitalized in the
books of account). Hence, a tax auditor could detect wrong
availment of credit by study of said JV.

JV-2

Steel scrap was generated in each manufacturing divisions and it
was transferred to a common scrap yard. Value of steel scrap
(estimated basis) transferred to the scrap yard was given as credit
to the concerned division by passing the following JV:

Steel scrap stock Alc Dr.
To Raw material consumption — Plant E.1 A/c

(15 MT of scrap generated by E-1 plant transferred to scrap yard
during April 2018, valued at ¥6 per kg. and credit given to raw
material consumption A/c of E-1 plant)
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The impact of this entry is that raw material consumption
has been reduced by scrap value.

(1) On sale of scrap following entry was passed.
Bank / Debtor’s A/c ...Dr.
To Steel scrap stock alc
To GST payable Alc

(i11) As per normally accepted accounting principles, sale of scrap or
waste 1s required to be shown separately in the Profit & Loss Alc
but this company is not showing sale of scrap but reducing the
value of raw material consumption. An analysis of raw material
consumption account/COGS could reveal the instances where such
practice has been followed which could have GST impact.

CASE STUDY - 2

5.4 A company manufacturing motor vehicle is having number of
divisions in the factory and each division is a cost center. Unit is availing
input tax credit on capital goods. Following JV was found at the end of a
month:

Sl. Head of A/c Account | Debit Credit
No. code ¢ i
01 Input tax Credit availed on 110107 | 5,20,500
capital goods A/c
02 | Special repair for machinery 420130 10,500
03 | Power plant division 210314 10,000
04 | Building repair (painting shop) 610310 50,000
05 | Electric vehicle division (exempt) 71310 20,000
06 | Pay Roll Department (computers) 50010 36,000
07 | Plant & Machinery (engine EP610 64000
division)
08 | Plant & machinery (body shop) FR 210 3,30,000

Input tax credit items issued during December 2018 as per statements
received from Stores Department).
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Explanation:

(1) During 2018-2019, credit on capital goods was available in full.
Therefore, the company followed a system where based on monthly
issues of capital goods items (including spares), the input tax credit
was availed.

(i1) On going through the JV and its annexure, it was noticed that even
though capital goods were issued to divisions like electric vehicle
division (exempt), the credit on such items were availed which
appears to be wrong.

(i11)  Study of one JV for each month could show use of capital goods in
divisions engaged in making exempt supply and therefore study of
these ledger accounts like electric vehicle division (exempt) (A/c No.
71310) could show wrong availment of credit for entire period.

CASE STUDY-3

5.5 A Company manufacturing milk based nutrients drink for children
introduced a new variety of product and initially supplied the same as free
samples to its depots located in different states so as to analyze the
market preferences. As, no comparable price was available, the company
paid GST on such supply based on a 110% of cost of production which
comes out to be @ ¥3.30 (3+ 0.30) per packet and has also obtained a
certificate from Chartered Accountant to support this valuation.

Following two JVs were found
JV-1 Marketing expense Alc ...Dr. 1,20,000
To Free sample Alc 1,20,000

(Cost of free sample of 30,000 packets cleared during January to March
2018 charged to marketing expenses)

JV-2 Free sample Alc ...Dr. 1,20,000
To Raw Material consumption Alc 70,000
To Packing material consumption A/c 20,000
To Labour A/c 10,000
To Other manufacturing overhead A/c 12,000
To Office overhead A/c 8,000
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(Cost of free samples allocated to various costs as per statement of
production planning Dept.)

Explanation:

(1) From the above JV it was noticed that cost of manufacture of free
samples was charged to Marketing expenses A/c. In the absence of
said accounting treatment the cost of production of goods sold
would have increased.

(i1) From the cost-sheet enclosed with JV, it was noticed that actual
cost of such samples was ¥4 per packets. Moreover, notional profit
of 10% of cost of production was also required to be added to arrive
at correct assessable value as per the Valuation Rules.

(i11)  CA certificate had shown total raw material and packing cost per
unit at ¥2.50, all over head at ¥0.50 and profit of ¥0.30 (10%)
whereas as per company’s own statement, actual costs were much
higher.

(iv) When the manufactured item has been disposed of as sample, there
could be requirement of reversal of credits under section 17. The
review of JV could reveal the instances where such reversal might
have been missed out.

CASE STUDY -4

5.8 A company manufacturing machineries as per the specification
provided by the customer passed following JV:

Customer Alc ...Dr. 67,375
To Interest Alc 67,375

(Interest charged for non-payment of amount as per the agreed payment
schedule by M/s ABC as per details below)

Amt Agreed due Date of Days Interest
date payment Amt @ 16%
5 lakh 1.1.2018 30.6.2018 180 39,452
7 lakh 1.4.2018 30.6.2018 91 27,923
67,375
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Explanation:

(1) In the Profit & Loss Account, interest income was shown but
generally no further explanation is called for such income by
auditors because interest income is earned on investments made by
a company.

(i1) Study of JV showed that the company had the system of taking
contract amount in two installments. In case of non-payment of
amount, the company was charging interest. The said interest
amount is an additional consideration, which may be required to be
added in the assessable value in terms of section 15 of the CGST
Act, 2017.

CASE STUDY -5
5.9  Following JV was found while scrutinizing records of a company.
XYZ Ltd., New York, USA A/c ...Dr 57 lakhs
To Custom duties paid A/c 57 lakhs

(Being the amount of customs duties to be recovered from XYZ Ltd.(supplier),
USA because of damage of DG set imported by us and got damaged in transit
from Mumbai Port to factory, as per condition of agreement and insurance

policy).
Explanation:

(1) On going through the LC (letter of credit) and other
correspondences with the supplier of machinery, it was noticed that
insurance was taken by the supplier and insurance cover was for
delivery upto the factory. In this case after payment of customs
duties at Mumbai Port, the machinery got damaged in transit from
the Port to the factory. Hence, as per the conditions of the
insurance policy, even the customs duties paid were required to be
reimbursed by the insurance company. Hence, the JV was passed.

(i1) Further scrutiny of INPUT TAX credit revealed that company had
availed input tax Credit on said machinery,

(i11)  In fact, the said machine was exported, and a free replacement was
received, on which company had paid customs duties and availed
the INPUT TAX credit also.
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The above-mentioned case studies clearly show that scrutiny of JVs is
very important, and number of tax related issues can be discovered. Such
issues could escape the attention of a tax auditor in case of their failure to
study the financial records.

SCRUTINY OF GENERAL LEDGER
Which ledger to be seen

5.10 A company maintains different types of ledgers like Debtor’s
ledger, Creditor’s ledger and General Ledger. A General Ledger contains
the accounts of assets, liabilities, incomes and expenditures. A tax auditor
may be interested in finding out whether a unit has paid taxes on the
correct value or the input tax credit availed by them is in order. These
aspects can be verified by a study of income and expenditure accounts.
Since the General Ledger contains all the income and expenditure
accounts, its study is most important as a part of audit. Study of the
debtor’s ledger and the creditor’s ledger may also reveal important points
to a tax auditor. The study of General Ledger has been discussed in detail
in this chapter along with important aspects of debtor’s and creditor’s
ledgers.

Which Accounts to be scrutinized?

5.11 A General Ledger may contain 100-500 accounts depending upon
the size of a company and also depending upon the accounting policy
followed by a company. For example, a company may account for the
purchases of all types of raw material in one account, whereas another
company may maintain separate accounts for each major raw material. As
the General Ledger contains a large number of accounts, and a tax auditor
may not be interested in all accounts, therefore selection of accounts for
scrutiny is very important. The first step in this direction is to obtain the
list of accounts in the ledger. The list of accounts is normally available as
an index in the General Ledger. Account numbers are generally allotted
keeping all similar account in same series. For example, all assets
accounts may be given 500 series, liabilities accounts may be given 600
series, expenditure accounts may be given 700 series and so on. An
understanding of the account code logic helps an auditor in identifying the
nature of a particular account. Another method for finding out the account
number is to ask for the trial balance. The trial balance contains the
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account number, description of account, debit amount, credit amount and
the balance. In other words, a list of all accounts having a balance is
available in the trial balance. It is advisable to obtain the trial balance
showing total debits and trial credit amount for each account in the ledger
because if the company furnishes a trial balance, where only net balance
(debit or credit) is given, in that case it is possible that some accounts,
whose balance at the end of the year is NIL, may not be reflected in the
trial balance and there may escape the auditors scrutiny. For example, if
a company is recovering packing charges from customers and crediting in
a account viz. Packing Material Recovery Account, but if at the end of the
month the balance in that account is transferred to the Packing Material
Purchase Account in that case the Packing Material Recovery Account
may not be shown in trial balance showing only net balances. For a tax
auditor the said account could be very important for determining correct
value for payment of GST. Therefore, it should be ensured that a trial
balance showing the total debit and credits should be obtained for audit
purposes.

General Rules for Selection of Accounts for Scrutiny

5.12 There are no fixed rules as to which accounts should be selected for
scrutiny by a tax auditor because companies manufacture different
products, follow different accounting policies, different marketing policies,
or use different types of accounting software packages. The selection of
accounts also depends upon the audit plan. Following general rules may
be kept in mind while selecting the accounts for scrutiny.

(a) Credit entries in raw material or other input purchase account
(b) Credit entries in expense account

(c) Income accounts

(d) Unusual accounts

CASE STUDY 6

5.13 Let us consider the following ledger account of a company
manufacturing aluminum pipes and maintaining computerized accounts.

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India



How To Scrutinize — Jounral and Ledger 139

Date
2018

Document

reference

Description

Debit

Amount

Credit

Amount

01.04

P.Inv.5802

To HINDALCO

5,560,000

02.04

P.Inv.5880

To HINDALCO

1,40,000

02.04

D/N.150

By HINDALCO

35,000

28.04

D/N 158

By HINDALCO

8,440

30.04

JV-121

By INPUT TAX Alc

96,000

30.04

JV-122

By R.M. Consumption A/c

5,25,000

30.04

JV.123

By Building A/c

5,000

From the above account, please state what is your understanding of each

entry:-

Solution:

Entry No

Transaction

Entry 1

Company purchased aluminum from Hindalco for ¥5,50,000.

Entry 2

Company purchased aluminum from HINDALCO for
31,40,000.

Entry 3

Debit note No.150 dated 02.04.2018 issued to HINDALCO
for ¥35,000/-.It means company has to collect ¥35,000/- from
HINDALCO. Debit note might have been issued for reasons
like :-

(a) Rejection and return of goods.

(b)  Price charged more by HINDALCO

(¢) Quality not proper, hence prices reduced

(d) Discount not given by HINDALCO in purchase invoice
as agreed by them in purchase order confirmation.

Entry 4

Debit Note No.158 dated 28.04.2018 issued to HINDALCO
for recovering ¥8440 for various reasons discussed above.

Entry 5

Journal Voucher No.121 dated 30.04.2018 passed for
transferring an amount of ¥96,000 to input tax credit Alc. It
means, initially Purchase Account is debited for full value
including GST and at the end of the month, GST amount is
transferred to input tax credit Account..
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Entry 6 JV No: 122 passed whereby Raw Material Consumption
Account has been debited.
Entry 7 JV No. 123 passed for transferring 5000 to Building Alc.

A reading of the said Aluminum Purchase Account will show that entries
in the credit side of the account are important because these might have a
bearing on input tax credit availment. In the present case, the tax auditor
should call for Debit Note No0.150 & 158 and JV No.121, 122 and 123 to
find out exact reasons for such transaction.

On examination of these documents, the following facts were noticed:

(a) DN 150 was issued because of short receipt of aluminum ingot from
HINDALCO. Initially GRN was prepared based on quantity
mentioned in Invoice and Delivery Challan of HINDALCO.
Thereafter a remark was made on GRN about short receipt. Copy of
GRN was also enclosed with Debit Note.

Exercise:13-D: What accounting entry have been passed for
recording this transaction in the books.

[Being short receipt of 3500 kg. of ingot against purchase invoice
No. 5802 dt. 24.03.2018. Debit Note No. 150 issued to HINDALCO.

(b) D.N. 158 has been issued to HINDALCO as they have charged a
higher rate than that agreed as per the Purchase Order. The
description in the debit note reads as below:

— Rate charged in Invoice No: 5880 dated 28.03.2018 I85/Kg.

— Rate as per P.O.No. IND-59 dated 20.03.2018 I80/Kg.
— Difference in prices for 1300 Kg 36,500
— Difference in Sales Tax &E.duty (1040 + 900) 31,940

Note: In case of DN 150 & 158, a tax auditor may like to verify
whether input tax credit was reversed by the company or not.

(c) JV.No 121: Following entry has been passed.
Input tax credit Alc Dr. 96,000/-
To Aluminum Purchase Alc 96,000/-
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(Being the input tax credit availed for the month of April 2018 on
purchase of Aluminum transferred to input tax credit Account)

Exercise 13-E: As a tax auditor what would you like to verify to
confirm the correctness of above information?

Exercise: 13-F: As per the GST return filed with the department
the total Credit availed on Aluminum Ingot is ¥1,20,000. What
would you like to verify further and why?

JV.122 —Following entry has been passed
R.M. Consumption Alc Dr. 5,25,000/-
To Aluminum Purchase A/c 5,25,000/-

(Being consumption of Aluminum for April 2018 as per statement
of Stores Department).

From this JV, one fact comes to the knowledge of the tax auditor
that the company has a regular system of determining consumption
of raw-material based on total issues made by the store department
to production departments. Therefore, he may find out what are
the statements/report generated by stores and production
department about raw-material consumption, wastage, damage and
obsolete items. This may help him in determining the input-output
ratio, any unusual happening like theft of material or destruction
of material or percentage of wastages etc.

JV No. 123 — The description in the JV shows that some of the
aluminum item namely rods were used for construction of a
building, Therefore, the value of such pipes has been debited to the
building account. A tax auditor should verify whether credit was
reversed on such goods or not.

Scrutiny of Other Income Accounts

5.14 A quick study of description of income accounts from the trial
balance may help a tax auditor to select relevant accounts for further
scrutiny. For example, accounts like interest on investment, or dividend
may not be of much relevance from the GST point of view. For other
accounts, a detailed scrutiny of nature of these incomes is very important.
The scrutiny of these accounts should be done from the following two

angles:
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1) Whether the nature of income is such that GST is liable to be paid
or which is required to be added to the assessable value of supply of
goods or services affected by them.

(11) If (1) is yes, whether all such supplies have suffered payment of
GST.

Nature of Account

5.15 After selection of accounts, the first task of a tax auditor is to find
out the exact nature of transactions covered by such account. Study of
details in source documents like description in invoice or narration in
voucher or study of other related documents like copies of agreements
may help in finding out correct nature of transaction.

Unusual Accounts

5.16 Before commencement of audit, a tax auditor should acquaint
himself with the working of the unit. Once the broad working of the unit
is known to the auditor, study of the trial balance become easier. With the
experience, a tax auditor may know as to what type of accounts are
commonly prepared by a particular industry. Therefore, sometimes, study
of a trial balance may reveal some unusual accounts, which are commonly
not found in a particular industry or the nature of account itself may show
some relevance to the determination of the tax liability.
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HOW TO STUDY FINANCIAL DOCUMENTS

STUDY OF ANNUAL REPORT OF A COMPANY
What is Annual Report

6.1 As per the provisions of the Companies Act all companies are
required to prepare an annual report for submission to the shareholders
for consideration in the annual general meeting. The Annual report is
prepared every year and it contains the following:

(1) Directors’ Report
(i1) Statutory auditor's Report

(111)  Financial statements i.e., Balance Sheet, P & L A/c, notes and Cash
Flow Statements etc.

(iv)  Disclosure as required under SEBI Act.

v) Financial statements of subsidiary companies, if any (Seetion212)
(vi)  Corporate Governance report

(vi1) Management discussion and analysis report

Whenever copies of Balance Sheet and profit and loss account are called
for from the assessees, they submit the said annual report only. To a GST
auditor not only the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account but
all other information available in the annual report is useful.

General Information

6.2 Details such as names of directors, addresses of manufacturing
plants, registered office, corporate office, name of auditors etc. are
available on first few pages of the annual report. Composition of the board
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of director may show whether the company is closely held company
(mostly family members) or otherwise. Information about location of
service provider/ manufacturer may be used to find out some more details
about type of services provided or products manufactured.

Director's Report (Section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013)

6.3 Directors are required to submit certain reports to the stakeholders
about the activities and progress of the company, one such report is
Directors Report. This report is given by the directors of the company to
the shareholders and it is given after statutory audit of the company is
completed. It contains the following information:

(1) Financial highlights;
(i1) Amounts proposed for transfer to reserves;
(111)  Proposed dividend,;

(iv)  the extract of the annual return as provided under sub-section (3)
of section 92;

v) a statement on declaration given by independent directors under
sub-section (6) of section 149;

(vi)  explanations or comments by the Board on every qualification,
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer made by the auditor in
his report; and by the company secretary in practice in his
secretarial audit report;

(vil) particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186;

(viil) particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 in the prescribed form;

(ix) Important happenings, trends, future plans;
(x) Explanation on auditor’s qualification;

(xi)  Details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign
exchange earnings and outgo

(xi1) Key Managerial Personnel
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(x111) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Overall financial results like income (Turnover of Goods or Services and
other income), total expenditure, gross profit, depreciation, interest, tax
expense, net profit or loss are reported in summarized form in the
director’s report. The director's may also inform the shareholders about
any 1mportant events or development or material charges and
commitments affecting financial position of the company during the year.
The auditor may go through the reports to see whether any of the remarks
of the authority of the assessee has any adverse aspect on the GST
valuation and tax liability. Report also contains the director comments on
adverse report of statutory auditor.

CASE STUDY -1

6.4  Following observations were found in the director’s report in the
Annual Report of three companies:

Illustrations (a): "During the year a major fire broke out at our Pune
plant in August 2005 resulting in substantial damage to the paper making
plant and the burning of raw-material and finished goods. The company
has lodged the insurance claim. However, we were able to repair the plant
and manufacturing activities were restarted by end of February 2016. Due
to stoppage of this plant our profits have reduced substantially”.

Explanation:

The above remarks in director’s report could be very useful to a GST
auditor to find out following aspects:-

(1) Whether Input tax credit was reversed on input or input contained
in work in progress and finished goods destroyed by fire.

(i1) Whether any of the capital goods, which got damaged, have been
cleared as scrap and whether Input tax credit was availed in the
past on the said capital goods.

Copies of insurance claim should be obtained to find out the details of the
claim lodged with insurance company. One important area to be verified is
whether tax element has also been claimed from insurance company. If so,
whether provisions of Section 76 can be invoked.
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Similarly, any other major happening like theft, loss by flood etc. may also
find place in director’s report and it may be useful to a GST auditor. A
Company may acquire shareholding in other company by which it may
become a holding company or some other company may acquire majority
shares, whereby, this company may become a subsidiary company would
be mention in the director’s report.

CASE STUDY - 2

6.5 “In order to strengthen marketing activities, your company have
acquired majority shares in ABC Marketing Ltd., which had become a
subsidiary company from this year”.

Explanation :

The above information is very important to a GST auditor and he may
inquire the matter further from valuation angle. He may like to find out
whether the company is supply of services or goods to the subsidiary
company or vice-versa. In the present valuation provisions, holding and
subsidiary company have been treated as “related person” and the rate at
which the buyer company is supplying goods or services is considered as
the transaction value for payment of GST. The same is also to be
examined from the perspective of second proviso to Rule 28.

CASE STUDY - 3

6.6  Please read the following excerpts from a director’s report. What
further information should be called for by a GST auditor and why?

“Your company has initiated various actions to meet the challenges of the
market. Among the steps taken are introduction of state-of-the-art new
products, provision of technical and engineering services and starting of
e-commerce marketing. Your company is among the first few in the
country to start trading though web-site”.

Explanation:

(1) Exact nature of engineering services provided to customer should
be inquired into to determine the nature of supply as to whether
the same qualifies as two standalone different supplies, composite

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India



How to Study Financial Documents 147

supply or mixed supply. The rate of tax of GST may vary in all such
cases on goods and services.

(i1) Exact system of trading on e-com basis should be found out to
verify correctness aspects like time of supply, replacement policy
for credit notes etc.

CASE STUDY - 4

6.7 Please read following excerpts from director’s report of a
machinery-manufacturing unit. As a GST auditor which important areas
you may like to inquire into.

“Performance and profitability: During the year under reference your
Company has incurred a loss of ¥ 9002.73 lakhs (for 18 months) on a
turnover of ¥ 8785.39 Lakhs The expenses to the extent of T 3589.20 lakhs
has been charged to the profit and loss account pertaining to earlier years.
The loss is mainly attributable to higher depreciation, write off of slow and
non-moving and obsolete inventory, as suggested by the concurrent
auditors appointed by the lead bank and higher interest burden. In
addition, there has been increase in cost of raw materials and components
consumed which could not be absorbed in the selling price.”

Explanation:

(1) Details of write-off of slow, non-moving and obsolete inventory and
whether input tax credit under Section 17(5) of CGST Act has been
reversed thereof. Whether these have been sold subsequently and
treatment of Input Tax Credit thereof made by the assessee.

(11) What is the impact of increase in raw-material cost to Payment of
tax by Cash/ Payment of Tax by Credit ratio.

(111)  Expenses of previous years- Does it include inputs on which credit
was availed in the past.

CASE STUDY - 5
6.8 Following facts are available to a GST auditor about a unit.

M/s. A Ltd is engaged in manufacture of PFY, texturized yarn and
weaving of man-made fabric. The woven fabric is sent to another company
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viz., Process and Print 1td (PPL) for processing and printing who pays the
GST on processed fabric.

While taking round of factory of A Ltd it was noticed that processing
house of PPL was situated adjacent to its plant in the same compound.

Following excerpts are noticed from the director's report of A Ltd for the
year 2014- 2015

(R In Lakhs)

Financial Results 2017-18 2016-17
Total Income 38073.37 35655.44
Profit before Depreciation & Tax 2688.27 4200.30
Less: (i) Depreciation 1652.20 1247.87
(ii) Tax 0.50 0.50
Net Profit 1035.57 2951.93
Add: Balance brought forward from
Earlier years 3123.37 1653.02
Balance available for appropriation 4158.94 4604.95
Appropriations
(a) Debenture Redemption Reserve 42.00 221.90
(b) Proposed Dividend 973.10 959.68
(c) Investment Allowance Reserve 1115.00
(d) General Reserve 105.00 300.00
(e) Balance carried forward 1923.84 8123.87
4158.94 4604.95
Dividend

Your Board of Directors recommends a dividend at the rate of 10% on its
equity capital of ¥ 97.31 Crores. In view of the fall in net profits, the
Board of Directors finds it appropriate to conserve its resources and
accordingly reduce the rate of dividend from 19% declared for the year
2013-14 on the capital of 50.51 Crores. The total outflow of dividend for
the year 2014-15 will be ¥ 973.10 lakhs.

Fixed Deposits
During the year the company accepted Fixed Deposits from the public
amounting to I 6 crores.
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Operations

The Company's business was adversely hit by a continued and substantial
increase in the cost of raw materials. This compounded by sluggish
indigenous demand of polyester filament yarn which put pressure on the
profit margins of the Company.

On the traditional synthetic fabric front, the Company was hit by the
introduction of GST on texturized yarn, which hitherto was exempt. The
increased cost of texturized yarn, which is an input component for
manufacture of good quality fabric, for which the company has earned its
brand value, increased the cost of production of fabric. The Company was,
in the short run, unable to pass on the increase to its consumers due to
demand recession experienced in this business, thereby further eroding
the operating profits.

The year saw a steep across the board increase in international prices of
paraxylene, PTA and MEG which unfavourably affected the prices of
polyester chips, the core raw material for making of polyester filament
yarn.

This increase in the input cost, accompanied with a stagnant demand for
polyester filament yarn in India, evidenced by subdued yarn prices in the
domestic market squeezed the Company of its operating profits in yarn
manufacturing activity, which otherwise was expected to contribute to the
overall profitability of the Company.

The Company, however, continued to concentrate on its inherent
strengths and introduced new qualities, weaves and prints, during the
year to counter the unfavourable outcome of the hostile external factors.

The Micra and Micrel range of dress materials and sarees received a good
response from the consumer as well as the ready-made garment industry.

The exports of the company fell marginally during the year due to
international demand recession. The company, however, for the first time
exported ready-to-wear garments, which were received well. The company
is exploring possibilities of export of its traditional fabrics as well as
ready-to-wear garments to new and virgin markets.

Future Outlook

The company has invested in a highly sophisticated state-of-the-art
CAD-CAM system used for printing of fabrics. This will not only allow the
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company to introduce superior, precise and intricate designs but will also
enable the company to respond to quick trend changes in a highly
competitive market.

The company is in the process of developing new microfilament and
blended qualities to increase its market share in premium silk- like
polyester fabrics. New printing styles like "flock" and "rubber" print
developed by the company will go a long way in maintaining the appeal
the consumer has always had for the company's products.

The company has franchised eight outlets in different cities to market its
Men's Designer Wear under the brand name "K CLOTHING" and the
response is promising.

The company expects to improve its performance in the current year in
view of stabilized raw material prices, aggressive product innovation and
strict cost control.

Environment & Pollution Control

The management has undertaken the upkeep of the areas surrounding its
factories and offices and made efforts to keep the nearby habitat healthy
and hygienic. It also supports local groups which function to make the
environment cleaner and pollution-free.

The major part of the company's activities does not generate any effluents.
Steps to minimize the damage to the environment and ecology caused by
printing and processing of synthetic textiles are being taken by the
management.

Energy, Technology and Foreign Exchange

Information on conservation of energy, technology absorption, adoption
and innovation and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, as required by
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Disclosure of particulars in the report of Board of Directors) Rules, is
annexed to the Directors Repot marked as Annexure "A".

Personnel

A statement giving details of the employees in accordance with section
134 read with companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, , as amended,
1s annexed to the report marked as Annexure “B”.

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India



How to Study Financial Documents 151

Directors

Shri. S.K.Chandra, Shri. K.P. Ramnan and Smt. K. Subramani retire at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment.

Auditors

The company's Auditors Messrs. Vasudev & Co. Chartered Accountants
retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer
themselves for reappointment.

Comments on The Auditors Report
The observations made in the Auditors Report are self-explanatory and

therefore do not call for any further comments under Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

ANNEXURE “A”

Information as per Section 134 read with the Companies (Disclosure of
Particulars in the Repot of Board of Directors) Rules and forming part of
the Directors Report.

1. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
(a) Energy Conservation measures taken:

(1) Warm water generated through the heat exchanger during
the cooling process in jet dyeing machines is re-used for
other processes requiring warm water, thereby saving on
steam and fuel.

(i1) Installation of press switches on jet dyeing machines for
view glass illumination lamp, thereby saving on electricity.

(111) Installation of FRP sheets on the factory roofs to facilitate
penetration of sunlight, thereby saving on artificial lighting
and electricity.

(iv)  Use of electronic ballast to reduce power consumption

v) Efficient use of 100 KVA sub-station for uninterrupted
power supply.

(b) Additional investments and proposals being implemented for
reduction of consumption of energy :
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@

(i)

The Company has entered into an association with National
Productivity Council (NPC), Government of India and
United Nation Industrial Development Organization
(UNIDO) for control of industrial waste.

Efforts are going on across the company for achievement of
international standard for water consumption per linear
meter,

(c) Impact of measures (a) & (b) above for reduction of energy

consumption and consequent impact on cost of production:

With the various measures undertaken and proposed to be

undertaken, the energy consumption is likely to go down and result

in reduction in cost of production.

ANNEXURE “A”
“FORM A”

From of Disclosure of Particulars with respect to Conservation of Energy

2014-15 2013-14
A. Power and fuel consumption
1. Electricity
(a) Purchased Units in lakhs 533 484
Total amount ¥ in lakhs 1419 1232
Rate/Unit X 2.66 2.54
(b) Own Generation :
1) Through Diesel Generator
Units in lakhs 6.12 7.56
Units per Ltr. of Diesel Oil 2.73 2.86
Cost/Unit X 3.35 2.73
(11) Through Stem turbine/Generator Units  NIL NIL
Units per Ltr. of Oil/gas NIL NIL
Cost/Unit X NIL NIL
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2. Coal/Lignite for Generation of Steam for Jet dyeing:

Usage in Boilers and Thermo-Pack. Quantity used “C” Grade

Quantity (M.T) 24917 20725
Total Cost X in lakhs 387.24 278.99
Average rate I /M.T 1554 1346
3. Furnace Oil
Quantity (K Lts) NIL NIL
Total Amount NIL NIL
Average rate ¥ /Tonne NIL NIL
4. Others/Internal generation
Quantity NIL NIL
Total cost NIL NIL
Rate/ Unit X NIL NIL
B. Consumption per unit of production
Product : Textile Fabrics Mtr. Mtr.
* Electricity (Unit) 1.17 1.14
Furnace Oil NIL NIL
* Coal / Lignite (kg) 0.67 0.51
Others N.A. N.A

* Increase in Consumption per unit of production for textile fabrics
is due to change in product mix and installation of additional
printing machinery for product improvement.

What important points can be noticed by a GST auditor from
reading of above director’s report and what further information
would he like to obtain.
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Key learning:

@

(i1)

(i11)

(iv)

Para on Future Outlook mention that company has invested in
CAD-CAM system used for printing of fabric.

Para on Environment and Pollution Control mention about steps
taken to minimise damage to environment by printing and
processing.

Annexure A on Conservation of Energy mention about use of jet-
dyeing machine.

Power and Fuel Consumption report shows use of coal/lignite for
Jet-dying machine.

All the four factor show that even though A Ltd. was not having textile
processing and printing facilities still they were spending on such

activities and invested in such facilities, prima facie it shows that A Ltd.,

and Process and Print Ltd., are functioning as one unit.

Further information to be called for from A Ltd & PPL:

()

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®
€]

Share holding pattern of both company and common director’s
shareholding.

Details of plant and machinery used by PPL — who owns it and
whether there can be said to be a supply of use of such machine to
other company.

Actual use of coal/lignite? Expenditure for running of Jet-dyeing
machine of PPL incurred by whom- whether supply and GST levy
thereon?

Comparison of transaction value of processed fabric declared by
PPL and sale price of A Ltd — transaction Value from the
perspective of related parties.

Whether PPL is undertaking processing only for A Ltd or any other
customer also?

Processing charges charged by PPL to A Ltd and to other customer.
Any other transactions between A Ltd and PPL.
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The investigation revealed following points:

(1) Difference between transaction value of fabric adopted by PPL for
payment of GST and sale price of fabric by A Ltd (excluding GST)
was in the range of 60% to 80%. This need to be examined from the
perspective of related party valuation.

(i1) Both companies were promoted by same group of directors. More
than 50% directors were common.

(i11)  Scrutiny of details in Balance Sheet showed that PPL had sold part
of the processing house to A Ltd but still the said plant and
machineries were used by PPL for processing of fabric of A Ltd.

(iv) A Ltd had undertaken R & D activities for PPL in the areas of
printing designs, etc., and all expenses were incurred by A Ltd.

V) Entire quantity of coal/lignite used by PPL were purchased by A
Ltd and paid by them.

(vi)  Process charges recovered from A Ltd were 30% to 40% lower than
charged to other customers by PPL.

(vil) Common facilities were provided by A Ltd without compensation.

(viii) Profits were diverted to PPL by way of trading in yarn and showing
sale of goodwill by PPL to A Ltd.

All of the above points need to be examined from the perspective of related
party transactions and supplies exigible to GST.

STUDY OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Statutory Audit

6.9 This audit is mandatory for all companies incorporated under the
Companies Act like Private Limited or Public Limited Company. Only a
Chartered Accountant is authorized to carry out such audit. The statutory
auditor is appointed by the shareholders in the annual general meeting.
The report is given by the auditor after thorough examination of the book
of accounts and all related records and documents. Once this report is
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given, the accounts of the company are finalized and thereafter no
changes can be made in the accounts of a company.

6.10 Based on study of the records of a company, a statutory auditor is
required to give his opinion on following important aspects:

Whether the financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company.

A specimen format of Independent auditor’s report is given
below:

“Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of ABC Ltd.”
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of of ABC Ltd.,
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2016, the Profit and
Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the
preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
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preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial
statements based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of
the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are
required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those
Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement. An audit involves
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial
control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give
the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2016
and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Indirect Taxes Committee



158 Background Material on Training Program for Government Officials

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the
Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section
(11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the
matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of
those books;

(c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the cash flow
statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply
with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors
as on 31 March 2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2016 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

® with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”; and

(2) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on
its financial position in its financial statements — Refer Note
(No) to the financial statements;
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1. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

1ii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to
be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Qualified Opinion

6.11 Sometime, an auditor may not be satisfied with the profit/loss
determined by the unit or with the financial position of a unit reflected in
the balance sheet on account of reasons like making of insufficient
provisions for expenses or non-verification of stock or non-receipt of
confirmations of amount due from other unit etc. In that case, auditor
gives his opinion subject to certain reservations and he is said to have
given a qualified opinion. For example, an auditor may state “subject to
non-provision of gratuity amounting to ¥ 120 lakhs (note 8 in notes on
account), non- provision for obsolete items for ¥ 328 lakhs (note 12 in
notes on account) we report that the balance sheet shows a true and fair
view ..... ”. In other words, auditor has given his opinion that balance
sheet shows true and fair view of the affairs of the company subject to the
fact that company has not made provisions for said two liabilities and
accordingly profits of the company have been over reported to the extent
of said amounts.

Some more examples of qualification given in auditors report are given
below:-

(a) “Subject to note No. 9 regarding non-reconciliation of certain stocks
of finished goods between stock records and GST records at one of
the units and subject to note No. 13 regarding non-provisions for
diminution in value, if any, in respect of slow/non-moving
inventory, effect of which is not ascertainable by us, the balance
sheet gives true and fair view of the state of affairs as at 31st March,
2016: and ...........c....... 7
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(b) “In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the Balance Sheet, subject to our
remarks in paragraph 2.1 below, also gives a true and fair view of
the state of the Company’s affairs as at March 31, 2016.”

Para 2.1 reads as under:-

“2.1  As explained in Note 10 in Schedule 8, no provision has been made
in the accounts towards the installments of Technical Know-how fee
payable aggregating to I 3,97,45,000 which however, does not have any
effect on the net worth of the Company.”

A careful reading of auditor’s report reveals number of important
point to a GST auditor. In the case of illustrations given above
following areas are of interest to a GST auditor: -

1) Obsolete items — whether credit reversal is necessary.

(1) Non-reconciliation of stock as per GST records and stock records-

reason to be examined.

(111)  Technical know-how fee — why provision not made? Whether GST
paid by service provider? Whether service provider is also a

customer of the company.

Disclaimer of Opinion

6.12 Sometimes, an auditor may fail to obtain sufficient records or
evidences to satisfy himself about correctness of certain transactions in
that case he may make a disclaimer opinion. For example, an auditor may
report that “due to a major fire at the administrative office of the company
most of the records were destroyed but these were reconstructed. In view of
non-availability of original records, we are unable to state whether the

Sy

balance sheet shows a true and fair ....

A GST auditor should carefully read the statutory auditors report and if
any qualified opinion or disclaimer of opinion has been given, he should
examine these opinions carefully and draw up his audit plan accordingly.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Financial Statements will have Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and
Loss as also cash Flow Statement. Notes attached and forming part of the
above gives significant information which can be of interest to the GST
auditor such as segment wise results and related party transactions.

Study of Balance Sheet

6.13 In financial accounting, a Balance sheet is a summary of the
financial balances of a Business organization. It may be defined as
“a statement which sets out the assets and liabilities of an
organization at a certain date. However, since the balance sheet is
prepared on a particular date, the same does not constitute the
summary of the activities of the assessee. Traditionally, the
balance sheet used to be prepared in horizontal form (tabular
format) showing assets and liabilities on two sides. In the revised
format of Schedule III, the balance sheet is prepared in vertical
form showing “Sources of Funds” and “Application of Funds”. These
two headings are same as liabilities and assets of a company as we
have already study in details under Chapter 4.

The auditor may review the balance sheet to examine the following
implications under different heads as described below:

a. Share Capital

Details of Shares issued may be examined to examine if any Shares were
issued for consideration other than cash and GST implications in the
hands of the purchaser.

b.  Loans (Liability)

Loans taken or given may be reviewed, so that the impact of the same on
valuation may be investigated.

c. Sundry Creditors

Sundry Creditors may be reviewed to determine non-moving creditors and
their reversal of Input tax Credit under Rule 37. Total credit side of
transactions summary of Sundry Creditors reflect the transaction of
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purchases (including GST) made by an entity during the year. Any major
deviation from the total purchases may be examined.

d.  Other Liabilities

Other Liabilities are also to be examined from the perspective of levy of
GST. For eg., deferred revenue needs to be examined from the perspective
of time of supply and such amount may be exigible in the current year
itself, security deposits and its adjustments are important from the
perspective of levy of GST, GST liability balances should reconcile with
GST balances as per returns etc.

e. Fixed Assets

Details of Fixed Asset may be examined to ensure that Input Tax Credit
availed on capital goods has not been reflected as cost of fixed assets and
correct Input Tax Credit has been availed on the capital goods. Sale of
fixed assets is to be examined to determine the levy of GST on such supply
and also, if any Input tax Credit is to be reversed in cases where Capital
Goods are sold within 60 months from the date of purchase.

f. Investments

Details of Investments to be examined to determine exigibility of GST on
returns therefrom. Also, certain investments may require reversal of
Input tax Credit under Rule 42 and 43 of CGST Rules.

g. Sundry Debtors

Total debit of transaction summary of Sundry Debtors reflects the total
supplies made by an entity and any major deviation from the value of
Supplies in profit and loss account along with GST need to be looked into
by the GST auditor. Sundry Debtor are also to be examined to
understand the credits made therein (Credit Notes) and their allowability
under Section 34 of CGST Act.

h. Other Assets

Other assets include items which are important to be looked into from the
perspective of GST likability. For eg., prepaid expenses are to be looked
to determine availability of Input Tax credit as per Section 16(2) of CGST
Act, any advances given for purchases should include GST part also etc.
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1. Overall

The auditor may also compare the balance sheet with the previous year’s
details to find out whether there are any major developments in the
financial structure of the assessee and if there are any, the auditor may
enquire into the same.

CASE STUDY - 6

6.14 Please read the following excerpts from a Balance Sheet Schedule.

What further information should be called for by a GST auditor and why?
(R in Thousands)

Schedules forming part of the Balance sheet as at 31st March, 2016

31st March, 31st March,

2016 2015
Schedule ‘1’
Share capital:
Authorised:
32,000,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each ¥ 320,000 ¥ 320,000
Issued and Subscribed:
31,568,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 3 315,680 % 315,680
Paid-up @ ¥ 5 each for 31,568,000 % 157,840 g 157,000

Equity Shares of the above shares

1) 31,301 shares are allotted as
fully paid-up to Roxel Inc., USA
to in consideration of supply of
technical know-how.

(11) 23,360,000 shares are held by
the Holding Company, S.S.
Company New Jersey, U.S.A.
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From the study of share capital schedule in the balance sheet, a GST
auditor may find out whether the company is a subsidiary company and
who is the holding company of this company. Moreover, the extent of
shares held by the holding company or the ultimate holding companies can
also be found out. This aspect becomes very important if the goods or
services have been supplied or received from such a holding company, in
that case the valuation aspect need to be examined in detail in view of the
valuation provisions in the GST law.

CASE STUDY-7

6.15 Following details of reserve and surplus as found in the balance
sheet of a company is given below:

(X In Lakhs)

Reserves & surplus: 31.3.2016 | 31.3.2015

1. Capital Reserve (on sale of Fixed Assets)

As per last Balance Sheet 125 125

2. General Reserve
As per last Balance Sheet 305 250
Add: Transfer from Profit & Loss Account 80 55

3. Debenture Redemption Reserve

Transfer from Profit & Loss Account 30

4. Surplus as per profit and loss account. 329 267

From the above details it will be noticed that during the year certain
amount has been transferred from the Profit & Loss account to the
General Reserve. Debenture Redemption Reserve has also been created
during the year by transferring an amount of ¥ 30 lakhs from Profit &
Loss Account because debentures valued at ¥ 30 lakhs have to be
redeemed in the next year. Similarly, a capital reserve has been created
out of the profit earned on sale of fixed assets and this reserve is to be
utilized in future for purchase of a new plant by the company. A Tax
auditor may get an idea about the financial health of the company by
reading the changes taken place under the head “Reserves and Surplus’. If
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the company is profit making, their balances under this head would be on
the increasing trend. But if the company is making losses, reserves may
show negative amount.

Non-Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities consists of the following items:
Long Term Borrowings

Bonds/Debentures

Term Loans from Banks and Others

Deferred Payment Liabilities

Deposits

Loans and Advances from Relative Parties

NS gk ® o

Long term maturities of Finance lease obligations

Classification of Assets and Liabilities into Current and Non-
Current

Concept of classified balance sheet was introduced, according to which all
assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current categories
applying the definitions of Current / Non-current asset / liability and
operating cycle provided in the Schedule itself.

In case the company has a practice of taking advances from the customer,
whether service tax liability has accrued under the Point of Taxation
Rules requires to be looked into. Other Current liabilities include Income
received in advance, Statutory remittances, Payables on purchase of Fixed
Assets, Advances from Customers, Security deposits received, etc.

The amounts due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have to be
disclosed whether Input Tax Credit has been reversed if not paid within
the prescribed period may be verified by the GST auditor.

Contingent Liabilities

6.18 As per the provisions of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013,
contingent liabilities are required to shown as a note to the Balance
Sheet. Contingent Liabilities mean any liability which may accrue in the
future subject to the happening of certain events. In other words, as on
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the date of balance sheet these liabilities are not confirmed but there is
probability of these liabilities being confirmed in the future. Following are
some of the commonly known contingent liabilities:-

(a)

(b)
(c)

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt such as
demand raised by GST department where the department had
issued a show cause notice which is pending decision. Similarly, a
customer may have filed a compensation case agent the company
which is pending before the court.

Unexpired letter of credit/guarantees issued by the company.

Estimated amountss of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account. Under this category all the outstanding demands
on the capital account are covered where the company has placed
order for capital equipment which are still pending execution or

supply.

A GST auditor should carefully go through the items mentioned under
contingent liability and sometimes very interesting aspects may be found
out. Details like pending cases of income tax or GST or customs should be
inquired into. It is possible that sales tax department had booked an
offence case which might have a direct bearing on GST liability also.

Details of contingent liabilities in the Balance Sheet of a company is given

below:
Contingent liabilities not provided for: 31st 31st
March, March,
2016 2015

(a) Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to | 25,75,000 | 28,00,000

be executed on capital account and not

provided for (net of advances
(b) Claims against the Company/disputed

liabilities not acknowledged as debts 5,75,000 | 4,00,000
(¢) Bills discounted and remaining outstanding. 70,00,000 | 60,00,000
(d) Sales Tax/Excise matters in dispute. 25,50,000 | 23,00,000
(e) Bank guarantees/corporate guarantees/

outstanding letter of credit for which the

company has given counter guarantees. 50,00,000 | 50,00,000
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Fixed Assets

6.19 Fixed assets are classified into Tangible and Intangible Assets.
Tangible assets consist of Buildings, Plant & Machinery, Furniture &
Fixtures, Office Equipments, etc. The Intangible Assets consists of
Goodwill, Computer Software, Trademarks and Designs, Mining Rights,
Licences and Franchise, etc. A separate schedule is required to be given as
part of the Balance Sheet in which under each head the original cost, the
additions made during the year, the deductions during the year, the total
depreciation provided and closing balance value is required to be given.
The details of additions made during the year and sale/disposals made
during the year should be scrutinized carefully by the GST auditor for the
heading ‘Plant and Machinery’. Credit of duty paid on the purchase of
capital goods is allowed under the GST law. For the plant and machinery
sold/disposed off during the year, the GST auditor should find out whether
the capital goods credit was availed on such machineries in the past and
whether at the time of its disposal credit has been reversed or appropriate
duty has been paid or not. For this purpose, details of all such plant and
machinery sold during the year may be obtained by scrutinizing the plant
and machinery account in the general ledger and relevant vouchers like
sales invoice or journal voucher should be called for and studied.

CASE STUDY - 8

6.20 Please study the following schedule of Fixed Assets for plant and
machinery obtained from the Balance Sheet of a company. As per the
information available, the unit has availed capital goods credit of ¥ 1.89
crs. during the year. What is your observation as a GST auditor?

® in crores)

Particulars GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION

As at | Additi | Deduc| Total | As at For |Adjust| Total | As at

1.4.17 on tion as at | 1.4.17 the 31.3.18
Ment
during 31.3.18 year
the
year

Plants & 210.50(13.54 12.10 | 211.94| 110 12.94 5 117.94 94
Machinery
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Key Learning :

(1) The rate of central GST on all the plant and machinery is 18%
during the year 2017-2018. As per the Schedule, the company has
made an addition of ¥ 13.54 crs. for plant and machinery during the
year. Assuming that all the plant and machinery purchased by the
company is eligible for capital goods credit, the maximum amount
of capital goods credit available would be ¥ 1.62 crores. As against
this the company has availed the credit of ¥ 1.89 crores. On further
investigation, it was noticed that some of the machines on which
assessee have taken the credits were in fact installed in factory of
another company of the same group and the said company was
undertaking only job-work, hence were not entitled to avail capital
goods credit.

(i1) Full details about disposal of machinery of ¥ 12.10 crores should be
called for to examine whether capital goods credit was availed on
any of such machines in the past and whether appropriate GST
have been paid on such clearances.

Claiming of depreciation under Section 32 of the Income
Tax

6.21 As per Section 16(3) of CGST Act, capital goods credit is allowed
subject to the condition that depreciation under Sec.32 of the Income Tax
Act is not availed on the GST element ( which has been taken credit) of
the said capital goods. The aspect about verification of availment of
depreciation is an important verification. But this verification cannot be
made only from the study of balance sheet or even by the study of
financial records of the company because the depreciation in the books of
account is generally provided as per the provisions of the Companies Act
and not as per the provisions of Income Tax law. Therefore, this aspect
can be verified only on the scrutiny of income tax return filed by the
company with the income tax department and on study of income tax
audit report under Sec.44AB of the Income Tax Act (commonly known as
form 3 CD report). In the income tax return following details are generally
available.
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Profit as per Profit and Loss Alc ~ coeeeiiiees
Add: Depreciation as per Profit and Loss Alc =~ ----eemoememeee
Less: Depreciation as per Income Tax Law ~ ----c-commmenee
(As per schedule attached)
Taxable Profit

Reasons for different amount of depreciation as per books of account and
as per income tax law is that rate of depreciation adopted by the company
for working out profit and rate as per income-tax law generally vary.
Since the rate of depreciation varies, the value of an asset after
depreciation also varies. The GST auditor should therefore scrutinize the
worksheet for calculation of depreciation for income tax purpose. Firstly,
the value of asset shown in the said work sheet should be verified with the
value as per books of account. If the company is taking the value for newly
acquired assets same as the value shown in the Plant and Machinery
Account in ledger, in that case, the said ledger account may be scrutinized
to find out whether value of GST has been deducted from total value of
machinery or not. Generally, companies book the total value of machinery
in the ledger account and at the end of month, total amount of capital
goods credit availed is deducted by passing a Journal entry. Following
illustration explains the accounting method.

Machinery A/c
A/e.No. 310

Date Particulars Document| Debit Credit | Balance
2018 Ref. Amount | Amount

Y O.B - 5,00,000 - | 5,00,000
20/4 | To WIDIA Ltd. PV.202 2,32,000 - | 7,32,000
21/4 | To Finolex Cables Ltd. PV 1527 58,000 -1 7,90,000
22/4 | To M M Metal PV 210 5,000 - | 7,95,000
30/4 | By Input Tax Credit A/c JV —30 - 40,000 | 7,55,000

In the above account it would be seen that machineries have been
purchased from three firms and initially full value as per purchase invoice
has been debited to Machinery Account. At the end of the month, total
amount of credit availed as per GST record of ¥ 40,000 has been deducted
and balance of 7,55,000 is available. If the company consider the said
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amount for calculating depreciation for income tax purpose, it is correct.
In the above-mentioned example, following accounting entry has been
passed for purchase of machinery from WIDIA Ltd. (Basic value %
2,00,000 and GST X 32,000)

Machinery Alc Dr. 2,32,000
To WIDIA Ltd. 2,32,000

Alternative method for passing accounting entry is as below:

Machinery Alc Dr. 2,00,000
Input Tax Alc Dr. 32,000
To WIDIA Ltd. 2,32,000

In the second method, the Machinery A/c have been debited only by net
value of ¥ 2,00,000 and if this value is considered for claiming
depreciation for income tax purpose, it is correct. It is important to note
that an amendment has also been made in the Income Tax Act, 1961
(which was given retrospective effect from 1.3.94) and as per the said
section an income tax payer cannot claim depreciation for income tax
purpose on the value of GST credit availed by them. Inspite of said
amendment some of the assessees have been found to be availing both the
benefit. It should also keep in mind that assessment in the income tax are
done on selective basis covering less than 5% assessees every year.
Therefore, a GST auditor should examine this aspect in detail.

INVESTMENT

6.22 Investment have to be disclosed as Current Investments and Non-
Current Investments separately in the Balance Sheet. Under Schedule III
the current and non-current investments are to be shown separately
under relevant heads. Accordingly, Current Investments are shown under
Current Assets and Non-current investments are shown under head non-
current assets.

Current Investments shall be classified as Investments in Equity
Instruments, Preference Shares, Government or Trust Securities,
Debentures or Bonds, Mutual Funds, Partnership Firms and other
Investments. As per disclosure requirements, details of investment such
as class of shares, partly paid or fully paid up, market value of shares are
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required to be given separately. Details of investment in subsidiary
company and companies under the same management are also required to
be shown separately.

Non-Current Investment shall be classified as Trade investments and
other investments.

A GST auditor may come to know the names of companies/partnership
firms in which investment have been made or names of subsidiary
company and if the assessee has business transactions like receipt on
account of service render with these units, he may like to examine these
transactions in greater details.

The Investment shall also play a major role in identifying exempt incomes
like interest, commission etc., which is important from the perspective of
both determination of levy of GST as well as reversal requirement under
Rule 42 and 43 of CGST Rules.

CASE STUDY -9

6.23 X Ltd. was engaged in the manufacture of computers. From a study
of investment details in the balance sheet it was noticed that they have
invested in 25 shares of Y Ltd. (a company under the same management
and not registered in GST). Scrutiny of depot sale invoices showed that
about 80% sales were made to Y Ltd. Study of Share Capital details of X
Ltd. also showed that it was a subsidiary company of Z Ltd. Being a
subsidiary company, balance sheet of X Ltd. was available in annual
report of Z Ltd. On further study of investment details of Z Ltd., it was
noticed that they have also invested in 75 shares of Y Ltd and it was their
subsidiary company. In fact, total share capital of Y Ltd was only 100
shares, out of which 25 shares were held by X Ltd and 75 shares hold by Z
Ltd. Detailed investigation revealed that Y Ltd. was a fictitious company
created only to market the goods of X 1td., and to pay less GST by way of
under-valuation. Investigation further revealed that all the dealers of Y
Ltd were dealers of X Ltd. prior to the formation of Y Ltd., and there were
also no office premises of Y Ltd.
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CURRENT ASSETS

6.24 Under this heading, assets like Current Investments, Inventories,
Trade Receivables, Cash and Cash Equivalents, Short-term Loans and
advances and other Current assets are shown.

Schedule III of the Companies Act also requires a separate disclosure for
debts or loans and advances due from following categories of person:

@) dues from directors or other officers of the company either severally
or jointly with any other person

(i1) dues from firm or private companies in which any director is a
partner or director

In all the above cases, even though at the end of the year no balance may
be due but still disclosure about maximum amount due during the year is
required to be made in the balance sheet.

The above information may be very useful to a GST auditor to find out
dealing with related companies and if necessary, these transactions may
be examined in detail.

One of the illustration of details of sundry debtors shown in the balance
sheet of a company is given below:-

S.S. Pharmaceuticals Ltd.

For the For the
year ended | year ended
31st March, | 31st March,

2018 2017
SCHEDULE '9'
Trade Receivables *
(Unsecured, considered good)
Debts outstanding for a period exceeding
six months from the date they are due for
payment 89,61,420 76,78,202
Other Trade Receivables Nil Nil
(Unsecured, considered good)
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* Includes due from Companies under the

same management/Managing Director

(a) I NIL (Previous year X 5 Lakhs) from
SS Pharmacaps Pvt. Ltd.

(b) I 124567 (Previous year I 21308)
from SM Medicare Ltd.

(¢) T 901900 (Previous year ¥ NIL) from
SS Pharmcaps Inc.,

(d) % 250000 (Previous year ¥ NIL) from
Managing Director of the Company

89,61,420 76,78,202

From the above details it would be seen that the company have sold goods
to related companies under the same management. The transactions with
these units may be examined in detail from related persons angle.

INVENTORIES

6.25 This heading shows closing stock of all types of goods viz., raw
materials, component, stores, spares, finished goods, work-in-progress and
trading goods.

A GST auditor should compare the stock of last 2-3 years and if variation
is large, he should examine the case in greater detail. It is possible that in
order to avail Input tax credit, a unit may have shown purchase of raw
material but goods would not have been received.

One more aspect which needs proper verification is "stock in transit". It
covers items which have been sent by the supplier but have not been
received in the factory and for which either payment has been made or
liability for payment has been created. As the purchase documents have
been received by the unit there are chances of assessee availing credit
prior to receipt of goods. This aspect should be verified by calling details
of goods in transit and verify the credit availment.

CASE STUDY - 10

6.26 Following information are available under the head "Inventories"
in the balance sheet of a company manufacturing aluminum wires.
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[X In Lakhs]

31st March 2018 31st March 2017

Aluminum Wire-Rod 170 40

Finished Goods 60 52

Since raw-material stock had increased substantially in the current year
the quantitative information about purchase, consumption and stock as
found in the balance sheet was referred and following details were noticed
by the GST auditor.

Details of Raw Material (in MT)

Op. Purchase | Consum | Closing
Stock ption Stock
Aluminum Wire-Rod 44 635 430 199
(38) (530) (524) (44)

[Figures in bracket are for previous years]

Sales: Aluminum Wires - 490 MT

What are your findings on the basis of above-mentioned details?
Key Learning :

Monthly consumption of Aluminum Wire Rod is about 40 MT, whereas
closing stock is 199 MT which is inventory for 5 months. The said quantity
appears to be unusual. Therefore, purchase made in last few months need
to be verified with stores and other records. If necessary, physical stock
taking at the time of audit can also be undertaken. Investigation in this
case resulted in establishing that inputs were not received by the unit and
only purchase invoices were received on which credit was availed.

STUDY OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT/ INCOME STATEMENT

6.28 It is a company's Income statement that indicates how the revenue
(money received from the sale of products and services) is transformed
into Net Profit (the result after all revenues and expenses have been
accounted for). It displays the revenues recognized for a specific period,
and the cost and expenses charged against these revenues, including
write-offs and taxes. The purpose of the income statement is to show
managers and investors whether the company made or lost money during
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the period being reported. Income statement is prepared as required
under the Companies Act 2013 or for any other statutory purpose.

6.29 The auditor may review this account to see whether there is any
miscellaneous income in the credit side as recognized by the assessee on
which tax liability may be attracted. The auditor may also review the
expenditure pattern of the assessee to ascertain whether the Input Tax
Credit availed is in proportionate to the expense reflected in debit side of
account. The auditor may also review as to whether service tax has been
paid under reverse charge mechanism in respect of the specified services
e.g., if the income statement shows cab charges being paid to a non-
corporate assessee, legal charges etc. auditor may check that service tax
has been paid by the assessee on such charges or not.

Profit and Loss account of a company is given below.

Profit and Loss Account for the Year ended 315t March, 2016

Particulars Note Year Year
No. ended ended
31.03.2018 | 31.03.2017
Income
Revenue from Operations 12 5375.55 5243.36
Other Income 13 47.75 47.52
5423.30 5290.88
Expenditure
Purchase of finished goods 894.82 1045.81
Materials consumed 14 2017.87 1993.73
Changes in Inventories of finished
goods and work-in-process (95.01) 70.84
Excise Duty 15 302.50 168.71
Manufacturing Expenses 16 160.38 171.40
Employee Benefits Expense 17 111.61 102.28
Finance Costs 18 165.34
Depreciation and amortization 1545.30 54.69
expense

Indirect Taxes Committee




176 Background Material on Training Program for Government Officials

Other Expenses 1390.24
Depreciation 5469
5102.81 4997.70

Profit for the year 320.49 293.18

Less: Tax expense 128.13 100.08
1) Current Tax XXX XXX
11) Deferred Tax XXX XXX

Profit for the year 192,36 193.10

Earnings per Equity Share

Basic

Diluted

Notes to accounts 20

and Significant Accounting Policies
forming integral part of accounts

6.30 Following are some of the important points which should be kept in
mind while studying a Statement of Profit and Loss Account.

(1) There are different Notes for most of the headings, therefore Profit
and Loss Account needs to be studied by referring to these

schedules.

(1) Details of Profit and Loss Account should be studied along with
other notes to the accounts forming part of the final accounts

(i11) A comparative study of figures with previous year should be made

to find out unusual variation.

CASE STUDY - 11

6.31 Please study details available in the Profit and Loss account of a
company manufacturing Chewing gum, medicated tablets and breath

freshners.

What is your first reaction, without referring to details in schedules?
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Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the Year ended 31st

March, 2018

Schedule 2017-18 2016-17
Rupees Rupees
¥ in Lakhs ¥ in Lakhs
Income
Revenue from 11 5,891 6,116
Operations 12 102 56
Miscellaneous Income 5,993 6,172
Expenditure
Cost  of  Materials 13 1,697 2,154
Consumed 14 5,295 5,835
Expenses 15 511 514
Interest 214 139
Depreciation l’ﬁ @
(1,723) (2,470)
Loss Before Tax

Key Learning:

Revenue from operations during 2017-18 has decreased marginally
whereas cost of material has decreased by 25%. A GST Auditor may like
to study purchases of raw material and Input Tax availment in detail.
There may be unusual loss of materials by way of spoilage, loss during
trial production or input becoming obsolete. This case study would be
further discussed in the next chapter dealing with "Quantitative details
under Schedule VI."

Some of the important headings of Profit and Loss Account are discussed
below:

SALE OF PRODUCTS

6.32 It includes all types of sales such as sale of manufactured goods,
trading goods parts & accessories, scrap and export. Some companies may
even include job work income or income from activities related to sales of
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goods like erection and commissioning charges also as part of sales in the
Profit and Loss Account. As per the Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the said accounting practice
is not recommended, and statutory auditors are required to confirm this
fact in the statement on accounting policies annexed to the Profit and
Loss account. Study of Note on Income from Operations in the Profit and
Loss account provide an overall view of the main activities of the unit and
help a GST auditor to find out whether company is also engaged in
trading activities, job work activities, sale of parts etc. The said
information is very useful to study the dossier of a unit before the start of
an audit and to prepare an audit plan.

OTHER INCOMES

6.36 This is one of the most important area which a GST auditor is

required to analyse very carefully. It may include income under following
heads:

@) Sale of Scrap

(i1) Insurance claims

(i11)  Profit on sale of fixed assets

(iv)  Interest/Dividend

v) Commission received

(vi)  Royalty

(vi1) Tech- know how or tech consultancy charges
(viii) Erection and Commissioning charges
(ix)  Training Income

(x) Miscellaneous Income

(x1)  Freight/Insurance recovered

Sometimes a detailed breakup of various items of other income may not be
available in the schedule of other income in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. In that case ledger account grouping should be obtained from the
assessee. Study of trial balance also shows different heads of other
income. Exact nature of each income account should be ascertained from
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the company. This should be verified with the study of the ledger account.
These ledger accounts should be scrutinized with reference to documents
like invoices or debit notes or journal vouchers used for passing entries in
the ledger accounts. It may happen that exact nature of these income may
be different than what has been declared. With the introduction of
Negative list under service tax, it is possible that these incomes may
attract levy of service tax also.

6.37 Some of the above-mentioned items of other income are discussed
below:

(a) Sale of scrap: A GST auditor should ascertain the series of sales
invoice used for sale of scrap. Other documents like debit notes or journal
voucher may also be used for recording sale of scrap. This fact can be
found out from the study of the ledger account. A GST auditor should
examine these documents to confirm payment of GST at appropriate rate,
moreso, where many assessee fail to appreciate that rate of tax on goods
and scrap is different. If a common series of sales invoice is maintained, in
that case, scrap sale account in the ledger should be scrutinized along
with vouchers to confirm whether GST has been paid or not. Apart from
above, it may be to check that whether any GTA services has been utilized
for sale of scrap and service tax has been paid on the same, if any.

(b) Insurance claim:- Insurance claim may be lodged for damage or
destruction of raw material, work in process, finished goods or capital
goods. A GST auditor should examine exact details of such claims.
Following type of insurance claim cases should be examined in detail.

(1) damage of raw material before receipt in the factory

(11) damage of raw material in the factory

(i11) damage of work in progress or finished goods in the factory
(iv)  damage of capital goods in the factory

It is important to note that the auditor should not only examine the cases
where insurance claims have been received by the assessee but he should
examine all cases where claims have been lodged even though the claims
have not been finally sanctioned by the insurance company. Insurance
claim applications should be studied to find out details of quantity
claimed to have been damaged, value and GST claimed in the insurance
claim.
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One more area which a GST auditor should examine is whether GST has
also been claimed in case of loss of finished goods lying in the factory as
GST claimed and received from insurance company becomes payable
under the section 76 of the CGST Act.

(c) Profit/loss on sale of fixed assets: This income shows profit or
loss earned on sale of a fixed asset. The ledger account should be
scrutinized by a GST auditor to find out the details of fixed assets sold
during the year. If sale of machineries or other capital goods have been
made, the voucher should be studied to find out complete details such as
year of purchase, depreciation availed and profit or loss on sale. If
machinery have been purchased after 1994, whether capital goods credit
was availed should be ascertained and at the time of sale, whether
appropriate tax have been paid or not, should be verified as per the
provisions of CGST Rules.

(d) Development/Design Charges: Some time a manufacturer is
required to use a particular mould or die for manufacture of an item for
the customer. The said mould or dies can be made by him or can be
purchased from other person. The cost of such die or mould made may be
charged separately from the customer and it is shown as income of the
company. The said income has direct relation to the goods manufactured
by the assessee. Therefore, a GST auditor should examine the exact
nature of such charges and decide as to whether the full value needs to be
added in the transaction value or only amortized value of dies or mould
should be added to the transaction value of the final product
manufactured them.

(e) Technical knowhow fee or Engineering service charges or
Training charges: Such incomes are earned for providing technical
services like design engineering, feasibility study, technical know-how for
manufacture of a product. Training for operation of machines supplied by
the assessee may also be given on charging training income. Exact nature
of such recoveries should be inquired into by verifying agreement copies
and other correspondences. If such incomes have any relation to the goods
manufactured and sold by the company, these may be required to be
added to the transaction value in terms of definition of transaction value
under new valuation provision. Alternatively, payment of service tax may
also be examined.
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(f) Interest/Commission received: Generally, interest income arises
from investment made by the company. Commission may be on account of
sale of certain products of other company. But if interest or commission is
received from customers of the company, such transaction of
interest/commission should be examined in detail to find out whether
additional consideration is being received in the guise of interest or
commission from same customer.

(2) Commission Income: In the case of a unit manufacturing steel
products such as S.S. Flats, the Profit and Loss account showed receipt of
Commission/Service charges to the extent of about ¥ 30 crores in 5 years.
On scrutiny of ledger account it was found that company had received
commissions from well-known companies like TELCO, DEAWO MOTORS,
TRIVENI ENT etc., for providing services of obtaining export orders for
and for arranging certain machineries etc., Since the business of company
was totally different than the areas where commission was charged,
further investigation were made with companies who were supposed to be
have paid commission and it revealed that, these companies did not pay
any commission charges. In fact, said amount pertained to sale proceed of
S.S. Flats removed without payment of duty. The amounts were recovered
from assessee by demand drafts and credited to the income account
showing receipts from fictitious companies. The value of the said
commission also tallied with the value of finished goods manufactured out
of excess consumption of raw materials or differently, service tax has been
paid on the commission charged.

(h) Recovery of Advertisement Charges, Crate Hiring Charges
and Delivery Charges.

An assessee was engaged in the manufacture of aerated water. Ongoing
through the schedule for ‘Other Incomes’ forming part of Profit and Loss
account it was noticed that they have shown following three items under
the heading ‘other income’.

1) Advertisement and management service charges
(11) Crate Hiring Charges
(i11)  Net delivery charges on re-sale of goods

Ongoing through the ledger accounts of these incomes and supporting
vouchers it was noticed that the company was recovering additional
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charges from their customer for sale of aerated water in the guise of above
referred three charges. Advertisement and management service charges
were recovered at a fixed rate for each crate of aerated water. Further
they were recovering crate hiring charges for an amount much more than
the actual cost of the crates (about 15 times of the actual cost of crates).
Delivery charges were supposed to be recovered for actual expenses on
transportation of goods, from depots to dealers. Ongoing through the
details, it was noticed that such charges accounted to about 45% of the
sale value of the goods. Hence, these charges were also recovered in much
excess of actual charges. The study of groupings also showed that the
amount shown in Profit and Loss account was after deducting actual
expenses on transportation and therefore the word “net” was used. In fact,
the manufacturer had created another company who was collecting these
charges on behalf of them and paying to them.

CASE STUDY - 14

6.38 A is manufacturing laminated sheet (LAMIWEB) made of
aluminum foil and P.P Sheet. The said Lamiweb is supplied only to ‘B’
who is using it for manufacture of collapsible tubes for packing of tooth
paste. The study of revenue pattern showed that A was paying all most
full duty through input credit (about 98%) for the last 2 years. The study
of the Profit and Loss account showed a substantial amount of ‘Other
Income’ and it included a heading ‘Facility Charges’. On inquiry company
informed that this amount represented recoveries made by them from B
on account number of common facilities provided by them to B like
security, canteen, supervisory staff, transport facility etc., which were
incurred by them and part of the expenditures were recovered from 'B'. As
an GST auditor what further inquiries, you may like to make.

Key learning :

(1) Raw material to Sales value ratio - A quick method is to find out
ratio of cost of material consumed to the value of goods sold. In the
present case, based on the figures of Profit and Loss account the
ratio was about 63%. In other words, out of total value of goods
sold, 63% was accounted for by way of raw material cost and
balance 37% was value addition on account of labour -cost,
manufacturing overhead and all other costs. Therefore, assuming
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raw material and finished goods rate of duty as same, in normal
circumstances, the company should have paid at least 37% of duty
in cash.

(i1) Cost of product and its comparison to sales value - In the present
case cost was about ¥ 120 per Kg., whereas they were selling at X
104 per Kg. Further, inquiries revealed that 2 years ago sale price
was X 130 per Kg., which was reduced to ¥ 104 per Kg.

(111) Trend of facility charges - It was noticed that amount of facility
charges recovered from 'B' was very less two years ago and only in
last 2 years the amount of facility charges had increased
substantially.

(iv)  Scrutiny of all Journal vouchers passed for recovery of facility
charges revealed that every month one voucher was passed for
recovery of facility charges for sale of Lamiweb to B and voucher
clearly showed rate per Kg., for goods sold to "B" during the month.
In fact one more voucher was passed every month for recovery of
common expenses and when auditor asked to show the voucher,
they deliberately showed few of these voucher showing recovery of
such common expenses from B.

) Comparison between actual expenditure incurred on such common
series and amount recovered from B showed that actual amount
incurred was much less than amount collected from B

Similar procedure can also be follow, in the case of service provider.

EXPENDITURES

6.39 Initially, a GST auditor may glance through the particulars of
Profit and Loss account to find out which are the major expenditures of
the company and what is their share in total expenses. In case of any
unusual expenditure the auditor may like to examine the case in detail.
For example, in pharmaceutical industries or other consumer goods
industries, the marketing and sales promotion expenditure contributes
towards a major portion of the expenditure. Hence, if the expenditure on
such item is very less, the case needs further investigation. In case of one
company manufacturing cosmetics, study of the Profit and Loss account
revealed that the company was incurring a very small amount on
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marketing expenditure. The scrutiny of ledger account for expenses
revealed that the company was recovering marketing expenses from their
customers and only net expenses were shown in the Profit and Loss
Account. They were not paying GST on such recoveries.

Another analysis which should be done by a GST auditor on reading of
details of Profit and Loss Account is comparison with figures of the
previous year. If increase or reduction in expenditure 1is not
commensurate with variation in supply of goods or services, further
inquiries should be made.

Expenditure accounts having credit entries

6.40 Even though study of details of expenditures in profit and loss
account may not show the accounts having credit entries but some of the
expenditure accounts where recoveries are possible from customers like
packing expenses, freight expenses, advertisement expenses, after sales
service expenses etc., should be scrutinized in the ledger. In case of
services for example recoveries from employee etc. become chargeable to
service tax so accounts having credit entries become important including
in the case of payment of service tax under reverse charge.

Cost of Material Consumed

6.41 This heading covers consumption of raw materials, components,
packing material etc. used for the manufacture of finished goods. As per
the disclosure requirement of Schedule III of the Companies Act, details
of main raw materials consumed are required to be given as part of the
Profit and Loss Account. All materials which in value individually
account for 10% or more of the total value of the raw material consumed
should be shown as separate and distinct items. Companies having a good
accounting system accounts for consumption based on issues made by the
stores department to the production department for manufacture of
goods. But in a number of small units generally the value of the raw
materials consumed is calculated by: Opening Balance + Purchases —
Closing Stock. As per the Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of
Charted Accountants of India raw material used for manufacture of
finished goods should only be considered under this heading. Therefore, if
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the raw material has been used for other purposes or the material has
been lost for activities not related to manufacture in those cases
companies are required to show such value thereof separately. It is the
duty of statutory auditors to verify this aspect. In practice the statutory
auditors examine this point and wherever they find that raw material has
not been used for the purpose of manufacture they ask the company to
make a separate disclosure for the same. In case of their failure to make
the disclosure, this point can also be given as a qualification in the
auditor’s report. The following are examples of situations where raw
materials have not been used for the purpose of manufacture of the
finished goods:

(a) Raw material used for construction activities like steel used for
construction or cement used for construction.

(b) Raw material used for repairing activities.

(c) Raw material sold as such or given on loan.

(d) Obsolete items or damaged goods.

(e) Material destroyed by fire or lost by theft.

3] Shortage found at the time of physical verification.

6.42 Information under the head ‘cost of material consumed’ is very
useful and it can be used for verifying Input Tax Credit availed on the
inputs by a unit. Assuming that most of the raw materials and packing
materials consumed by a unit are eligible for availing Input Tax Credit
and if the rate of duty on the inputs and outputs is same, in that case, a
quick ratio of cost of goods consumed with the sales value(adjusted for
GST) can be worked out to find out whether Input Tax Credit availment
appears to be reasonable or not. The above aspect can be explained from
following illustration.

CASE STUDY - 15

6.43 The following information were obtained from the Profit & Loss
Account of a company.
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(R in lakhs)
1. Raw material cost 350
2. Labour <20
3. Manufacturing & Administrative overheads 3 30
4. Marketing and other Overheads <20
5. Profit % 30

TOTAL

6. (Selling price excluding GST). I 150

Out of the total selling price of ¥ 150, raw material cost is ¥ 50 i.e. 33% of
the price of the product. Assuming that most of the raw material attracts
duty of 12% and final product also attracts same rate of duty, the ratio of
PLA and Input Tax Credit should be about 2:1 (Input Tax Credit of X 6 is
available on raw material and total duty on final product is ¥ 18). Hence,
duty payment should be ¥ 12 through PLA and ¥ 6 through Input Tax
Credit. If the Cash & Input Tax credit ratio is varying, it needs further
investigation. In this connection, it is important to note that quantity and
value of closing stock as compared to the quantity and value of opening
stock also needs to be considered while working out this ratio because if
there is substantial increase in the quantity of closing stock, this may
result in to extra availment of Input Tax Credit. Other factors like export
may also distort the said ratio. It is important to note that if exports are
made on payment of GST (claiming rebate of duty paid on exported
goods), in that case export will not affect Cash— Credit tax payment ratio.
Similar ratio may be calculated in the case of supply of services and Input
Tax Credit availed against those services. It is suggested that this
exercise should always be carried out as a first step during audit.

Expenditure Attracting GST

6.44 There are a number of services like technical and engineering
service, advertisement service, manpower recruitment service, clearing
and forwarding services etc. on which service providers are liable to pay
GST. The payment vouchers along with bills of the service provider
should be examined to verify whether service tax has been paid by them
or not. If service tax has not been paid, in that case exact nature of
services provided by them should be examined to ascertain whether
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service tax is payable or not. Especially in the case of new manufacturing
unit or the companies which have expanded their manufacturing activity,
this aspect needs to be looked into. In the case of a new unit, generally, a
number of services are provided by consulting engineers in the field of
setting up of plant or development of product or by architects etc. and in
that case the payment of service tax needs to be examined critically
because the amount involved may be quite large. Sometimes even these
expenses may be capitalized as part of plant and machinery and may not
figure as a revenue expenditure. In that case an inquiry may be made
about all the expenditures capitalized or shown as deferred revenue
expenditure.

Illustration:

During the audit of a A Ltd., it was noticed from the study of the Trial
Balance that they have incurred an expenditure of more than ¥ 30 crores
towards technical and engineering services. On inquiry it was noticed
that the said expenditure was on account of consultancy provided by a
foreign company for setting up of the steel plant and no service tax was
paid on the said amount.

CASE STUDY - 16

6.45 Evaluate under which categories is the company liable to pay
service tax under reverse charge mechanism on the basis of the given
financial statements for the financial year 2015-16.
Annexure 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-15
Annexure: Other Expenses
1 Power & Fuel

Electricity Charges 22,969,205 13,780,348

Petrol Expenses 588,910 111,760
2 Rent

Rent & Other amenities

Charges 90,165,477 56,701,304
3 Repairs & Maintenance

Plant & Machinery 5,289,395 2,189,586
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Furniture & Fixtures
Others

(a) Civil Work of office
(material + labour
charges) 2,000,000

(b) AMC charges for Air
Conditioner
(comprehensive
contract) 200,900

(¢) AMC charges for
Computer (non-
comprehensive
contract) 90,357

Insurance

Insurance Charges
Rates & Taxes
License & Legal Fees

NMMC Cess and LBT
Expenses

Octroi Charges
Profession Tax-Company
Profession Tax Expense
Property Tax

GST Expenses

Stamp Duty Charges
TDS Expenses

VAT Expenses

Other Expenses

Advertisement Expenses

3,306,344
2,291,257

482,117

556,639

250,770
905,338
2,500
200
143,355
644,047
403,240
36,275
64,782

4,871,825

2,088,455
1,777,133

360,134

253,647

220,468
689,384
2,500

0

0
177,054
781,845
10,100
1,947

8,683,240
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Affiliation Charges
Auditors' Remuneration
Cable charges

Call Centre charges

Car Leasing Charges
Valet Parking Charges
Cleaning Charges
Commission & Brokerage
Conveyance

Courier Charges

Delivery & Transport
Charges
Transport charges -

Kangaroo Transport Ltd
Pawan Transport

Donation

Festival Expenses

Fines and Penalties
Foreign Travelling Charges

General & Miscellaneous
Expenses

Guest House Expenses

Hospitality & Promotional
Expenses

House Keeping Charges
(Housekeepers supplied by
M/s Globe
proprietory concern)

Services, a

Interest on NMMC CESS &

150,000
161,841

103,461
623,500
220,960
847,384
589,458
3,426,037
303,360
12,368,000
2,732,907
875,128

318,841

41,197
482,473
409,400
370,785

2,573,529
202,312

2,557,665

18,673,180
19,236

0

352,500
147,434

0

513,825
809,038
300,910
8,517,672
1,452,104
212,811

350,124

9,101
812,570
0
391,910

2,503,864
0

1,279,873

1,137,676
0
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LBT

Interest on GST
Interest on TDS
Interest on VAT
Laundry Expenses

Legal Expenses

Lodging & Boarding
Expenses

Membership &
Subscription

Newspapers & Periodicals

Pest Control Expenses
Printing & Stationery
Professional Fees

(a) ¥ 50000/- paid to
Advocate Mr. Goyal

(b) ¥ 30000/- paid to Mr.
Rahul Khanna towards
ESIC, PF consulting

(c) ¥ 10000/-
obtaining

paid for
shop
establishment license

ROC Filing Fees
Sales Promotion Expenses
Security Charges

(Paid to Dragon Security
Ltd)

(Paid to
Securities)

Ram Avatar

1,400,000

265,348

2,969
41,594
15,174

2,658,774
32,927

696,815

40,075
152,971
861,474
327,509

1,455,645

15,428,261

10,310
8,261,998
4,738,869

20,733
18,546
10,725
1,976,179
0

54,000
129,801

0

49,052
1,075,378
13,619,904

4,500
7,202,558
3,652,488
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Software License Fees 1,665,348 225,000

Sponsorship Fees (Includes
sponsorship of ¥ 2 Lacs

given to ABC Ltd) 307,000 0
Staff Recruitment Charges
(Paid to Central
Enterprises) 1,710,702 292,381
Staff Training Expenses
(Training programme
conducted in UK) 394,685 0
Sundry drs/crs write off 18,910 (69,250)
Sundry Expenses 71,306 20,465
Telephone & Internet
Charges 4,632,513 2,274,392
Travelling Charges 2,953,039 1,713,309
Uniform Expenses 859,033 1,200,861
Water Charges 1,996,966 763,425

230,045,355 140,754,765

TIPS

Repairs & Maintenance
Professional Fees

Security Charges

Staff Recruitment Charges
Staff Training Expenses

Transport Charges

S A N A

Sponsorship Expenses
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STUDY OF NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

6.46 Notes to financial statements (accounts) are additional information
added to the end of financial statements. It helps in explaining specific
items in the financial statements as well as provides a more
comprehensive assessment of a company's financial condition. It may
include information on debt, going concern criteria, accounts, contingent
liabilities or contextual information explaining the financial numbers
(e.g., indicate a lawsuit).

These notes are part of Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss account of a
company. The auditor may go through notes to accounts to see whether
any notes have any bearing on the GST liability. The information
contained in the notes to accounts is important to the auditor since the
same contains the relevant information which cannot be provided in the
financial statements but which are required for the proper explanation of
the financial statement

6.47 Some of the notes as found from the final account of companies are
given below.

(a) “Plant and Machinery includes machinery acquired under lease/
hire purchase scheme costing ¥1.58 crores (1.28 crores last year )”.

Comments: In this case Tax Auditor may like to verify whether
the unit has availed Input Tax Credit as capital goods on such
machinery has been taken on lease/hire purchase and whether all
the condition like non availment of depreciation by lessor and
lessee have been complied with.

(b) “Inventories includes ¥ 7.8 crores for products under development
in house (Previous year ¥10.25 crores)”

Comments: A tax Auditor may like to verify what is the manner
of disposal of these products which are developed in house for R &
D purposes, and whether any credit has been availed on various
material gone into manufacture of these items. If the said product
were cleared without payment of duty or destroyed, in that case,
Input Tax Credit availment should be examined.
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“The value of raw-material, spare parts and components consumed
includes write off on account of obsolete and scrap valued at ¢
27,167,000 (Previous year 24,201,100).”

Comments: Tax Auditor may like to examine the points about the
reversal of credit on the item declared as obsolete and also ensure
that if any services e.g. GTA has been utilized for sale of such
material, appropriate service tax has been paid..

“Company has preferred an appeal to Sales Tax authorities
involving an amount of ¥ 106 lakhs towards sales Tax dues, hence
not provided in the books and shall be adjusted in the year in
which the same is decided.”

Comments: Auditor may like to examine nature of cases pending
before Sales Tax authority and find out whether it has got any
implication on payment of GST also.

“Materials worth < 120 lakhs has been considered at nil value
owing to its non-suitability for production and discontinuing of
certain production range. The concurrent auditors appointed by the
lead institutions have opined that these amounts should be written
off and accordingly management has agreed to write off such
goods.”

Comments: Tax auditor may like to verify whether these
materials have been cleared and whether appropriate duty has
been paid or not. Other points raised in the report of concurrent
auditor should also be examined.

“On 10.6.2000 a fire broke out at Mumbai premises where books of
accounts were kept for finalisation of yearly accounts including
those of branches and Delhi office which were destroyed beyond
retrieval and the current period accounts have been presented
based on available information and compilation of various data
from time to time.”

Comments: Since the original records are not available in the
unit, the Tax Auditor should be very careful while verifying

Indirect Taxes Committee



194

Background Material on Training Program for Government Officials

(2)

(h)

(@)

)

various records and if necessary for important transaction cross
verification from third parties should be carried out.

“Purchases includes provision on account of replacement of spares
and accessories of T30 lakhs.”

Comments: By reading this note, Tax Auditor may come to know
that company has the policy of supplying free replacement and
therefore whether appropriate duty has been paid on such free

replacement should be inquired into.

“Adjustment in respect of discrepancies regarding materials with
sub-contractors/on loan have not been made pending confirmation
/reconciliation and the impact , if any, on the profits is not

ascertainable.”

Comments: Tax auditor finds that company has been sending
material to job worker and there are number of cases where
reconciliation with job worker have not been made. This may have
direct impact on the input credit. Similarly, verification needs to
be made for payment of appropriate duty wherever materials have

been sent on credit.

“Pending reconciliation, stock verification discrepancies for the
year, shortages of ¥ 230 lakhs (¥ 189 lakhs) and surplus of ¥ 82
lakhs (T 103 lakhs) have not been adjusted in the account.”

Comments: List of stock verification needs to be obtained to find
out final shortages and Input Tax Credit reversal may be

necessary.

“Company have not provided for < 210 lakhs on account of a
demand raised by excise authorities as the matter is pending with
appellate authorities. Necessary adjustment shall be made at the
time of decision of appeal.”

Comments: This liability was for another factory on classification
matter, which was not disputed for factory under audit where

audit i1s undertaken.
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All the above referred points could be useful to a Tax Auditor and
on reading such notes, he may like to inquire further about these

matters.

Quantitative Information as per the disclosure
requirement provided in Part II of Schedule VI of the
Companies Act:

6.48 In the case of a manufacturing company, the following

quantitative information are required to be given as notes in the final
account of a Company.

(a) Opening stock and closing stock of the raw-materials and finished
goods.

(b) Consumption of raw material.

(c) Licensed and installed capacity of production.

(d) Actual production of finished goods.

(e) Turnover details of finished goods.
§3) Purchase and sale of trading goods (if engaged in trading activities
also)

Quantitative information are very important source of information and in
some cases a broad input-output ratio can also be worked out. Details of
major raw materials can be known before start of the audit. Similarly,
details of main final products manufactured by a company can also be
found out by a GST auditor. Consumption pattern over a period of time
and per unit value of major material can also be worked out for analysis
purposes.

Under the Companies Act 2013 quantitative details are not required to
be given, but details of raw materials consumed with value have to be
furnished

CASE STUDY - 17

6.49 Quantitative information in respect of a company manufacturing
hydraulic pumps and other equipment as find from the Profit and Loss
Account is given below.
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Quantitative Information as on 31.3.2015

2014-15

2013-14

I [Hydraulics
division:

Nos.

Nos.

(1) Licensed
Capacity

N.A.

N.A.

(11) Installed
Capacity

240

180

(111) Actual
Production

(a) Pumps
Production

211.00

164.000

(b) Pumps
recovery by
rectification

125

309

(¢) Other
Hydraulic
Equipment

3,678

2,041

Information in
respect of
Finished Goods:

II [Hydraulic gear
pumps:

Qty.
Nos.

Value

Qty.
Nos.

Value

Manufacturing:

(a) Opening
Stock

8,357

12,939,600

12,602

11,224,682

(b) Sales Pumps

197,033/ 339,597,310

166,724|285,814,242

(¢) Scrapped &
written off

604

1,629
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(d)

Captive
Consumption

488

346

(e)

Closing
Stock

21,687

35,995,634

8,357

12,939,600

2. Other
hydraulic
equipments

A. Manufacturing

()

Opening
Stock

230

971,943

121

665,166

(b)

Recovery by
rectification

34

(c)

Sales

3,704

41,479,666

1,782

11,367,304

(d)

Scrapped &
Written of

150

(e)

Captive
consumption

(®)

Closing
Stock

236

1,000,446

230

971,943

B. Trading:

()

Opening
Stock

(b)

Purchases

(c)

Sales

(d)

Scrapped &
written of

(e)

Closing
Stock
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2014-15 2013-14
III|Hydraulics Unit Qty. Value Qty. Value
division: Nos. % Nos. 4
Consumption of
Raw
Materials and
Components:
(a) Aluminum Kgs. 191,187 21,142,860| 169,007 17,685,161
Extrusion
(b) Castings Nos. [1,364,506| 32,328,884(1,098,942| 23,691,089
(c) Forgings Nos. | 482,172| 14,217,488| 388,658 10,576,630
(d) Components | Nos. |8,142,068| 70,163,740(5,760,186| 43,117,382
137,852,972 94,970,262

On study of above referred quantitative information following points are
noticed by a GST auditor.

@

(i1)

(iii)
(iv)

Company is also engaged in the activity of repairs and rectification
as found from details of production [b] - Pumps recovery by
rectification). Whether repair activity also involve use of credit
availed input and whether rectification amount of manufacture of

a new product, should be inquired by a GST auditor.

Company has scrapped and written off pumps and other
equipment also. Payment of duty or reversal of credit need to be

examined.
Company is captively consuming some of the produced goods also.

Since detailed records are maintained for consumption of major
raw material like extrusions, casting and forgings, it necessary
input out ratio can be worked out for main items of production.

Under the companies act 2013 quantitative details are not required to be

given but values have to be given.
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Disclosure for foreign exchange transactions

6.50 As per requirement of schedule III to the companies Act, the Profit
and Loss Account shall also contain by way of a note the following
information, namely,

4D. The profit and loss account shall also contain by way of a note the
following information namely,

()

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

value of imports calculated on C.I.F. basis by the company
during the financial year in respect of:

(1) raw materials; (11) components and spare parts; (iil)
capital goods;

expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year
on account of royalty, know-how, professional consultation
fees, interest, and other matters;

value of all imported raw materials, spare parts and
components consumed during the financial year and the
value of all indigenous raw materials, spare parts and
components similarly consumed and the percentage of each
to the total consumption;

the amount remitted during the year in foreign currencies
on account of dividends, with a specific mention of the
number of non-resident shareholders, the number of shares
held by them on which the dividends were due and the year
to which the dividends related,;

earnings in foreign exchange classified under the following
heads, namely:-

(1) export of goods calculated on F.O.B. basis;

(1) royalty, know-how, professional and consultation
fees;

(1i1)  interest and dividend.

(iv)  other income, indicating the nature thereof.
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Following disclosures were made in the notes to the accounts forming
part of Profit and Loss Account of a company regarding foreign exchange
transactions.

Note: 21 2015-16 2014-15
% Value % Value
R in lakhs) R in lakhs)
Value of imported and
indigenous Raw
Materials, Store,
Spare parts and

Component consumed

(a) Raw Material

Indigenous 38 1578 32 1229

(b) Store, Spare parts
and Component

Imported 12 48 11 39
Indigenous 88 352 89 311
Note: 22 (a) 2015-16 2014-15
Value of imports calculated
on CIF basis
(a) Raw Material 2575 263
(b) Store, Spare parts & 48 39
Component
(¢) Capital goods 160 N
(d) Computer Software 35 N
(e) Goods for resale 110 120
Note: 22(b) 2014-15 2013-14
Expenditure in foreign
currency
(a) Instant on debenture 25 28
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(b) Traveling 15 10
(¢) Technical know how 82 78
(d) Royalty and engineering fee 60 72
Note: 22 (c) 2015-16 2014-15

Earnings in foreign exchange
on account of

(a) Exports in FOB basis 780 450

(b) Freight and Insurance on 28 13
exports

(c) Commaission 25 20

Study of foreign exchange transaction provide a overall view of import
content in the cost of production, export performance and other heads of
major expenditure and income of foreign exchange. In case of payment on
activities like technical and engineering charges, consultation charges
etc., aspect about payment of service tax, by service provider, if applicable,
may be examined by a GST auditor. In case of import of plant and
machinery, the payment for technical services, engineering services,
design and development etc may have relevance to valuation of imported
goods for payment of custom duties.
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RATIO ANALYSIS

Ratio Analysis is a widely used tool of data analysis. The term ratio in it
refers to the relationship expressed in mathematical terms between two
individual figures or group of figures connected with each other in some
logical manner and are selected from financial statements of the
concern. The ratio analysis is based on the fact that a type of data
expressed as a relative to some other figure may provide some
significant information. Ratios look at the relationships between
individual values and relate them to how a company has performed in
the past and might perform in the future.

ANALYSIS AND INTERPRETATION OF RATIOS

The analysis or interpretations may be of various types. The following
approaches are usually found to exist:

(a) Interpretation or Analysis of an Individual (or) Single ratio.
(b)  Interpretation or Analysis by referring to a group of ratios.
(c) Interpretation or Analysis of ratios by trend.

(d) Interpretations or Analysis by inter-firm comparison.

PRINCIPLES OF RATIO SELECTION

The following principles should be considered before selecting the ratio:
(1)  Ratio should be logically inter-related.

(2)  Pseudo ratios should be avoided.

(3)  Ratio must measure a material factor of business.

(4)  Cost of obtaining information should be borne in mind.

(5)  Ratio should be in minimum numbers.

(6)  Ratio should be facilities comparable.
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ADVANTAGES OF RATIO ANALYSIS

Ratio analysis i1s necessary to establish the relationship between two
accounting figures to highlight the significant information to the
management or users who can analyse the business situation and to monitor
their performance in a meaningful way. The following are the advantages of
ratio analysis:

(1)

(2)

3)
(4)

(®)

(6)

(7)

)

)

(10)

(11)
(12)

(13)

It facilitates the accounting information to be summarized and
simplified in a required form.

It highlights the inter-relationship between the facts and figures of
various segments of business.

Ratio analysis helps to remove all type of wastages and inefficiencies.

It provides necessary information to the management to take prompt
decision relating to business.

It helps to the management for effectively discharge its functions such
as planning, organizing, controlling, directing and forecasting.

Ratio analysis reveals profitable and unprofitable activities. Thus, the
management is able to concentrate on unprofitable activities and
consider to improve the efficiency.

Ratio analysis is used as a measuring rod for effective control of
performance of business activities.

Ratios are an effective means of communication and informing about
financial soundness made by the business concern to the proprietors,
investors, creditors and other parties.

Ratio analysis is an effective tool which is used for measuring the
operating results of the enterprises.

It facilitates control over the operation as well as resources of the
business.

Effective co-operation can be achieved through ratio analysis.

Ratio analysis provides all assistance to the management to fix
responsibilities.

Ratio analysis helps to determine the performance of liquidity,
profitability and solvency position of the business concern.

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India



204 Background Material on Training Program for Government Officials

VARIOUS TYPES OF GST RATIOS

GST is a new tax law. The taxpayers are still familiarising themselves with
the law. This could result in high possibility of errors by taxpayers. However,
there could be a possibility that the taxpayers are non-compliant towards
various provisions of the law. Further, the entire GST eco system is highly
data oriented where multiple details are required to be submitted by the
taxpayers to the tax authorities at the transaction level. This makes it
possible for the revenue officers to have adequate data at their disposal
which could be used by them for the purpose of ratio analysis.

There are several types of ratios which may be used for determining that the
taxpayer has complied with the GST provisions —

1. Profitability Ratios

a. Net profit Ratio

b. Gross profit ratio
2. Revenue in books vs revenue in GST
3. Expenses and input tax ratios

a. Total ITC availed in GSTR-3B [Table 4(A)(5)] to Total ITC
available in GSTR-2A

b. Expenses incurred from registered persons to total expenses
(GSTR-2 expenses viz-a-viz total expenses)

c. Input tax utilised to input tax availed

d. ITC availed to Gross tax liability Ratio

e. ITC utilised to Gross tax liability Ratio
4, Reverse charge ratios

a. RCM credit availed vs RCM paid
5. Payment Ratio

These are some of the illustrative ratio. Similarly, there could be many other
type of ratio which could be developed based on the specific organisation.
Such ratio could give a useful insight on the compliance pattern.
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Ratio Calculation Comments
Net Profit Net profit / Compare with previous year’s Net
Ratio Turnover * 100 profit Ratio.

A significantly higher ratio can be
an indicator of possible case of
Profiteering. This is to be further
checked with the Gross Profit
Ratio

Any items of abnormal nature to
be examined and separated to
arrive at proper Net Profit Ratio.
This ratio could be used by the
department to identify the
possible instances where anti
profiteering could be invoked.
However, it 1s to be borne that
merely increase in the profit
cannot lead to inevitable
conclusion that it is on account of
anti-profiteering as many market
forces could lead to rise in profit.

Gross Profit
Ratio

Gross Profit /
Turnover * 100

Higher GP ratio could be a

probable case of anti-profiteering.

However, the following needs to

be done and taken care of-

e Check for changes in
Accounting treatment, if any

e Ascertain previous taxes on
purchase versus GST

e Ascertain credits in the past
versus ITC under GST

e Method of valuation stock

o Excise regime versus GST
regime

e The tax element 1is not
required to be added

Turnover in
books to

(Revenue from
operations + Other

This ratio helps in identifying the
difference between the term
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turnover in
Returns (per
GSTIN)

income) / Outward
supplies declared
in GSTR-3B

“supply” and “revenue”. What

may be considered to be a supply

under GST may not be a revenue
item 1in the books of accounts.

This nature of transactions is to

be identified to ensure that the

correct treatment is done.

If the ratio is greater than 1 i.e.

revenue in Books > outward

supplies declared in GSTR-3B,
then, following may be the
reasons —

e Revenue may have been
recorded pertaining to
advances received in past, tax
for which has already been
paid.

e it may be possible that
taxpayer has mnot disclosed
some supplies. This could
result in under reporting and
under payment of tax liability.

e Any other items  which
constitutes revenue for the
financial statement purpose
but may not be considered as
supply under GST and hence
not reported in the GSTR-
1/GSTR-3B.

If the ratio is less than 1 i.e.

revenue in Books < outward

supplies declared in GSTR-3B,
following may be the reasons for
the same —

e Branch Transfers

e Principal — agent transfers

e Schedule I transactions

e Advances received, for which
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invoices have not yet been
issued.

e Such other supplies which are

not includible in the Books of

Account in the given period for

which ratio is being compared.
In case of above transactions
(branch  transfer, schedule I
transactions etc.), valuation
should be checked to ensure that
tax has been paid on correct value

Total ITC
availed in
GSTR-3B
[Table
4(A)(5)] to
Total ITC
avatlable in
GSTR-2A

GSTR-3B (Table
4(A)(5)) / Total ITC
available in GSTR-
2A

e As GSTR-2 is non-functional as of

now, there 1s no one-to-one
correlation between the inward
supplies taken by the taxpayer
and input tax credit availed on
the same.

This ratio would enable to
ascertain if any unjust / extra
input tax credit has been taken.

If the ratio is >1, it could mean
that the taxpayer has taken
excess credit over and above what
was available to him or some of
the suppliers have not filed their
GSTR-1 so corresponding credit
does not auto populate in the
GSTR-2A of the recipient.

If the ratio is <1, this could lead
to possibility of some credits
missed out or some blocked
credits which appear in the
GSTR-2A but not taken in GSTR-
3B.

This ratio may not be blindly used
in the initial year as there could
be challenges of data sanctity and
the possibility of non-compliance
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at the supplier end. Nevertheless,
it could give a direction in which

further examination may be
undertaken.
Input tax Input tax utilized / This ratio indicates the

utilised to

Input tax credit

proportion of credit utilized viz a

input tax availed viz credit availed. The period of
availed ratio should be defined carefully
as there could always Dbe
possibility of brought forward of
credits from previous period
which could result in a ratio
apparently appearing unusual.
The comparison of ratio as a trend
over a period of time could
indicates the credit wutilization
pattern of the organization.
Expenses Total expenses as This Ratio may be wused to
incurred arising in GSTR- understand the purchasing
from 2A of the taxpayer pattern of the taxpayer.
registered / Total Expenses in It should be calculated annually
persons to Books of Accounts as the expenses may be booked at
total a later date in the books of
expenses accounts.
This ratio could give an indication
as to the average range within
which the assessee may be
availing the credits.
ITC availed | ITC availed/ Gross This ratio is one of the most
to Gross tax | tax liability * 100 Important ratio which could be
liability used for establishing the pattern
Ratio of the ITC availed with the output

tax liability.
Higher (closer to 1 or
greater than 1) in a particular
period could should be supported
by some of the

ratio

following
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illustrative factors
Inverted duty structure
Additions to movable fixed
assets or capital expenditure
Significant transitional
credits
Higher inward supply
compared to outward supply
resulting in the  stock
accumulation
Credit availed in the pre-
operating stage

ITC utilised
to Gross tax
liability
Ratio

ITC utilised/ Gross
tax liability * 100

This ratio indicates the pattern of
payment of tax. If the ratio 1is
near to 1, it indicates that the tax
liability 1s discharged by the
assessee primarily by utilizing
the input tax credits.

There could be many industries
which may be working on thin
margin or operating in the
inverted duty structure. The ratio
could always be higher in such
industries.

The ratio over a period could be
compared to evaluate the credit
utilization pattern of the assessee
as unusual fluctuation could give
rise to some suspicion.

However, mere higher ratio does
not indicates that there is non-
compliance or adoption of mala
fide means by the taxpayers in
discharge of their liabilities.
Hence, the decision should not be
made purely based on this ratio
unless corroborated with other
evidence.
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Reverse ITC pertaining to This ratio should not be greater
charge credit | reverse charge than 1. If it is greater than 1, it
avatled to (excluding ITC means that the taxpayer has
reverse claimed on imports | claimed incorrect / ineligible
charge of goods or amount as I'TC.
liability services) / Total
discharged RCM liability

discharged

(excluding GST

paid on imports of

goods or services)
Payment Liability Lower ratio should be substantiated
Ratios discharged in cash | with higher ITC to Gross liability

/ Total Liability
(both excluding
reverse charge
liability)

ratio and higher expenses incurred
from registered persons to total
expense ratio. This would indicates
the percentage of liability which is
discharged by the taxpayers by
paying the liability in cash.

OTHER FINANCIAL RATIOS

In addition to the above ratios, there are various other financial and
operational ratios which may be used in understanding the financial and
operational position of a company. In the following section, we have
given the ratios which would be useful from Goods and Services Tax

point of view:

Ratio Calculation Comments

Capital Sales / Capital A measure of total asset utilisation.

Turnover employed(or) Helps to answer the question - What

Ratio Cost of sales are being generated by each
Sales/Capital rupee’s worth of assets invested in
employed the business?

This establishes the
relationship between the Cost of
sales or sales and Capital employed

ratio

or Shareholders’ funds
Note: when combined with the return

Indirect Taxes Committee




Ratio Analysis 211

Ratio

Calculation

Comments

on sales, it generates the primary
ratio — (Return on Capital Employed)
ROCE.

Fixed Assets
Turnover

Ratio

Cost of goods Sales
! Fixed Assets or

Sales/Net Fixed
assets

This ratio indicates the efficiency of
assets management. This Ratio is used
to measure the utilization of fixed
assets. A reducing sales being
generated from each rupee invested in
fixed assets may indicate overcapacity
or  poorer-performing  equipment.
Higher the ratio meaning that the firm
has successfully utilized the fixed
assets.

Stock
Turnover
Ratio or
Inventory
Ratio or
Stock
velocity
Ratio

Cost of Sales /
Average Stock
Value

This Ratio is wused to measure
whether the investment in Stock in
trade is effectively utilized or not.
Stock Turnover indicates the number
of times the stock has been turned
over in business during a particular
period. This ratio is widely used as a
measure of investment in stock is
within proper limit or not, this ratio
helpful in evaluating the stock
utilization.

Debtor’s
Turnover
Ratio

Net Credit
Sales/Average
Receivables

This ratio 1is also known as
Receivables Turnover Ratio or
Debtor’s  Velocity. Debtors  or
Receivables represent the uncollected
portion of credit sales. Debtor’s
velocity indicates the number of
times the receivables are turnover
over in business during a particular
period. This ratio establishes the
relationship between receivables and
sales.

Creditors
Turnover

Net Credit
Purchases/Average

This Ratio is also called as Payables
Turnover Ratio or Creditor’s
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Ratio

Calculation

Comments

Ratio

Accounts Payable

Velocity. This ratio establishes the
relationship between the net credit
purchases and the average trade
creditors. Creditor’s Velocity ratio
indicates the number of times with
which the payment is made to the
supplier in respect of credit
purchases.

Working
Capital
Turnover
Ratio

Net sales /
Working capital

This ratio highlights the effective
utilization of working capital relating
to sales. It represents the firm’s
liquidity position. It establishes the
relationship between Sales and
Working Capital. This ratio is an
index to know whether the working
capital has been effectively utilized
or not in making sales. A higher
working capital turnover ratio
indicates efficient wutilization of
working capital.
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GST - RELEVANT ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

8.1  After studying the various statutory provisions of GST law, one
must understand the inter-relationship of this law with accounting, i.e.,
how GST is recorded in the books of accounts which accounting standards
or guidance notes issued by the ICAI are applicable in respect of this tax
and what are the points of convergence and divergence between the
provisions of this tax law and accountancy principles. In order to
understand the practical implications of these tax provisions, it becomes
utmost necessary to know that how GST related transactions are
accounted for in the account books. In this chapter we will try to
understand these issues.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

8.2 Accounting Standards (ASs), are written policy documents issued
by expert accounting body or by government or other regulatory body
covering the aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of accounting transactions in the financial statements globally.
In India, accounting standards are issued by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs. The Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), as notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, have been formulated keeping the
Indian economic & legal environment in view and with a view to converge
with IFRS Standards.

8.3 The ostensible purpose of the standard setting bodies is to promote
the dissemination of timely and useful financial information to investors
and certain other parties having an interest in the company's economic
performance. The Accounting Standards reduce the accounting
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alternatives in the preparation of financial statements within the bounds
of rationality, thereby ensuring comparability of financial statements of
different enterprises. The following Accounting Standards have been
issued as on 31.12.2018 by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs:
Notifications Description

Ind AS 101 First-time Adoption of Ind AS
Ind AS 102 Share-based Payment

Ind AS 103 Business Combinations

Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts

Ind AS105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

Ind AS 106 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

Ind AS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Ind AS 108 Operating Segments

Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments

Ind AS 110 Consolidated Financial Statements

Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements

Ind AS 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
Ind AS 113 Fair Value Measurement

Ind AS 114 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Ind AS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

Ind AS 2 Inventories

Ind AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates

and Errors

Ind AS 10 Events after the Reporting Period
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Ind AS 12
Ind AS 16
Ind AS 17
Ind AS 19
Ind AS 20

Ind AS 21
Ind AS 23
Ind AS 24
Ind AS 27
Ind AS 28
Ind AS 29
Ind AS 32
Ind AS 33
Ind AS 34
Ind AS 36
Ind AS 37
Ind AS 38
Ind AS 40
Ind AS 41
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Income Taxes

Property, Plant and Equipment
Leases

Employee Benefits

Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
Financial Instruments: Presentation

Earnings per Share

Interim Financial Reporting

Impairment of Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Intangible Assets

Investment Property

Agriculture

The following Accounting Standards have relevance in GST matters:

(i) Ind AS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements

The purpose of this Standard is to prescribes the basis for presentation of

general purpose financial statements to ensure comparability both with

the entity’s financial statements of previous periods and with the

financial statements of other entities. It sets out overall requirements for
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the presentation of financial statements, guidelines for their structure

and minimum requirements for their content.

The accounting standard provides that a complete set of financial
statements comprises:

(a) a balance sheet as at the end of the period ;
(b) a statement of profit and loss for the period;
() Statement of changes in equity for the period;
(d) a statement of cash flows for the period;

(e) notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information; and

(ea) comparative information in respect of the preceding period as
specified in paragraphs 38 and 38A; and

) a balance sheet as at the beginning of the preceding period when
an entity applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a
retrospective restatement of items in its financial statements, or
when it reclassifies items in its financial statements in accordance
with relevant paragraphs of the standard.

The standard provides that Financial statements shall present a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
an entity. Presentation of true and fair view requires the faithful
representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions
in accordance with the definitions and recognition criteria for assets,
liabilities, income and expenses set out in the Framework. The application
of Ind ASs, with additional disclosure when necessary, is presumed to
result in financial statements that present a true and fair view.

As a major aspect of any accounting, the standard also requires that while
preparing financial statements, management shall make an assessment of
an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. Further, the accounting

standard provides for preparation of accounts on accrual basis. The

accounting standard also identifies the concept of materiality and
aggregation, providing that similar items shall be aggregated, and such
material different aggregations should be disclosed properly and
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separately. Offsetting of counter credits and debits both in profit and loss
account or balance sheet is not allowed unless allowed by the Indian
Accounting Standards. The accounting standard also lays emphasis on
consistency in reporting. Amongst others, the accounting standard
provides for various minimum disclosures to be made in the Financial
statements.

(ii)) AS 2: Inventories

This standard deals with the determination of cost and its subsequent
recognition as an expense, including any write-down to net realisable
value.

The accounting standard provides that Inventories shall be measured at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. In terms of valuation, the cost
of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. The financial statements shall disclose:

(a) the accounting policies adopted in measuring inventories, including
the cost formula used;

(b) the total carrying amount of inventories and the carrying amount
in classifications appropriate to the entity;

(c) the carrying amount of inventories carried at fair value less costs
to sell;

(d) the amount of inventories recognised as an expense during the
period;

(e) the amount of any write-down of inventories recognised as an

expense in the period in accordance with paragraph 34;

63 the amount of any reversal of any write-down that is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized as expense in
the period in accordance with paragraph 34;

(2) the circumstances or events that led to the reversal of a write-down
of inventories in accordance with paragraph 34; and
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(h) the carrying amount of inventories pledged as security for
liabilities.

(iii) Ind AS 115: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Standard establishes the principles that an entity shall apply to
report useful information to users of financial statements about the
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from a contract with a customer. At contract inception, an entity shall
assess the goods or services promised in a contract with a customer and
shall identify as a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the
customer either:

(a) goods or services (or a bundle of goods or services) that are distinct;
or
(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same

and that have the same pattern of transfer to the customer (see
paragraph 23).

The disclosure under the above accounting standard may be relevant from
the perspective of determination of nature of a contract as composite or
mixed or distinct. Amongst others, the accounting standard provides that
An entity shall recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service (ie an
asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred when (or as) the customer
obtains control of that asset. It also provides that the revenue recognised
should not includes taxes. The accounting standard also provides for
allocating the transaction price to performance obligations, however, it
may be noted that such bifurcation is important for recognition of revenue
and not for determination of a contract. In terms of recognition of revenue
in relation to contract cost, the accounting standard provides that an
entity shall recognise as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract with a customer if the entity expects to recover those costs. Also,
the accounting standard provides that the objective of the disclosure
requirements is for an entity to disclose sufficient information to enable
users of financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
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customers. To achieve that objective, it provides that an entity shall
disclose qualitative and quantitative information about all of the
following:

(a) its contracts with customers;

(b) the significant judgements, and changes in the judgements, made
in applying this Standard to those contracts; and

(c) any assets recognised from the costs to obtain or fulfil a contract
with a customer

The above disclosures have been prescribed in detail in the accounting
standard.

(iv) Ind AS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment

This standard prescribes the accounting treatment for property, plant and
equipment so that users of the financial statements can discern
information about an entity’s investment in its property, plant and
equipment and the changes in such investment. The standard prescribed
the treatment of initial and carrying costs of such properties. It also
provides that an item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for
recognition as an asset shall be measured at its cost and also prescribes
its elements of costs. After recognition as an asset, an item of property,
plant and equipment shall be carried at its cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The accounting standard i1s important from the perspective of
understanding the accounting treatment of capital goods and its elements.

(v) Ind AS 21: The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

The accounting standard provides as how to include foreign currency
transactions and foreign operations in the financial statements of an
entity and how to translate financial statements into a presentation
currency. The standard provides that a foreign currency transaction shall
be recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency, by applying
to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the
functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction. It further provides for treatment of outstanding transactions
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at end of reporting period. Also, it provides that Exchange differences
arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were translated on
initial recognition during the period or in previous financial statements
shall be recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise
except in specified situation. In terms of disclosure, an entity shall
disclose:

(a) the amount of exchange differences recognised in profit or loss
except for those arising on financial instruments measured at fair
value through profit or loss in accordance with Ind AS 109; and

(b) net exchange differences recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in a separate component of equity, and a
reconciliation of the amount of such exchange differences at the
beginning and end of the period.

The accounting standard is important to understand the recording of
foreign exchange transaction in books of accounts and the fact that the
treatment may differ from the one required under GST law.

(vi) Ind AS 24: Related Party Disclosures

The accounting standard deals with disclosure necessary to draw
attention to the possibility that its financial position and profit or loss
may have been affected by the existence of related parties and by
transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, with such
parties. Standard requires disclosure of related party relationships,
transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, in the
consolidated and separate financial statements of a parent or investors
with joint control of, or significant influence over, an investee. The
accounting standard provides that disclosures shall include:

(a) the amount of the transactions;
(b) the amount of outstanding balances, including commitments, and:

(1) their terms and conditions, including whether they are
secured, and the nature of the consideration to be provided
in settlement; and
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(1) details of any guarantees given or received;

(c) provisions for doubtful debts related to the amount of outstanding
balances; and

(d) the expense recognised during the period in respect of bad or
doubtful debts due from related parties.

The accounting standard disclosures are important from the perspective of
valuation and time of supply.

(vii) Ind AS 108: Operating Segments

The accounting standard deals with the requirement for disclosure of
information to enable users of its financial statements to evaluate the
nature and financial effects of the business activities in which it engages
and the economic environments in which it operates. It requires that an
entity shall disclose information to enable users of its financial
statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the business
activities in which it engages and the economic environments in which it
operates.

(x) Ind AS 38: Intangible assets

This accounting standard prescribes the accounting treatment for
intangible assets.

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical
substance. Examples of such assets are:

(a) brand names;

(b) mastheads and publishing titles;
(c) computer software;

(d) licences and franchises;

(e) copyrights, patents and other industrial property rights, service and
operating rights;

(f) recipes, formulae, models, designs and prototypes; and

(g) intangible assets under development.
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An intangible asset should be recognised if, and only if:

(a) it 1s probable that the future economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise; and

(b) the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

An entity shall disclose the specified disclosure for each class of intangible
assets, distinguishing between internally generated intangible assets and
other intangible assets.

(xi) Ind AS 37: Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets

The objective of this Standard is to ensure that appropriate recognition
criteria and measurement bases are applied to provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets and that sufficient information is
disclosed in the notes to enable users to understand their nature, timing
and amount. The standard provides that a provision shall be recognised
when:

(a) an entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event;

(b) it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and

(c) a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If
these conditions are not met, no provision shall be recognised.

It also provides that an entity shall not recognise a contingent asset. It
further provides for disclosure of provisions and contingent liability.
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(GO0DS AND SERVICE TAX — ACCOUNTING
ISSUES

ACCOUNTING ISSUES IN RECORDING VALUE OF TAXABLE
SUPPLIES

9.1 Specified records are required to be maintained by the assessee
under GST Provisions. Section 35 of the CGST provides that every
registered person shall keep and maintain, at his principal place of
business, as mentioned in the certificate of registration, a true and correct
account of—

(a) production or manufacture of goods;

(b) inward and outward supply of goods or services or both;
(c) stock of goods;

(d) input tax credit availed;

(e) output tax payable and paid; and

® such other particulars as may be prescribed.

Inline, Rule 56 of CGST Rules provides for maintenance of a true and
correct account of the goods or services imported or exported or of supplies
attracting payment of tax on reverse charge along with the relevant
documents, including invoices, bills of supply, delivery challans, credit
notes, debit notes, receipt vouchers, payment vouchers and refund
vouchers.

9.2. Further, the Rule requires every registered person to maintain the
following records also:

— the accounts of stock in respect of goods received and supplied by
him, and such accounts shall contain particulars of the opening
balance, receipt, supply, goods lost, stolen, destroyed, written off or
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disposed of by way of gift or free sample and the balance of stock
including raw materials, finished goods, scrap and wastage thereof.

— a separate account of advances received, paid and adjustments
made thereto.

— an account, containing the details of tax payable (including tax
payable in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (3) and
sub-section (4) of section 9, to the extent applicable), tax collected
and paid, input tax, input tax credit claimed, together with a
register of tax invoice, credit notes, debit notes, delivery challan
issued or received during any tax period.

— names and complete addresses of suppliers from whom he has
received the goods or services chargeable to tax under the Act.

— names and complete addresses of the persons to whom he has
supplied goods or services, where required under the provisions of
this Chapter.

— the complete address of the premises where goods are stored by
him, including goods stored during transit along with the
particulars of the stock stored therein.

Though the requisites has been provided in the law, their format can be
maintained by the Assessee as per his own convenience. However, he
must ensure that all requisites are duly covered within such format.

Accounting for Goods and Service Tax

9.3 The following ledger accounts shall be maintained in the books of
the supplier:

(1) ‘GST payable’ under head “Current Liability”. It is pertinent to
mention that such account should be maintained separately for:

— Each GSTIN. Thus, suppose a person has three
registrations in India, he should maintain separate account
for all his GSTINs.

— Each head of tax. Thus, separate account should be
maintained for CGST, SGST, IGST or Compensation Cess
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Thus, every Assessee shall have 3 accounts at least for output per
GSTIN. This shall ensure matching of output ledger as appearing
in GSTN portal.

(11) ‘ITC receivable’ under head “Current Assets”. Such account should
also be maintained for each GSTIN and for each tax category.
Thus, there shall be following receivable accounts viz., CGST
receivable, SGST receivable, IGST receivable, Cess receivable etc.
This shall ensure matching of Credit ledger as appearing in GSTN
portal.

9.4. At the time of billing to the client, Goods and Services tax payable
account should be credited as the liability to pay tax arises on the issue of
invoice or receipt of payment or completion of service / dispatch of goods
[in terms of Section 12/13 of CGST Act]. GST payable a/c should be
debited when the tax is paid by the relevant due date as provided under
Section 49 of the CGST Act. The payment can be credited either to Bank
[in case of payment by Cash] or ITC receivable account [in case of payment
by Input Tax Credit].

9.5. ‘ITC Receivable’ account represents the amount of total input tax
paid on the inputs, capital goods and input services, which is eligible to be
used for the payment of output GST liability and should be debited at the
time of receipt of invoice from the vendor providing goods/ services which
are input for the assessee [subject to conditions of Section 16/17 of CGST
Act] from the input service provider. Input Tax Credit shall be utilized
only to the extent such credit is available on the last day of the month or
quarter, as the case may be, for payment of tax relating to that month or
the quarter, as the case may be. Generally, Credit receivable is to be set
off against the GST payable account first, and difference remaining in the
GST payable account is to be paid in cash through internet banking.

Provision in relation to input service distributor

9.7  As per the Section 20 of CGST Act, every Input Service Distributor
distributing input tax credit shall, in respect of credit distributed, issue a
document containing the amount of input tax credit being distributed in
such manner as may be prescribed. Such document shall contain the
following, namely:-

(a) name, address and Goods and Services Tax Identification Number
of the Input Service Distributor;
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(b) a consecutive serial number not exceeding sixteen characters, in
one or multiple series, containing alphabets or numerals or special
{3 [13 "

characters hyphen or dash and slash symbolised as ,
respectively, and any combination thereof, unique for a financial

year;
(c) date of its issue;
(d) name, address and Goods and Services Tax Identification Number

of the recipient to whom the credit is distributed;
(e) amount of the credit distributed; and

§3) signature or digital signature of the Input Service Distributor or
his authorised representative:

As per first proviso of Rule 54 of CGST Rules, wherein it has been
provided that “where the Input Service Distributor is an office of a banking
company or a financial institution, including a non-banking financial
company, a tax invoice shall include any document in lieu thereof, by
whatever name called, whether or not serially numbered but containing the
information as mentioned above”

In other words, in case the input service distributor is an office of a
service provider in respect of Banking and Financial Services Invoice, bill
or challan will include any document whether or not serially numbered.
However, it must contain other information as required in Rule and
specified herein above.

Preservation of records for five years

9.8 Section 36 of the CGST Act provides that every registered person
required to keep and maintain books of account or other records shall
retain them until the expiry of seventy-two months from the due date of
furnishing of annual return for the year pertaining to such accounts and
records.

It has been further provided that a registered person, who is a party to an
appeal or revision or any other proceedings before any Appellate
Authority or Revisional Authority or Appellate Tribunal or Court,
whether filed by him or by the Commissioner, or is under investigation for
an offence under Chapter XIX, shall retain the books of account and other
records pertaining to the subject matter of such appeal or revision or
proceedings or investigation for a period of one year after final disposal of
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such appeal or revision or proceedings or investigation, or for the period
specified above, whichever is later.

9.9

Accounting for value of taxable supplies

Supplier could account on cash basis or accrual basis. Difference
between accrual and cash basis to be clearly kept in mind at the
commencement of audit.

Requirements of Section 15 of the CGST Act read with Rule 27 to
35 of CGST Rules should be kept in mind.

Accrual Entry is as follows:

For raising an Invoice:

Party’s Alc Dr 11,800
To Income Alc 10,000
To GST Payable Alc 1,800

Possible Issues

@

(i1)

(iif)

@iv)

\

(v1)

The tax payer could credit the income to some other account for e.g.
Suspense alc, supplier’s a/c, or other undisclosed credits, etc.

The value of taxable supplies should capture the entire value
including incidental expenses.

Additional consideration receivable, if any, over and above the
supply income should be carefully scrutinized

In case of a supplier who is also a manufacturer and / or trader,
care should be taken to ensure that every different supply, if any,
should be separately accounted and clear identification of taxable
as well as exempt supply should be reflected by the books of
accounts.

In case of composite contracts, taxable value should be carefully
scrutinized.

In case of supplies rendered free of charge, accounts do not throw
up the value of such supplies. The transaction needs to be
scrutinized only if there seems to be a probability of receiving
consideration other than in monetary terms, as GST is not payable
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on supplies rendered free of cost (except in case of related party).
However, it is important to note that even thereof, entry for
reversal of Input tax credit on inputs used in such supply is
required to be made in the books of accounts. Such entry shall be
passed by crediting the GST receivable account and debiting the
GST expense account or Rates and Taxes as per the choice of the
tax payer.

(vil) Reasons for issuance of Credit notes.

(viil)) Excess / short tax charged to the customers.

(ix)  Additional bills raised on the customers.

(%) Write-off of some invoices due to bad debts.

(xi) Refund of excess amount collected from clients; adjusted in
subsequent bills

(xi1)) The transaction between associated enterprises.

Accounting for value of Taxable Supplies for International
transactions

Import of Services

Any liabilities accrued for import of any taxable service should be
thoroughly examined. For e.g.: Cross charges by overseas parent
company to the Indian subsidiary, actual import of services, etc.

Any cross charges, debit note by the overseas branch office of
Indian company.

Export of Goods / Services

Any export of goods should be substantiated by a proper Shipping
Bill.

Any receivables accrued for export of any taxable service should be
thoroughly examined as in case of supply by associated enterprises,
where the supplier of service is located outside India, the time of
supply shall be the date of entry in the books of account of the
recipient of supply or the date of payment, whichever is earlier.
[Refer Section 13(3) of CGST Act].
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Cross charges by an Indian company to its overseas parent
company / branch.

Accounting for realization of value of taxable services

For realisation of the invoice / advance money
Bank A/c Dr 11,800

To Party’s Alc 11,800
For subsequent set-off against the actual invoice
Party’s Alc Dr 11,800

To Service Income Alc 11,800

For adjusting the receivable against the payable from the same
party

Party’s Alc Dr 1,00,000
To Party’s Alc 1,00,000

It is important to note that such netting when made in case of
export of services should be accompanied by permission from RBI.

For payment made by service receiver to third party on behalf of
service provider.

Expense Alc Dr 1,00,000

To Third party’s Alc 1,00,000
Third Party’s Alc Dr 1,00,000

To Party’s Alc 1,00,000

Possible Issues

Exchange fluctuations may go unnoticed.

Amount billed 1s¥ 1,00,000. But amount realised is ¥ 1,10,000.
What is the value of taxable supplies? Another eg: If amount
realized 1s¥ 95,000; what is the value of taxable supplies.

Part realisation of the supplies. In such a case, reasons for part
realization should be ascertained. There may be various reasons
forpart realization i.e. bad debts, short settlement due to deficiency
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in service or termination of contract premature etc. However, such
enquiry 1s of use in case of services only as in case of goods,
requirement of receipt in foreign exchange does not exist.

. TDS is required to be deducted by the service receiver under the
provisions of Income-tax Act. Such TDS is deemed to be received
when suitable entry debiting such TDS and crediting the Party is
made by the taxpayer in his books of accounts.

KEY ISSUES — ACCOUNTING OF GST
Identifying Credits in Expenditure Account

9.10 With the introduction of GST, tax is leviable on all supplies.
Pursuant to this, it would be imperative to examine the sources of income
or credits in the profit and loss account, from a taxability perspective.

Further, it is ordinary practice that recoveries made with respect to
expenses incurred are charged to expenditure accounts. For instance, the
Company may have incurred group insurance expenditure for its
employees and the same is recovered back from the employees. As per
accounting prudence, since the recovery is made from the expenses
incurred, the same 1is charged to the particular expense head.
Accordingly, the expenses accounted, is net of recoveries made from the
employee. To illustrate, if the total expenses incurred by the Company for
providing group insurance is say, X 100,000/- and ¥ 25,000/- is recovered
from the employees, then the said expenditure account would appear as
follows in the Trial Balance:

Particulars Debit Credit Net Amount

Employee Group Insurance 100,000 25,000 75,000
Expenditure A/c

In the profit and loss account of the Company, ¥ 75,000/- would appear as
the net expense under the head ‘Employee Group Insurance’.

It is possible that the recoveries made from the employees may be
subjected to tax, whilst the entitlement of the Company to take credit on
full expenditure value of ¥ 100,000/-. Accordingly, it would be necessary
to examine the credits from a taxability perspective.
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Reverse charge

9.16 Ordinarily, the liability to pay GST is on the supplier. In respect of
specified supplies, the liability to pay GST is on the person receiving the
supply, as provided in Notification No. 4/2017-CT(R) and Notification No.
13/2017-CT(R), both dated 28-06-2017b.

9.17 In respect of the said services, while accounting the expenses, the
liability to pay GST will need to be accrued. The liability to pay service
tax for non-associated transactions will arise on payment to the vendor.

9.18 The entry of such payment shall be made in GST payable account
and debit shall be made to GST receivable account as the taxpayer is
eligible to claim Input tax credit of such GST paid. However, if such
amount is not available as Input Tax Credit, then taxpayer should debit
the GST Expense Account or Rates and Taxes as per his adopted practice.

Reverse charge liability for Associated enterprise transactions &
others

9.19 The reverse charge liability on import of services from associated
enterprise transactions accrue on accounting of the said transaction or
payment, whichever is earlier.

For non-associated enterprise transactions, the liability to discharge GST
liability will arise on receipt of goods or payment to the vendor, provided
the payment is made within 30 days / 60 days of date of invoice in case of
goods and services respectively from the date of the invoice. However, if
payment is not made within 30 days / 60 days of date of invoice in case of
goods and services respectively, then the tax liability will arise on the
earlier of receipt of goods or the first day after above specified period from
the date of Invoice, whichever is earlier.

Accordingly, the accounting of such transactions should reveal
transactions with associated enterprise, transactions with non-associated
enterprise and details of payments made to them with the invoice dates.

Input Tax Credit taken on accrual basis but vendor not paid until
180 days

9.20 In terms of Section 16(4) of the CGST Act, the assessee is entitled
to take credit on invoices raised by domestic supplies on accrual basis.
However, it is provided that the payments to the said suppliers needs to
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be made within 180 days from the date of invoice, bill or challan as the
case may be. In the event the payment is not made within the stipulated
time, the assessee is required to reverse the credit taken on accrual basis
and avail the same, when the payment to the said vendor is made.

Accordingly, the assessee would be required to record details of credit
taken on accrual basis along with record of payment details. In case the
payment made to the vendor is beyond the stipulated time, the assessee
would be required to ensure that the credit was reversed and taken back
only upon payment to the vendor.

Reversal of Input Tax credits & reconciliation of Input Tax account

9.21 In terms of Section 54, the assessee claiming refund of GST is
required to reverse the Input Tax Credit on making an application for the
refund. In case the refund application is rejected, the assessee will be
entitled to get the credit so reversed back into his electronic credit ledger.

Accordingly, in case of refunds, accounting of the transactions the credit
in the books of accounts should match with the GST returns and should
reveal the credits availed, reversed and taken back (in case of rejection of
refund). Further, the assessee should prepare monthly reconciliation of
Input Tax Credit as reflecting in Books of Accounts with GST returns and
Electronic Credit Ledger.

Exchange Rate with respect to Export and Import of Services

9.22. Rule 34 of the CGST Rules provides for the methodology for
determining the exchange rates in case of import and export of goods and
services.

Goods - rate of exchange for determination of value of taxable goods shall
be the applicable rate of exchange as notified by the Board under section
14 of the Customs Act, 1962 for the date of time of supply of such goods in
terms of section 12 of the Act.

Services - The rate of exchange for determination of value of taxable
services shall be the applicable rate of exchange determined as per the
generally accepted accounting principles for the date of time of supply of
such services in terms of section 13 of the Act.
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IMPORTANT RECONCILIATIONS

RECONCILIATION AND ITS PURPOSE

10.1 Reconciliation, in the common parlance means a statement of reasons
as to why a difference exists between two or more sources of information. In
accounting, ‘reconciliation’ may be defined as a “calculation that
demonstrates how one figure (such as a balance) is derived from another”.

10.2 This normally results in circumstances where the treatment or
disclosures of the same transaction is different in various sources. On the
question as to why the treatment of the same transactions in different
sources is different, it must be noted that in the accounting or tax treatment
of various transactions are in specific to the subject, statute and the business
practices. For example, a contractor recognizes revenue in the books of
accounts as per Accounting Standard 7, whereas for the purposes of GST,
revenue has to be recognized as per Time of Supply provisions.

10.3 A reconciliation statement serves the purpose of ensuring
compatibility and consistency of figures and balances generated and reported
by an enterprise. For example, a bank reconciliation statement ensures that
the bank balance as per the entity’s books are tallied with the bank balance
as per the bank’s books and if there are any discrepancies they are for
genuine legitimate reasons. Thus, ‘reconciliation’ helps in ensuring
comprehensiveness in the verification process.

10.4 At this juncture, it is relevant to understand that preparation of a
reconciliation statement does not essentially mean that there are no
differences or that there are no deviations. A reconciliation statement is a
step towards determining such areas which require further substantive
checks to be applied.

10.5 Reconciliation Statement is always prepared for a specific time
period. This could be monthly, quarterly, six monthly or annually depending
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upon the period which has been chosen for the purpose of such reconciliation.
However, it is always better to have such reconciliation on annual basis as
the financial statements are normally prepared based on annual basis.
However, in case of listed companies, where the data are available on
quarterly basis, the exercise may be taken on quarterly basis also.

10.6 One important distinction under GST viz a viz earlier Indirect
Taxation Laws is the introduction of concept of distinct person wherein a
person is required to obtain registration in each of the States from where it
has been carrying on the business. This requires assessee to carry out GST
compliance (registration, filing of return, maintaining documentation,
payment of taxes etc.) with respect to each of the GSTIN separately.
However, there could be possibility of that the financial Statements are
prepared on PAN number level wherein all transactions pertaining to
multiple GSTIN are consolidated and single Trial Balance, Profit and Loss
Account and Balance Sheet is prepared. This could require auditor to
undertake extra efforts of splitting the Financial Statements for the
transactions pertaining to each GSTIN separately and then to undertake
reconciliation thereof with the GST compliance records.

10.7 There could be multiple reasons which could lead to differences
between books of account and GST records. From GST perspective,
‘reconciliation’ statements could serve a useful tool to compare the figures
reported in the financial statements and in the GST returns. The type of
reconciliation which may require preparation could be as under:

. Reconciliation between books of account and GST records:

o] Turnover reconciliation (Turnover reported in the books of
account vis-a-vis turnover as per GST records. Reference could

be made to Part-II of Form GSTR 9C)

o Reconciliation of Turnover as per Consolidated financial
statement with Turnover computed for each state for GSTR-9C.

o Input Tax Credit Reconciliation (ITC as per books of account vis-
a-vis ITC taken in the GSTR-3B/electronic credit ledger)

o Reconciliation of tax payable as per books of account and GST
records (tax payable as per GSTR-3B or tax liability appearing
in the electronics liability register)
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o Reconciliation of expenses liable to reverse charge as per books
of account and GST Returns/records

o Reconciliation of taxes paid as per books of account viz a viz
taxed paid through cash ledgers as appearing in the Electronics
Cash Ledger

o Reconciliation between credit notes/debit notes as per GST
records viz a viz credit notes/debit notes as per books of account
(involving GST credit notes/debit notes as well as financial credit
notes/debit notes)

0  Reconciliation of GST on overseas payments with financial
statements.

0  Reconciliation of foreign currency realisation received vis-a-vis
export of goods/services claimed

. Reconciliation between various GST returns/records:

o Reconciliation of turnover (taxable, exempted, nil rated and non-
GST) between GSTR-1 and GSTR-3B

o] Reconciliation of ITC as per GSTR-3B and ITC appearing in
GSTR-2A

o] E-way bill and GSTR-1 reconciliation

0  Reconciliation between delivery challan issued and job work
transactions reported in ITC-04

o] Reconciliation between TDS/TCS credit availed in Electronics
Cash Ledger vis-a-vis corresponding supplies reported by the
counter parties

o] Many more.........

Above reconciliations are major reconciliations which could require to be
prepared by the auditor in the course of audit of the assessee.

We discuss the important reconciliations out of the above:

A. Turnover Reconciliations: This 1s the most important
reconciliation as this could bring out all such transactions which cause
differences between turnover reported in the two records and there could be
possibility of additional liability on account of such differences in the
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turnover. The turnover reconciliation could be categories in various
categories based on the nature of such differences as discussed below:

1) Permanent Difference: There are fundamental for preparation and
presentation of Financial Statements. Similarly, GST Law has its
own sets of rules and regulations requiring maintenance of records in
accordance with such provisions. There could be instances where the
underlying assumption of preparing the statements under books of
account and GST records are different. Such nature of transactions
would appear in one set of records but would never appear in other
set of records. As the differences have arisen only on account of
different principles used for preparation of records, there may not be
any additional liability arising out of reconciliation items. Some of the
instances of this nature could be Income reported in the books of
account but not in GST records i.e. dividend received, Income Tax
refund received, creditors written back etc. where such items are
appearing in the credit side of P&L Account but have not been
considered in the GST records. Similarly, barter transactions, supply
without consideration, deemed valuation etc. could be some
transactions finding place only in the GST records but not in the
books of account.

2) Timing/temporary differences: These differences arise on account
of the timing difference between recording of a transaction in one set
of records viz a viz another set of records. i.e. books of account are
prepared on accrual basis where GST liability arises based on time of
supply principles. There could be instances where GST liability has
been paid on the advances received by the services providers, but such
advances are shown in the Balance Sheet. This could lead to
differences in the taxable turnover between two records which get
compensated in the next period when invoice is raised to the customer
and revenue is recorded in the books of account. All these categories
of differences are in the nature of compensatory differences which
eliminates differences over a period of time. Any reconciliation item
falling within this category may also not result in any additional
liability for the assessee. It could be explained in more details as
below:

. Liability to pay GST arises at the time of supply (TOS):
Section 12 and Section 13 of the CGST ACT, 2017 deals with the
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provisions of TOS where the former deals with TOS in case of
Goods and later deals with TOS in case of services and the
liability to pay GST arises as and when TOS arises in respect of
a particular supply. However, the recognition of income/ revenue
in the books of account was on the basis of accrual principles of
accounting income. This gave rise to differences between value of
goods and services entered in the books and the value offered in
the returns.

In case of services the TOS also arises on the receipt of advances
(Section 13 of the CGST ACT, 2017), though GST is payable, the
same would not be recognized as revenue/ income in the books of
account. Again, even this differential treatment gave rise to
differences between books of account and GST returns.

The above-mentioned Sections have been framed in a similar
manner to describe TOS in different cases as below:

I.  TOS in case in normal supplies liable to forward charge.
[Section 12(2) & Section 13(2)];

II. TOS in case of supplies on which tax is to paid under
reverse charge. [Section 12(3) & Section 13(3)];

III. TOS in case of supply of vouchers [Section 12(4) & Section
13(4)];

IV. TOS, in cases other than cases not falling above 1i.e.
Residual cases [Section 12(5) & Section 13(5)];

V. TOS to the extent it relates to an addition in the value of

supply by way of interest, late fee, or penalty for delayed
payment of any consideration. [Section 12(6) & Section
13(6)];

However, the AS or Ind AS prescribed under GAAP’s have
different recognition criteria based on accrual concepts for all
such cases.

Books of account maintained on cash basis, but GST is payable
on TOS basis — in respect of certain specific businesses/ professions,
the books of account may be maintained on cash basis as far as
income tax is concerned. However, GST may be payable on the basis
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4)

(5)

indicated above. Even in such circumstances, the need for
reconciliation arises.

. Unbilled revenue and work in progress — in respect of
continuous projects, the revenues are normally recorded in the
books of account based on work completion. However, the same
may not necessarily result in a requirement to pay GST.

o Method of recording the entries in the books of account —
the revenues in the books of account may be classified based on
the management requirements and or the business practices. It
may not directly provide the information required for GST
purposes, viz., the revenues in the books of account may be
recorded based on geographical segmentation, industry specific
classification etc.

Differences due to errors committed: There could always be
possibility of bona fide errors being committed by the taxpayers in the
GST compliance. It could be error of commission or omission. Error of
commission arises when the taxpayer, based on his understanding of
the law, treat a particular transaction in a particular way but the
legal interpretation of transaction could require the treatment to be
undertaken in a different way. Error of omission arises when a
transaction has not been reported/recorded in one set of records. It is
to be noted that the differences arising on account of such commission
or omission may not always result in additional liability. It has to be
determined on case to case basis.

Differences due to fraud committed: There could be exceptional
cases where assessee could indulge in suppression or intentional
evasion of taxes by not reporting transactions in the GST returns,
deliberating claiming wrong exemption though not entitled to claim
such exemption etc. The reconciliation statement could highlight such
differences which could possibly lead to creation of additional demand
on the taxpayers.
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RECONCILIATION OF SUPPLY ON WHICH OUTPUT TAX IS PAYABLE:

Sl. |Particulars Total

No
Data as per audited accounts:-

Add |Revenue from operations XXX

Less |Other Income XX
Amount as per books XXX
Turnover for period 15t April 2017 to 30t June 2017 XX)
Comparable Financials for July - March 18 XXX

Less |Revenue/Other Income pertaining to other | (XX)
registered/distinct persons: All different State/ business
vertical turnover as per audited accounts

Less |(a) Revenue items on which output GST is not payable XX)

(b) Zero rated supply without payment of tax

(c) Liable to tax under reverse charge mechanism u/s
9(3)

(d) Amount of wholly Exempt Supplies not disclosed in
returns.

(e) Partly Exempt Supplies (exempt portion amount):
(f) Non-GST supplies:

(g) Not a supply as per the definition of supply:

(h) Not a supply of goods or services as per Schedule III:

(1) Unbilled revenue (Considering the provisions of
Section 13(2) of the CGST Act, 2017) if being
accounted

(G) Revenue by way of supplies made through agents
where tax paid in previous year upon initial dispatch
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Sl.

Particulars

Total

(k) Revenue (tax on advances) against which Time of
Supply has occurred in the previous year

(1) Any other (please specify)

Adjusted Amount as per financials (in the State)

[sub-total]

XXX

Add

(a) Sale of capital assets

(b) Opening balance of unbilled revenues if being
accounted. (1st July 17)

(c) Advances received in current period
(d) Section 15 — Valuation Adjustments
(e) Activities listed in Schedule I

(f) Revenue duplicated in returns.

(2) Goods rejection for which credit notes not eligible for
tax: Discounts not known at time of supply

(h) Any other (please specify)

XXX

Format of Turnover reconciliation as given in the GSTR-9C

Reconciliation of Gross Turnover

Amounts
(in Rs.)

Turnover (including exports) as per audited
financial statements for the State / UT

A | (For multi-GSTIN units under same PAN the
turnover shall be derived from
the audited Annual Financial Statement)

B | Unbilled revenue at the beginning of +)
Financial Year

C | Unadjusted advances at the end of the +)

Financial Year
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Deemed Supply under Schedule I +)

Credit Notes issued after the end of the “-)
financial year but reflected in the annual
return

Trade Discounts accounted for in the (+)
audited Annual Financial Statement but are
not permissible under GST

Turnover from April 2017 to June 2017 )
Unbilled revenue at the end of Financial )
Year

Unadjusted Advances at the beginning of )
the Financial Year

Credit notes accounted for in the audited (+)
Annual Financial Statement but are not
permissible under GST

Adjustments on account of supply of goods “-)
by SEZ units to DTA Units

Turnover for the period under composition “-)
scheme

Adjustments in turnover under section 15 (+/-)

and rules thereunder

Adjustments in turnover due to foreign (+/-)
exchange fluctuations

Adjustments in turnover due to reasons not (+/-)
listed above

Annual turnover after adjustments as above -

Turnover as declared in Annual Return (GSTR9)

Un-Reconciled turnover (Q - P) 0
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B.

Reconciliation of Turnover as per Consolidated financial
statement with Turnover computed for each state for GSTR-
9C: A person having business operations in multiple States is
required to obtain registration in each such State/UT, and for each
such registration he is considered as distinct person. As per Section
44(2) every registered person is required to file reconciliation
statement along with Annual return.

Thus, registered persons are required to bifurcate their PAN India
Turnover to arrive at turnover at different states and accordingly
reconciliation is required among them. Once the PAN level turnover
1s compared with the turnover reported in the respective GSTR-9C,
this would give an idea as to whether turnover across various States
have been segregated correctly or not. The possibility of duplication or
omission of transactions could be gauged.

Reconciliation of Input Tax Credit (ITC)

ITC availed as per audited Annual Financial
Statement for the State/ UT (For multi-GSTIN units
under same PAN this should be derived from books of
A accounts)

ITC booked in earlier Financial Years claimed in
B current Financial Year +

ITC booked in current Financial Year to be claimed in
C subsequent Financial Years -

ITC availed as per audited financial statements or
books of account

ITC claimed in Annual Return (GSTR9)

Un-reconciled ITC

Input Tax Credit Reconciliation (ITC as per books of account
viz a viz ITC taken in the GSTR-3B/electronic credit ledger): In
business each and every transactions are required to be recorded to
get a true picture of profits/ losses for different purpose viz. Income
tax etc, similarly the records of ITC under GST are equally important
to be maintained, mere disclosure of ITC in GSTR-3B is not sufficient,
thus a reconciliation is required for the differences arising between
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them which may be due to missed out I'TC in GSTR 3B or ITC claimed
in excess. The relevance of the same further gets enhanced on account
of the fact that there would be multiple ledgers for GST credits
(CGST/SGST/IGST/UTGST/Cess) in a single State. Further, in case of
entity having multiple registrations, the number of ledgers could
further get compounded requiring need of reconciliation between ITC
ledgers of books of account and ITC claimed in GST. Since the books
of accounts are signed for its completeness and accuracy it would act
as base document while preparing the reconciliation.

The Input Tax reconciliation has been given in the GSTR-9C. The
sample format of the same is represented below which could be used
by the department for the purpose of proceeding ahead for ITC
reconciliation which could be suitably modified based on requirement.

Reconciliation of tax payable as per books of account and GST
records (tax payable as per GSTR-3B or tax liability appearing
in the electronics liability register): Mere reconciliation of
turnover is not sufficient as there could be possibility of some of the
liability remaining unpaid. The reconciliation of taxes payable as per
books of account should be reconciled with the taxes payable as
declared in the GSTR-3B flowing into electronics liability register.
This would ensure matching and declaration of all liability in the
returns.

Reconciliation of expenses liable to reverse charge as per
books of account and GST Returns/records: Reverse charge has
been an area of less compliance. The audit team should undertake
reconciliation of expenses in the Profit and Loss Account and Balance
Sheet which could be liable to reverse charge viz a viz expenses on
which GST has been paid under reverse charge mechanism. Expenses
such as Advocate fees for legal services, sponsorship services, and
services of a GTA etc. are liable to reverse charge under GST and
there by tax is required to be paid by the recipient on the same. It is
important to note that reverse charge provisions are applicable to few
goods such as tendu, cashews etc.

One methodology could be to reconcile the foreign payment with RCM
liability discharged to ensure that all import of services wherever
liability arises under RCM has been correctly paid or not.
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Further during FY 17-18 there was liability to pay GST under reverse
charge on account of purchases made from unregistered persons was
applicable up to 13th October, 2017.

Thus, a reconciliation is required between RCM payments shown in
books with disclosure made in GSTR-3B, thereby mitigating the
possibility of differences.

F. Reconciliation of taxes paid as per books of account viz a viz
taxed paid through cash ledgers as appearing in the
Electronics Cash Ledger: Under GST every registered person is
facilitated with an online cash account commonly known as E-cash
ledger which is used to discharge GST liability which is over and
above ITC available for utilization. In books of account the GST
payable A/c is debited with two accounts i.e. Cash A/c and ITC
receivable Alc.

Thus, a reconciliation is required which shows the total GST liability
and how it is discharged with ITC and cash. The balance appearing in
E-cash ledger A/c (in portal) may be tallied with E-cash ledger Alc
made in books.

G. Reconciliation between credit notes/debit notes as per GST
records viz a viz credit notes/debit notes as per books of
account (involving GST credit notes/debit notes as well as
financial credit notes/debit notes): Under GST the credit note, as
well as debit notes issued by the supplier are only relevant. Further
the Debit notes/credit notes are required to be issued with a time
frame. For ex. For FY 17-18 they can be issued up to due date of
GSTR-3B for the month of September 2018.

All other debit note/credit note are known as financial debit
note/credit note which has no relevance under GST law.

Accordingly, a reconciliation is required between all such debit/ credit
notes along with credit/ debit notes as reported under GST returns to
check compliance of above provisions.

H. Reconciliation of GST on overseas payments with financial
statements: Different provisions are contained in GST with respect
to overseas payment either due to imports of goods or importation of
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services whereas under relevant GAAP’s different disclosure
methodologies are followed to disclose foreign payments.

The difference due to above provisions cannot be eliminated rather it
can only be reconciled for its accuracy so that the total foreign
payment made must match with payment as per GST taking effect of
all reconciliation items.

Reconciliation of foreign currency realisation received viz a
viz export of goods/services claimed: Exports under GST are
classified as “Zero Rated Supplies” and multiple export benefits are
available for export of goods as well as services, in case of services
receipt of foreign currency is an inbuilt condition to be classified as

export.

Reconciliation between Foreign currency realised and export claimed
under GST would give a clear picture of fake claimed exports or
exports missed out to be claimed as Zero rated.

It is also relevant to note that mere realisation of foreign currency is
not sufficient to constitute the supply as zero-rated supply. Proper
reconciliation would highlight such instances also. It is important to
note that “Zero rated supplies” also includes supplies to SEZ
units/developer which needs to be eliminated to arrive at foreign
realisation.

Reconciliation between various GST returns/records GST in
itself has emerged to be a big law there are numerous compliances,
where few compliances are done on monthly/ quarterly basis and few
are to be done on annual basis.

So, all these returns/ challans etc. filed to department must get
reconciled with each other for example turnover reported in GSTR-1
shall match with turnover reported in GSTR-3B and GSTR-9.

Since all the filings made by a registered person are available on
common portal, it would be a good practice to rely on the latest data
available in common portal for which GSTN has inhouse data
analytics.
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DOCUMENTS TO BE EXAMINED

The reconciliation statement preparation and verification may not be done in
isolation. This requires examination and verification of various
documentations to cross verify as to the veracity of whatever has been
reported in the various records and their impact on the reconciliation
statement. There are several sources of information in order to ensure that
the verification is comprehensive. Some of the documents which may be
examined are as follows:

(1) Audited/ Unaudited Financial statements i.e., Balance Sheet and
Profit and Loss Account together with schedules, sub-schedules/
groupings and trial balance.

(11) Income-Tax Audit Report - Form No. 3CD attached along with the
Income tax return;

(111) Co Audit Report (in case of companies) under the Companies Act,
2013;

@1v) TDS returns under the Income Tax Act, 1961;

v) Internal Audit Reports and Management Reports;
(vi) Records — Sales register, input credit register, etc;
(vii) Customer and Vendor confirmations;

(viii) Statements/ information submitted to Banks;

(ix) Back up working papers/ work sheets for GSTR-1, 3B, 9 etc;

(x) Chart of Accounts/ Accounts Tree and the method recording entries
impacting GST may also be verified. In cases where, an accounting
manual is prepared, the same may be verified.

(x1) Data extracted from Portal with respect to various returns filed.
(x11) Various reconciliations performed by assessee as discussed above.

(x1i1) Report of GST auditor under Form GSTR 9C along indicating clean
or qualified opinion.

(x1v) Details of Debit/credit note issued, delivery challans issued, ITC- 04
filed etc.

(xv) Various policies like HR policy, discount policy etc.

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India



Important Reconciliations 247

How TO VERIFY AND RECONCILE DOCUMENTS

In order to ensure full and complete compliance and impart uniformity in
assessments, GST returns may be compared with others returns submitted
by the assessee to other statutory authorities. For example, figures reported
in GSTR’s can be cross verified with relevant information/ data submitted to
Income Tax department through Income tax returns ex Asset sale, TDS
returns etc. Return filed with Ministry of Corporate Affairs namely Form
AOC-4 can also be used for verifying the data submitted for GST purposes.
For verifying the reverse charge payment for importation of services, the
data can be verified with Form 15 CA and Form 15 CB filed for the purposes
of Income Tax Act, 1961. Some of the most commonly used records/
documents and the audit requirements for the same are discussed below:

(i) Trial Balance

After posting the accounts in the ledger, a statement is prepared to show
separately the debit and credit balances. Such a statement is known as Trial
Balance. A trial balance is a list of all the General Ledger Accounts (both
revenue and capital) contained in the ledger of a business. This is a summary
of all the ledger accounts of assessee. It facilitates the preparation of
financial statements i.e., Profit & Loss Account and Balance Sheet.

How to verify: The Trial Balance serves as a summary of what is contained
in the ledger. The ledger may have to be seen only when details are required
in respect of an account. Auditor may review the Trial Balance to see the
accounts, which may have an impact on his audit. He may have to examine
the credit entries in the expense ledger to ascertain as to whether it has any
tax/reconciliation impact.

(ii) Income Statement (Profit & Loss Account/ Receipt & Expenditure
Account)

It is a company's Income statement that indicates how the revenue (money
received from the sale of products and services) is transformed into Net
Profit (the result after all revenues and expenses have been accounted for). It
displays the revenues recognized for a specific period, and the cost and
expenses charged against these revenues, including write-offs and taxes. The
purpose of the income statement is to show managers and investors whether
the company made or lost money during the period being reported. Income
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statement is prepared as required under the Companies Act 2013 or for any
other statutory purpose.

How to verify: The auditor may review this account to see whether all
supplies reported in the P&L Account has been considered for GST purpose.
Special focus could be on miscellaneous income in the credit side as
recognized by the assessee on which tax liability may be attracted. The
auditor may also review the expenditure pattern of the assessee to ascertain
whether the ITC availed is in proportionate to the expense reflected in debit
side of account. The auditor may also review as to whether GST has been
paid under reverse charge mechanism. in respect of the specified services
e.g., if the income statement shows GTA charges being paid by the assessee,
auditor may check that GST has been paid by the assessee on such charges
or not.

(iii) Balance Sheet

In financial accounting, a Balance sheet is a summary of the financial
balances of a business organization. It may be defined as “a statement which
sets out the assets and liabilities of an organization at a certain date.
However, since the balance sheet is prepared on a particular date, the same
does not constitute the summary of the activities of the assessee.

How to verify: The auditor may review the balance sheet to see that the ITC
availed on capital goods has not been added with the value of fixed assets
and correct ITC has been availed on the capital goods. The auditor may also
compare the balance sheet with the previous year’s details to find out
whether there are any major developments in the financial structure of the
assessee and if there are any, the auditor may enquire into the same. Loans
taken or given may be reviewed, so that the impact of the same on valuation
may be investigated.

(iv) Notes to Financial Statements (Accounts)

Notes to financial statements (accounts) are additional information added to
the end of financial statements. It helps in explaining specific items in the
financial statements as well as provides a more comprehensive assessment of
a company's financial condition. It may include information on debt, going
concern criteria, accounts, contingent liabilities or contextual information
explaining the financial numbers (e.g., indicate a lawsuit).
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How to verify: The auditor may go through notes to accounts to see whether
any notes have any bearing on GST liability. The information contained in
the notes to accounts is important to the auditor since the same contains the
relevant information which cannot be provided in the financial statement but
which are required for the proper explanation of the financial statement.

(v) Report of the Management

Directors are required to submit certain reports to the stakeholders about
the activities and progress of the company. One such report is Director
Report. This report contains valuable information for the auditors regarding
the achievements and the future goals of the assessee, reason for failure, etc.,

How to verify: The auditor may go through the reports to see whether any of
the remarks of the authority of the assessee has any adverse aspect on the
GST valuation and tax liability. Report also contains the director comments
on adverse report of statutory auditor.

(vi) Internal Audit Report

Internal audit is mandatory only for specified assessees under Companies
Act, 2013 and RBI Act, 1935 etc. However, it is the practice of the industry to
engage internal auditors to ensure a better internal accounting control. The
scope of internal auditing within an organization is broad and may involve
topics such as the efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting,
deterring and investigating fraud, safeguarding assets and compliance with
laws and regulations.

How to verify: The auditor may review this report to ascertain whether the
adverse comments of the internal auditor has any bearing on the GST
liability. This report may contain the details of under invoicing, wrong
invoices, wrong availment of ITC etc.

(vii) Major Contracts and Agreements

A contract or an agreement is entered voluntarily by two parties or more
with the intention of creating a legal obligation. These documents describe
the terms of supply of goods or services, consideration and other terms and
condition.

How to verify: The auditor may go through the conditions of the contract or
agreement to see if there is any discrepancy with respect to financial
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statements, whether consideration is undervalued or there is a probability of
any GST liability.

(viii) Invoices

Invoices are raised as required under Section 31 of the CGST Act, 2017 in
which the name, address, registration number, details of supplies made,
name and address of the person receiving the supply, and GST charged etc.
are recorded.

How to verify: The auditor may review the invoices to see whether the
valuation of the supply is done correctly, and the applicable tax is charged
and paid to the exchequer. Since invoices should contain the details, which
are prescribed under the above said provisions and corresponding rules, the
auditor may ensure the same.

The auditor may also ensure that input tax credit has been taken and
accounted only when invoices are issued as per Section 31 and may reject the
input tax credit in case of wrong invoices issued by the supplier to the
assessee. Invoices can be used as a tool to verify the compliance of reverse
charge mechanism, in case of goods or services where GST is to be paid by
the recipient.

(ix) Debit / Credit Notes

As per Section 34(1) of the CGST Act, 2017 a credit note may be issued for
below reasons:

. The taxable value or tax charged in that tax invoice is found to exceed
the taxable value or tax payable in respect of such supply or;

. The goods supplied are returned by the recipient or;
° Where goods or services or both supplied are found to be deficient;

Whereas as per Section 34(3) of the said Act debit notes can be issued by the
supplier under below mentioned scenarios:

. The taxable value or tax charged in that tax invoice is found to be less
than the taxable value or tax payable in respect of such supply.

It is important to note that debit notes and credit notes issued by the
supplier are only relevant for the purpose of GST. These notes are used to
debit/credit miscellaneous transactions to the debtor’s ledger and the
creditor’s ledger accounts. These are the residuary documents that are used
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to account the transactions, for which the basic documents such as invoices,
payment vouchers, receipt vouchers, etc. cannot be issued.

How to verify: The auditor may review credit and debit notes under below
scenarios mentioned in column 1 of the table in accordance with column 2 of

the said table.

Possible Scenarios

Relevant Check Points

Credit note issued to Debtors.

Check whether proportionate output
liability reduced or not.

Relevant disclosures under GSTR-1,
GSTR-9, GSTR-9C etc. are made or not.
Check whether credit note is issued for

reasons other than the reasons specified
in Section 34 of the CGST Act, 2017.

Check whether Credit note pertaining
to FY is issued post due date for filing
of the return for the month of
September of subsequent financial year.

Debit note issued to Debtors.

Check  whether output liability
increased with the tax amount
mentioned in debit note.

Relevant disclosures under GSTR-1,
GSTR-9, GSTR-9C etc. are made or not.
Check whether credit note is issued for
reasons other than the reasons specified
in Section 34 of the CGST Act, 2017.
Check whether debit note pertaining to
FY is issued post due date for filing of
the return for the month of September
of subsequent financial year.

Credit notes received from
suppliers.

Check whether proportionate ITC
reversed or not.

Debit notes received from
suppliers.

Check whether format of
supplementary invoice, on the basis of

which ITC is to be availed, is as per
GST or not.
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(x) Income-tax returns (ITR)

Income-tax return is required to be furnished by the assessee to the Income
Tax department every year as per the requirements of the Income-tax Act.
Various returns have been prescribed under the Income-tax Act according to
the class of the assessee and the type of the income of the assessee.

How to verify: The auditor may verify the data reported by the assessee in
its GST returns with the information furnished in the income tax returns.
The auditor may review the ITR return to see if there are any differences
between the turnovers shown under ITR returns and GST returns and
obviously there would be differences on accounts of different principles of
law, the auditor may enquire into the same. There are many others
details/information available in the I'TRs which can be of use for the GST tax
officers. Further, since this information is readily available with Central
Board of Direct Taxes (CBDT), lot of time, energy and cost of both the
assessee and the Department can be saved if instead of seeking such data
from the assessee (during audit), the information is directly accessed from
the CBDT. ITR forms can be downloaded from the following link:
http://www.incometaxindia.gov.in/ download_all.asp.

(xi) Tax Audit Report (Form 3CD)

The Tax Audit Report in Form 3CD is required to be submitted to the income
tax department as per the requirements of the Income-tax Act. In this Report
various information such as comments / observations of the tax auditor on
the inventory, accounting system of the assessee, physical verification of
stock, accounting and verification of capital goods, details about the
statutory dues not paid within the due dates, etc. are to be furnished.

How to verify: The auditor may review this report to see if the nature of
business, books of accounts maintained, expenditure of personal nature, and
other aspects discussed above are sufficient for the requirements of his audit.
Form 3CD can be downloaded from the following link:

https://incometaxindiaefiling.gov.in
(xiii) Annual Returns (Form AOC-4)

The Annual Returns containing the details of shareholders, directors, and
debts, meeting of the Board and General Meetings and other information is
required to be filed by a company, with the Registrar of Companies
concerned, is covered under by section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
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now required to be made at the close of financial year, unlike the position as
at the date of AGM under the Companies Act, 1956. The form of Annual
Return now is MGT-7. The Annual return of a Company other than a One
Person Company and Small Company shall be certified by a Company
Secretary in practice, in addition to the Director of the Company. Further,
the Annual Return, filed by:

1) a listed company; or
(i1) a company having paid-up share capital of * 10 Crores or more; or
(11)  a company having turnover of * 50 Crores or more

Shall be certified by a Company Secretary in practice in the form of a
Certificate in MGT-8, to be attached to the Annual return form (MGT-7),
stating that the annual return discloses the facts correctly and adequately
and that the company has complied with all the provisions of the Act.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had made filing of Balance Sheet and
Profit & Loss Account in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language)
mandatory, for the following class of companies for the financial year ending
on or after 31.03.2011, vide the Companies (Filing of documents and forms in
Extensible Business Reporting Language) Rules, 2011, Dt:05.10.2011, as
amended from time to time.

1) All companies listed with any Stock Exchange(s) in India and their
Indian subsidiaries; or

(11) All companies having paid up capital of * 5 Crores and above; or
(i11)  All companies having turnover of * 100 Crores and above;

However, banking companies, insurance companies, power companies, and
Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) and Housing Finance
companies, need not file financial statements in are exempted from filing
returns in XBRL.

Effective from 01.04.2014, the form of filing Financial Statements with the
Registrar of Companies concerned is Form AOC-4, by a non-XBRL company
and in Form AOC-4(CFS), for which filing of Consolidated Financial
Statements are applicable and in Form AOC-4-XBRL, by a company to which
XBRL is applicable.
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How to verify: Department officials may use Annual Accounts and Annual
Returns filed with Registrar of Companies (ROC) to verify the details filled
in service tax returns. They may check whether there is any mismatch
between the two and may obtain the reason for the same. Form AOC-4, in
XBRL and Non-XBRL mode is available, for Public inspection, at the website
of Ministry of Corporate Affairs www.mca.gov.in under link “View Public
Documents” on payment of prescribed fees. The xmls of the financials filed in
XBRL formatted xml file can be converted in to readable format by using
XBRL validation tool as available in the MCA Portal, or using an XBRL
software.
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(GO0DS AND SERVICES TAX AUDIT — DESK
REVIEW AND SUBSTANTIVE

GOODS AND SERVICES TAX AUDIT - DESK REVIEW
11.1

This is the first stage of the audit exercise done in the office. As soon

as the Auditor receives the list of Tax Payers to be audited by him, he should
at the outset collate the following information:

A. | General Details

01. | Name & address of Principal Place of
Business of Auditee

02. | Name and contact number of the
Authorized person for Audit.

03. | GST Registration No. & date

04. | Detail of other GST registration in the
state

05. | Whether the assessee is also registered as
an Input Service Distributor?

06. | Status of assessee (Proprietorship,
Partnership, Limited liability Partnership
firm, Pvt. Ltd Company, Public Limited
Company? )

07. | Detail of GST registrations held in other
States

08. | List of Related Parties as defined in
Section 15 along with their address

09. | Brief note on the nature of business of the
Company

B. | Accounts and Records

10. | Accounting Software name and version
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11. | In case of multilocation entity, whether
accounts maintained through Centrally
managed ERP or independently at
individual location

12. | List of records maintained in respect of
GST

13. | List of ledgers maintained in books of
accounts as relevant from  GST
computation

14. | Whether any periodical report/statement
is furnished to any State/ Central Govt. /
Authority/ Regulatory bodies? If yes,
details thereof.

C. | Detail of Output Tax

Brief note on the nature of supplies made
by the Company

15. | List of Top 10 Goods or / and Services
supplied during the period under Audit
along with their HSN Codes and amount

16. | Details of Taxable Supplies received for
which tax has to be paid under reverse
charge.

17. | Details of Agreements entered into with
service recipients for providing services

18. | Details of exemptions availed, if any, and
relevant entry and Notification No.

19. | Whether any Supplies have been
Exported during the year

20. | Detail of income netted from expenses, if
any

21. | Detail of reimbursements received and
not shown in income separately, if any

22. | Whether any advance payment is received
towards providing taxable supplies? If
yes, whether Tax is paid on such receipts?
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D. | Detail of Input Tax

23. | List of Top 10 input services on which
Input Tax Credit was availed along with
their HSN Codes and amount?

24. | List of Top 10 inputs on which Input Tax
Credit was availed along with their HSN
Codes and amount?

25. | List of Top 10 capital goods on which
Input Tax Credit was availed along with
their HSN Codes and amount?

26. | Whether any transitional credit availed?
If so, details thereof.

E. | Valuations

27. | Whether supplies have been made to
related parties. If yes, details thereof

28. | Whether the company engage itself in
contracts of supply and installation of any
kind? If yes, brief note thereon.

F. Other Points

29. | Whether any offence case is booked in
respect of GST, Service Tax, Central
Excise, Income Tax, VAT/ Sales Tax. If so,
details thereof.

30. | Detail of GST Audit / Anti evasion

undertaken by department in last 5 years

11.2

For carrying out the detailed analysis, the following documents
should also be called from the Assessee or retrieved from the GSTN portal:

GST returns with copy of Cash Ledger and Credit Ledger

Audited financials for the period under review along with copy of

detailed Trial Balance

Company's Internal Audit Report, if any.

Tax Audit Reports (including all Annexures) conducted under Sec

44AB of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
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11.3

Cost Audit Reports (including all Annexures) conducted under Section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Details of Registration(s) with any other Government Departments/
Agency / Regulatory Authority.

Any other Return/ Declaration sent to any other Department/ Agency
/ Regulatory Authority.

List of Show Cause Notice(s) issued, if any and their present status.

For carrying out the detailed analysis, the following points should be

kept in mind.

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

Check whether the description of the supplies has been changed
during the past three to four years, without affecting the nature of the
supplies provided.

The auditor should check the data provided by the taxpayer for
reconciliation with other documents such as trial balance, Annual
Accounts, Ledgers etc. collected by them and carry out a preliminary
reconciliation for the purpose of identifying any amount that might
have escaped Goods and Services Tax.

Materiality: Every error also needs to be looked into from the
perspective of materiality. The auditor has to use his experience and
wisdom to decide the amount of time spent on identifying an error
and its rectification. While minor errors might be ignored, it is also to
be kept in mind that any cumulative effect of such minor errors
should not be material.

The auditor might also communicate with auditors of other
registrations of the same person within or outside his state to check
whether the error noted is an isolated one or is of recurring nature.

INPUT TAX

11.4

While looking into the books of account of the taxpayer, the following

points should also be looked into by the auditor:

(a)

Auditor should also verify the Bank Reconciliation Statement
prepared by the taxpayer to find any amounts which have been shown
as paid but are still pending clearance for long time, thereby, the
reversal under Rule 16(4) may arise.
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(b)  Auditor should analyses both debit and credit side of the profit & loss
al/c, trial balance, ledgers etc., because it is a myth that while
ascertaining the GST liability of the taxpayer, one has to look only at
the credit side of P&L A/c. Debit side is equally important or rather
more prone to frauds and errors. Therefore, the auditor needs to pay
attention towards debit side also. Debit side is important because of

1) Reverse charge mechanism — under this mechanism, the
recipient of services is liable to pay GST (e.g. GTA Services,
services received from abroad, repair and maintenance etc.).
In such cases nothing appears on the credit side of the P&L
a/c. However, GST has to be calculated on the amount paid
towards taxable services received.

(11) Reimbursement — unless the concept of pure agent is
applicable, reimbursements are includible in the value of
Taxable Supply. Reconciliation should cover all receivables
including reimbursements, sale of goods etc.

(c) Auditor should check as to whether there is any netting of income
with amount payable e.g. a person is acting as a commission agent
and receives commission amounting to Rs. 5,00,000/- which is taxable.
He is also engaged in trading of goods wherein he is required to pay a
commission of ¥ 3,00,000. It may be possible that the amount of
commission appearing in the P & L A/c is only ¥ 2,00,000/- the detail
of which is given in Notes on Accounts or is available from the Gross
Trial Balance. In this case, if Notes to Accounts are not studied
properly or the Gross Trial balance is not studied, then the Auditor
may not be able to determine the correct value of taxable supplies
rendered by the taxpayer.

SCRUTINY OF THE TAX AUDIT REPORT IN FORM 3CD

11.5 Clause 4 of the Tax Audit Report (Form 3CD) provides information
about whether the assessee is liable to pay indirect tax like excise duty,
service tax, sales tax, goods and services tax, customs duty, etc. if yes, please
furnish the registration number or GST number or any other identification
number allotted for the same.

11.6 Clause 18 of the Tax Audit Report (Form 3CD) provides information
about amount of depreciation under Section 32 of the Income Tax Act, 1961
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and that of INPUT TAX credit availed by the service providers on capital
goods.

11.7 Clause 26 of the Tax Audit report (Form 3CD) gives the details of
outstanding GST liabilities not paid relating to the financial year upto the
date of signing of the Tax audit report.

11.8 Clause 27 of the Tax Audit report (Form 3CD) gives the details of
Input Tax Credit claimed by the service provider. It also provides the details
of credit available and carried forward to the next year. Hence, the auditor
can authenticate the amount of credit carried forward in the service tax
returns with the information provided in terms of this clause.

11.9 Clause 27 of the Tax Audit Report (Form 3CD) also gives information
regarding prior period incomes and expenses booked in the year under Tax
audit. The Auditor shall ensure that service tax is paid on these amounts in
case they are subject to service tax.

11.10 Clause 35 of the Tax Audit Report (Form 3CD) provides the
information relating to quantitative details of stock in case of both traded
goods and manufactured goods.

11.11 Clause 37 of the Tax Audit Report (Form 3CD) provides the
information relating to Cost audit. If such an audit has been carried out, the
auditor should examine the Cost audit Report.

11.12 Clause 38 of the Tax Audit Report (Form 3CD) provides the
information relating to Excise audit. If such an audit has been carried out,
the auditor should examine the Excise Audit Report.

11.13 Clause 39 of the Tax Audit Report (Form 3CD) provides the
information relating to Special audit under Service Tax. If such an audit has
been carried out in relation to valuation of taxable service, the auditor
should examine the Service Tax Audit Report.

11.14 Clause 40 of the Tax Audit Report (Form 3CD) provides the important

accounting ratios.

11.15 Clause 41 of the Tax Audit Report (Form 3CD) provides the details of
demand raised or refund issue during the previous year under any Indirect
Tax Law along with details of relevant proceedings.
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SCRUTINY OF TAX DEDUCTED AT SOURCE (TDS) CERTIFICATES

11.16 The total receipts for services can be verified from TDS certificates in
the following manner:-

1 By deducting the amount of GST from the value on which tax has
been deducted at source, the receipts an account of services supplied
and as appearing in the books of accounts can be reconciled (subject to
details of accounts where no TDS is deducted).

11 The nature of services can also be confirmed from these certificates
and in case of any discrepancy in the categorization of services under
proper head, elaborate checks need to be carried out by the Auditor.

1il. Details of TDS credit claimed in the Income Tax Return may also be
examined.

1v. It is however, to be noted that no TDS is deducted in supply of goods.

STUDY OF VARIOUS FINANCIAL RECORDS

11.17 Notes on accounts: In case of debtors, notes indicate debtors which
are outstanding for a period exceeding 6 months. Foreign Exchange related
transactions are also given in the notes on accounts. Netting of amounts of
revenue or expenditure can also be resorted to by the management although
as per accounting standards it is mandatory to specify the figures separately.
Notes containing Earning in Foreign Currency is relevant to study for
determining earnings from export. Similarly, Expenditure in Foreign
Currency is relevant for determining GST liability under reverse charge
mechanism for import of services.

Scrutiny of Notes will also reveal whether there was any change in the
system of accounting. For example — a taxpayer changes from cash system of
accounting to mercantile accrual system. The notes also indicate the impact
of accounting policies on various liabilities including the tax liability of the
taxpayer. Therefore, the auditor must read the notes carefully.

11.18 Director’ Report: Director’s report may, inter alia, contain
information about.

(a) Foreign Exchange earned during the year.

(b) Foreign Exchange paid during the year, e.g. — may be on account of
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taxable services availed by the taxpayer where he is liable to pay
service tax under reverse charge mechanism.

(c) Information on the operations carried out by the taxpayer during the
year under report. This may help in finding the exact nature of
services provided by the taxpayer.

(d) The facts stated in Director’s Report should be reconciled with the
GST Returns.

11.19 Statutory Auditor’s Report: It is the most important report
contained in the Annual Accounts of a company. The Statutory Auditor
Certifies as to whether the books of account of the company are properly
maintained or not and also whether internal control mechanism exist
commensurate with the size and extent of business of the company. Any
adverse noting of the Statutory Auditor has to be replied by the management
of the company.

11.20 The Trial Balance: The most important use of Gross Trial Balance
is that i1s contains balances of individual ledger accounts whereas in balance
sheet and P&L A/c. many ledger accounts are grouped together, e.g.

(a) In the P&L Alc. all the incomes are clubbed together under the head
‘Gross Receipt’, ‘Sales’ as the case may be. However, Trial Balance
shows income earned under each category of revenue separately.
Amongst sales also, supplies of goods of different rates are classified
together in same ledger and thus, a reconciliation of such figure with
the turnover reflected in GST returns is necessary to substantiate the
proper payment of tax.

(b) Not only Trial Balance is important in relation to income side, but it
is very important in relation to expenditure side also. For instance —
Payment made towards Sponsorship services may be clubbed in the
category of Advertisement and Sales Promotion Expenses which can
be identified only from the Trial Balance.

(c) Similarly, Freight paid may be clubbed with purchases of Fixed
Assets. If the freight paid to GTA, the company is liable to pay GST
under reverse charge mechanism.

11.21 Indicative list of items to be examined in the Trial Balance / Profit &
loss Account / Balance Sheet / Tax Audit Report.
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The perusal of the Trial Balance could achieve the following:

@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

familiarization with chart of accounts / account code and understand
as to what extent the information is detailed and integrated with
other sub-systems; few sample journal vouchers may also be seen to
understand the information mentioned therein.

Understand the grouping of sub accounts under main accounts for the
purposes of summarization into Profit & Loss account and the
Balance Sheet.

Identification of accounts, which have a prima facie relevance for GST
payment (may be direct or indirect) e.g. payment towards
sponsorship, payment towards goods transport agencies, payment
towards cab charges, repair and maintenance etc. These accounts may
have to be seen in detail at later stage of audit depending upon the
result of subsequent audit processes;

Understand the tax accounting system in so far as it pertains to GST
payment and treatment of credit of service tax on input services.

Trial Balance is also important from the perspective of reviewing any
debit entries into accounts which should have credit entries in general
and vice versa. For eg., Sales account should have debit entries only,
however, one may find that there is a small debit amount appearing
in the debit side of the Gross Trial Balance. This debit could be
indication of any cancelled sale, discount, sales return etc. and thus,
its very nature can substantiate the validity of credit note issued
under Section 34 of the CGST Act.

Last but not the least, the Trial Balance is also indicative of inter
Branch / Cross charge entries made or required to be made in the
books of accounts. For eg., one may find an extraordinary expense
during the year say an advertisement expense of one crore which was
not there last year. A review of such expense may reveal that it was
related not only to the registration under audit/ review but also, other
branches under different GST registrations. Thus, a cross charge of
such expense should have been made by the unit to other units, else,
not complete Input Tax Credit could be attributed to such registration
and is not available fully under such registration.
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11.22 Profit & Loss Account: The auditor is required to examine income
and expenditure accounts in the Profit & Loss Accounts:

(a)

(b)

Income Accounts: Normally, the Profit & Loss Account would show
a consolidated entry for business income for all sources. According to
accounting standards, non-business income such as interest income or
dividend income is required to be shown separately. To begin with,
auditor should call for the grouping of business income shown in the
Profit & Loss Account. The said grouping would show